
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              April 27, 2021 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

April 27, 2021 - 10:00 AM 

  
 

 1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Join meeting via Zoom here) 
  

 

  2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  3. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

  4. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE 
  

 

  5. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Danelle Barnett, Office Technician III, HHS; Anna Ramos, COVID-19 Case 
Investigator, HHS; Nikolas Athanasiou, Network & Operations Analyst IV, Information 
Services; Rochelle Romo, Office Technician III, Information Services; and Graham 

Meese, Assistant Planner, Planning Department. 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 6. Probation - Request Board, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review 
Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) Office Clerk exists in the General 
Fund, as certified by the Chief Probation Officer and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the 
qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal 
recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified 
applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) Office Clerk I at Range 48 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board 
of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, the Board will be conducting its meetings exclusively online.  

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. 
Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to access the videoconference. 
Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following generic, non-functioning address to 
gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. 
Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please make 
sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              April 27, 2021 

($2,851 - $3,454) or one (1) Office Clerk II at Range 52 ($3,118 - $3,788). 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 7. County Administrator - Request Board: A) approve the application and all 
supporting documents for the State of California Surplus Property Program and 
authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign the Application Checklist and the 
Donee Terms and Conditions Form and authorize the Chairperson to sign the 
remaining forms; and B) authorize the County Administrative Officer to update the 
Certification on an annual basis. 

  
 

 8. County Administrator - Information Services - Request Board modify the amount 
authorized in the agreement between the County of Inyo and Ultra Link Cabling 
Systems, Inc., of Auburn, CA, increasing the agreement amount not to exceed 
$220,000, and authorize the Public Works Director or the Information Services 
Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 9. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board approve 
Resolution No. 2021-28, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Declaring that Inyo County will Opt Out of the Adoption of 
Assisted Outpatient Treatment (Laura's Law) and Certifying that all Mental Health 
Treatment Programs will Continue and that No Treatment or Service will be Reduced 
without Adoption of Assisted Outpatient Treatment (Laura's Law) by Inyo County," 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

 10. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board approve 
Amendment No. A02 to the contract between the County of Inyo Department of 
Health and Human Services and the California Department of Public Health for the 
California Women, Infants, and Children Contract, increasing the contract by 
$30,190, not to exceed $1,150,112, for the period of October 1, 2019 through 
September 30, 2022, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets, and 
authorize the HHS Director to sign Standard Agreement No. 19-10153 Amendment 
A02. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 11. Water Department - Request Board review and possibly provide direction 
concerning the LADWP draft 2021-2022 Pumping Plan. 

  
 

 12. County Administrator - Risk Management - Request Board introduce, read title, 
and waive further reading of the proposed ordinance amending Chapter 1.28 of the 
Inyo County Code pertaining to claims, and schedule enactment for Tuesday, May 4, 
2021, in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative Center, 
Independence. 

  
 

 13. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of April 20, 2021. 

  
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.) 

  
 

  14. 11 A.M. - Water Department - Request Board hold workshop with the Inyo County 
Water Commission on conditions in the Owens Valley and the LADWP draft 2021-
2022 Pumping Plan. 

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              April 27, 2021 

 15. 1 P.M. - Board of Supervisors - Request Board receive a presentation on the 
Innovative Finance for National Forests (IFNF) grant program and opportunities 
related to Inyo National Forest campgrounds. 

  
 

 16. 1:30 P.M. - Board of Supervisors - Request Board receive an update on the 
Sustainable Recreation & Tourism Initiative from representatives of the Eastern 
Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership. 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  17. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  
 

 
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL  
  

 

  18. Inyo County Public Works: Agenda for the Southern Inyo Airport Advisory 
Committee scheduled for 7 a.m. Wednesday, April 28, 2021. 

  
 

 



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of State of California Surplus Property Program Application
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the application and all supporting documents for the State of California Surplus 
Property Program and authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign the Application Checklist and the 
Donee Terms and Conditions Form and authorize the Chairperson to sign the remaining forms; and B) authorize 
the County Administrative Officer to update the Certification on an annual basis.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In the previous fiscal year, the Deputy Public Works Director of Airports was looking into opportunities to receive 
federal surplus items through the Federal Aviation Administration. While doing the research through the federal 
surplus program, the opportunity arose to apply through the State of California for their Surplus Property 
Program.

Enrolling in this program will allow the County to receive and/or purchase items at a much lower amount than 
would be achieved by purchasing a new item. Examples of items that could be received are used fuel trucks, or 
used fire trucks, which both could be utilized at the Bishop Airport. Additionally, since the County as a whole, is 
applying, there could be many opportunities for all County Departments to receive surplus items.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve the application and supporting documents, which would result in lost 
opportunities to acquire items at a much lower price through this State program.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Public Works
 
FINANCING:
There is no fiscal impact with the approval of the application. After the application is approved by the State, the 
fiscal impacts of receiving any surplus items would result in a large savings to the department that would benefit 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

from the surplus program.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. New Application Checklist
2. Item #1 - Surplus Property Program Eligibility Application - DGS OFAM 201
3. Item #2 - Resolution with Board Minutes - DGS OFAM 202
4. Item #3 - Non-Discrimination Certification - DGS OFAM 203
5. Item #4 - Racial Demographic and National Origins of all Persons within Service Area - DGS OFAM 204
6. Item #5 - Debarment Form
7. Item #6 - Donee Terms and Conditions
8. Item #7 - Proof of State Agency - Public Agency Status
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 4/19/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/20/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 4/21/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 4/21/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 4/21/2021



STATE OF CALIFORNIA SURPLUS PROPERTY PROGRAM

NEW APPLICATION CHECKLIST
(Revised 1012019)

Name of Organization

lnyo County

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
OFFICE OF FLEET AND ASSET MANAGEMENT

GOVERNMENT AND SPECIAL DISTRICTS

. State Agency

. city
o County
. Special District (Water Districts, Cemeteries, Utilities)
. Public School/District (Colleges, Universities)

Email

dcarrington@inyocounty. us

DGS OFAM 201- Surplus Property Program Eligibility Application

DGS OFAM 202 - Resolution with Board Minutes (When applicable)

DGS OFAM 203 - Non-Discrimination Certification

DGS OFAM 204 - Racial Demographic and National Origins of all Persons within your Service
Area. Please visit U.S. Census website
(https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml) to determine the racial makeup of
your service area.

Sign and Date Debarment Form

Sign and Date Donee Terms and Conditions

Proof of State/Public Agency Status (Listing in State Directory, etc.)

Current CBEDS or WASC (lf applicable). Please refer to California Dena of Education
webs ite (h ttps ://d q . cd e. ca. g ov/d ataq u esU).

Return Completed Original Application to: (Please maintain a copy for your records.)

Federal Surplus Property Program
1700 National Drive
Sacramento, CA 95834

" etigibility is limited to the period covered by the certification. Certifications are generally issued
on an annual basis; therefore, the provider must update annually or as required by the approval
on their certification.

NOTES

Contact Name

Denelle Carrington

Phone Number

760-878-0262

1



OFFICE USE ONLY

Reviewed By

Donee Number

Expiration Date

Billing Code

Date ApprovalStatus
Yes
New

No
Renewal

2



Organization Name

lnyo County

County

lnyo

Service available to the public at large lf "No," please indicate a specific group of people served

Yes No

ORGANIZATION TYPE - Please check all that apply and provide all requested information

Public Agency State f, t-ocal Non-Profit Agency or Organization

onservation Education

Grade Level: lPreschoot !X-t Z lCottege
School for the Mentally and Physically
handicapped

Enrollment:

fZrconomic Development

Enrollment:

Number of Faculty
Number of Faculty

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STATE SURPLUS PROPERTY
PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY APPLICATION
DGS OFAM 201 (Revised 08/2019)

Address

PO Drawer N

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
OFFICE OF FLEET AND ASSET MANAGEMENT

Fax Number

760-878-0465

Number of Days in School Year:

Number of School Sites:

Educational Radio or Television Station

Museum

Library

Medical lnstitution

Hospital

Health Center

Education

Grade Level: ! Preschoot nf-t z lColtege

Number of Days in School Year:

Parks and Recreation

Public Health

Public Safety

f, Otf'"t (Please specify) Library & Museum

lntc

Other (Please specify)

OFFICE OF FLEET AND ASSET MANAGEMENT
1700 National Drive, Sacramento, cA 95834 | Phone: (916) 928-2ss0 | Fax: (916) 928-7965

Email

dcarri n gton@inyocou ntyg

Phone Number

(760) 878-0262

City

lndependence

State

CA

Zip Code

93526



ATTACHMENTS

f, OCS OFAM 202. Resolution, properly signed and approved by the Governing Board
designating representatives, including their signatures, authorized to bind the applicant
organization to service fees submitted by the State of California.

V
V
V

Administrator or Director Name

Clint Quilter

Signed

Title

Cou nty Ad ministrative Officer

DGS OFAM 203. Nondiscrimination Compliance Assurance

Certification regarding Debarment, Suspension, lneligibility & Voluntary Exclusion as required
by the General Services Administration of the U.S. Government.

Other statements or documentation required, as may be specified.

Signature Date

FOR STATE SURPLUS AGENCY USE ONLY

Application Status Approved Disapproved

Donee Number Billing Code

Comments or Additional lnformation

Date

OFFICE OF FLEETAND ASSET MAMGEMENT
1700 National Drive, Sacramento, cA 95834 I Phone: (916) 928-2s50 | Fax: (916) 928-796s



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

RESOLUTION
DGS OFAM 202 (Revised 0812019)

Organization Name

lnyo County

Address

PO Drawer N

Name

Clint Quilter

Title

County Administrative Officer

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
OFFICE OF FLEETAND ASSET MANAGEMENT

Fax Number

760-878-0465

Zip Code

93526

Email

cquilter@inyocou nty. us

ashepherd@inyocou nty. us

merrante@inyocounty. us

dcarrington@inyocounty. us

RESOLUTION

'BE lT RESOLVED by the Governing Board, and hereby ordered that the official(s) and or
employee(s) whose name(s), title(s), and signature(s) are listed below shall be and is (are) hereby
authorized as our representative(s) to acquire surplus property through the auspices of the California
State Agency for Surplus property and accept responsibility for payment of incidental fees by the
surplus property agency under the Terms and Conditions accompanying this form or listed on the
reserve side of this form."

Signature*

Amy Shepherd Auditor-Controller

Michael Errante Public Works Director

Denelle Carrington Senior Management Analyst

Email

dcarrington@inyocou nty. us

Phone Number

760-878-0262

City

lndependence

State

CA

*All signatures must be in original form. No copied or stamped signatures

Date Resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED

Number of AYES Number of ABSENT

By checking this box, I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct resolution
adopted by the Governing Board of the above named organization at the meeting thereof held
at its regular place of meeting on the date and by the vote above stated, a copy of said
resolution is on file in the principal office of the Governing Board.

OFFICE OF FLEET AND ASSET MAMGEMENT
1700 National Drive, Sacramento, CA 95834 | Phone: (916) 928-2550 | Fax: (916) 928-7965

Number of NOES



Governing Board Name
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

PRINT

Signed By

Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson

Signature Date

STATE AGENCIES ONLY

Date Authorized State Billing Code

Chief Administrative Officer Name Signature

OFFICE OF FLEET AND ASSET MAMGEMENT
1700 National Drive, Sacramento, CA 95834 | Phone: (916) 928-2550 | Fax: (9i6) 928-7965

Title



STATE OF CALIFORNIA
NON.DISCRIMI NATION CERTIFICATION
DGS OFAM 203 (Revised 08/2019)

Donee Organization
lnyo County

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
OFFICE OF FLEETAND ASSET MANAGEMENT

Zip Code
93526

PresidenUChairman of the Board or comparable authorized official

Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH GSA REGULATIONS UNDER TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL
RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, SECTION 606 OF TITLE VI OF THE FEDERAL PROPERTY AND

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES ACT OF 1949, AS AMENDED, SECTION 504 OF THE
REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973, AS AMENDED, TITLE IX OF THE EDUCATION AMENDMENTS

OF 1972, AS AMENDED AND SECTION 303 OF THE AGE DISCRIMINATION ACT OF 1975

lnyo County
, (hereafter called the "donee"),

Name of Donee Organization

HEREBY AGREES THAT the program for or in connection with which any property is donated to the
donee will be conducted in compliance with, and the donee will comply with and will require any other
person (any legal entity) who through contractual or other arrangements with the donee is authorized
to provide services or benefits under said program to comply with, all requirements imposed by or
pursuant to the regulations of the General Services Administration (41 CFR 101-6.2) issued under the
provisions of Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 606 of Title Vl of the Federal Property
and Administrative Services Act of 1949, as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,
as amended, Title lX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, and Section 303 of the
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, to the end that no person in the United States shall on the ground of
race, color, national origin, sex, or age, or that no othennrise qualified handicapped person shall solely
by reason of the handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the donee received Federal
assistance from the General Services Administration; and HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT it
will immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement.
The donee further agrees that this agreement shall be subject in all respects to the provisions of said
regulations; that this agreement shall obligate the donee for the period during which it retains
ownership or possession of any such property; that the United States shall have the right to seek
judicial enforcement of this agreement; and, this agreement shall be binding upon any successor in
interest of the donee and the word "donee" as used herein includes any such successor in interest.

Donee Organization
lnyo County

Signature Date

OFFICE OF FLEET AND ASSET MANAGEMENT
1700 National Drive, sacramento, cA 95834 | Phone: (916) 928-2sb0 | Fax: (916) 928-7965

Mailing Address
PO Drawer N

City
lndependence

State
CA



STATE OF CALIFORNIA
RACIAL AND NATIONAL ORIGINS
CERTIFIGATION
DGS OFAM 204 (Revised 08/2019)

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
OFFICE OF FLEETAND ASSET MANAGEMENT

Persons having origins in any of the tribal people of North America,
% and who maintain cultural identification through tribal affiliation or

commun ity recogn ition.

Persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the far east,o/o Southeast Asia, Pacific lslands, or the lndian Subcontinent. This
includes China, Japan, Korea, The Philippines, and Samoa.

o/o Persons having origins in any of the black racial groups of Africa

% Persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South
American, or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race.

o/o Persons having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North
Africa, or the Middle East.

o/o People listed as having 2 or more races

Date

Pursuant to Federal Regulation 28 C.F.R. SS 42.401 - 42.415, a recipient is mandated to report to the
Federal Government the racial and national origins of all persons within your service area. You are
therefore asked to supply the Office of Fleet and Asset Management with the race and national
origins of individuals you serve in your service area (it may be helpful to refer to the U.S. Census to
determine the racial makeup of your service area on American FactFinder at
https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml). This form must be completed and
returned with the rest of the eligibility packet in order to qualify for the Federal Surplus Property
Program. Your answers on this form in no way affect your eligibility; however, not returning the form
will delay the processing of your application.

American lndian or
Alaskan Native:

Asian/
Pacific lslander:

Black

Hispanic:

White

Other (specify):

Name

Jeff Griffiths

11.3

2.1

0.9

78.8

4.7

OFFICE OF FLEET AND ASSET MAMGEMENT
1700 National Drive, sacramento, cA 95834 | Phone: (916) 928-2550 | Fax: (916) 928-7965

2.2

Title

Chairperson
Signature



Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, lneligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions

This certification is required by the General Services Administration regulations
implementing Executive Order 12549-41 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 105-68 -
for all lower tier transactions meeting the requirements stated at 41 CFR 105-68.1 10.

I nstructions for Certification

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is
providing the certification set out below.

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. lf it is later
determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an
erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, the department of agency with which this transaction originated
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to
the person to whom this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective
lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or
had become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

4. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," suspended," inerigibre," "rower tier
covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction,"
"principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the
meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage section of rule implementing
Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is
submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that,
should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly
enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for
debarment under 48 cFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction,
unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction
originated.

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal
that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment,
suspension, lneligibility and voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier covered
Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all
solicitation for lower tier covered transactions.

4



7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a
prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed
for debarment under CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions, unless it knows that the
certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by
which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and
Non-Procu rement Programs.

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of
a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by
this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to
exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a
participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9,
subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction
originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or
debarment.

Certification

(1) The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal,
that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction by any Federal department or agency.

(2) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the
statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an
explanation to this proposal.

Name of Donee Applicant

lnyo County

Name and Title of Authorized Representative

Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson

Signature

5

Date



Certifications and Agreements including Terms, Conditions, Reservations and Restrictions to be included on
lssued or Distribution Documents

A. The Donee certifies that:

1. lt is a public agency; or an approved non-profit institution or organization, exempt from
taxation under Section 501 of the lnternal Revenue Code of 1986; within the meaning of
Section 2030) of the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949, as
amended, and the regulations of the General Services Administration (GSA).

2. The property is needed and will be used by the recipient for carrying out for the residents of
a given political area one or more public purposes, or, if a nonprofit tax-exempt institution or
organization or 8(a) business, the property is needed for and will be used by the recipient
for educational or public health purposes, or for programs for older individuals, or for
business purposes. The property is not acquired for any other use or purpose, or for sale or
other distribution; or for permanent use outside the State, except with prior approval of the
California State Agency for Surplus Property (CSASP).

3. Funds are available to pay any and all costs and charges incidental to the receipt of surplus
property, and that property is not being acquired for any other use(s) or purpose(s), is not
for sale. The fee schedule is available upon request from the CSASP.

4. Any transaction shall be subject to the nondiscrimination regulations governing the
donation of federal surplus personal property issued under Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (41USC 2000d-2000d-4a), as amended, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
as amended, Title lX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, section 303 of
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987.

5. lf the Donee is designated by the Federal Small Business Administration 8(a) Program as a
socially and economically disadvantaged small business and the SBA and CSASP have
both determined the Donee is eligible to receive federal surplus property as a donation, the
Donee certifies that the property acquired is needed and will be used solely for the conduct
of the Donee's business enterprise: and the Donee certifies to A. (3), (a) and (5).

B. The Donee Agrees to the following Federal conditions:

1. All items of property, other than items with a unit acquisition cost of $5000 or more and
passenger motor vehicles, regardless of acquisition cost, shall be placed in use for the
purpose(s) for which it was acquired within one year or receipt, and shall be placed in
continuous use for one year from the date the property was placed in use. ln the event
the Donee does not place the property in use, or continuous use, the Donee shall
immediately notify the csASP, and, at the Donee's expense, make the property
available for transfer or other disposal as directed by the CSASP.

6



2. Special handling or use limitations as are imposed by Federal GSA on any item(s)
under which the item(s) are being allocated to the Donee.

3. ln the event the Donee does not use the property as required by Secfions C (1) and (2)
below, at the option of the GSA, title and right to the possession of such property shall
revert to the United States of America and, upon demand, the Donee shall release such
property to such person as GSA or its designee shall direct.

C. The Donee agrees to the following conditions applicable to items with a unit acquisition cost of
$5,000 or more and passenger motor vehicles, regardless of cost except vessels 50 feet or
more in length and aircraft regardless of acquisition cost:

1. The property shall be place in use within one year of receipt, and shall be used only for
the purpose(s) for which it was acquired and for no other purpose(s).

2. There shall be a period of restriction which will expire after such property has been used
for the purpose(s) for which it is acquired for a period of 18 months from the date the
property is placed in use, except for such item(s) of major equipment for which the
CSASP designates a further period of restriction.

3. ln the event the property is not so used as required by Sections C (1) and (2), at the
option of the CSASP, title and right to the possession of such property shall, at the
option of the CSASP, revert to the State of California, and the Donee shall release such
property to such person as the CSASP shall direct.

D. The Donee agrees to the following terms, reservations and restrictions:

1. From the date it receives the property and throughout the time period(s) imposed by
Sections B and C (as applicable) remain in effect, the Donee shall not sell, trade, lease,
lend, bail, cannibalize, encumber, or otherwise dispose of such property, or remove it
permanently, for use outside the State of California, without the prior approval of GSA or
the CSASP. The proceeds from any sale, trade, lease, loan, bailment, encumbrance or
other disposal of the property, when the GSA or the CSASP authorizes such action,
shall be remitted promptly by the Donee to GSA or the CSASP, as applicable. lf the
Donee takes action in ignoring or disregarding the foregoing restrictions after the date
the Donee received the property and before expiration of the time periods imposed by
Sections C or D as applicable, at the option of the GSA or the CSASP, the Donee shall
pay to the GSA or the CSASP any proceeds derived from the disposal, and/or the fair
market or rental value of the property at the time of such unauthorized disposal as
determined by the GSA or the CSASP as applicable.

2. lf, at any time, from the date the Donee receives the property throughout the time
periods by Sections B and C as applicable, the Donee determines that some or all of
the property is no longer suitable, usable, or further needed for the purpose(s) for which
it was acquired, the Donee shall promptly notify the CSASP and shall, as directed by
the CSASP, return the property to the CSASP, or release the property to another Donee

7



or another state agency, or a department or agency of the United States, or sell or
othenruise dispose of the property. The Donee shall remit the proceeds from the sale
promptly to the CSASP.

3. The Donee shall make reports to the CSASP which shall state the use, condition, and
location of the property, and shall report on other pertinent matters as may be required
from time to time by the CSASP.

4. At the option of the CSASP, the Donee may abrogate the conditions set forth in Section
B and the terms, reservations and restrictions pertaining in Section D by payment of an
amount as determined by the CSASP.

E. The Donee agrees to the following conditions, applicable to all items of property:

1. The property acquired by the Donee is on an "As ls," "where is" basis, without warranty
of any kind.

2. lf the Donee carries insurance against damages to or loss of property due because of
fire or other hazards, and the damage to, loss or destruction to donated property with
unexpired terms, conditions, reservations or restrictions, occurs, the CSASP will be
entitled to reimbursement from the Donee out of the insurance proceeds, in an amount
equal to the unamortized portion of the fair value of the damaged or destroyed donated
property.

F. Terms, conditions, reservations and restrictions set forth in the Conditional Transfer Document
executed by the authorized Donee representative are applicable to the donation of Aircraft and
Vessels of 50 feet or more in length having an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more regardless of
the purpose for which acquired.

Signature Date

8



Dr. Shirley N. Weber
California Secretary of State

What can we help you with? ffi
E About Business Notary&Apostille Elections Campaign&Lobbying stareArchives Regisries News Conract OOO

€o
o-
f
oo
o-
0)
:<

E
=,
_{
N)o
N)
J

Ig)
+
('lo
1l

I

About Elections Division

Statewide Election Results

Registerto VoE

Pre-Registerto Vole

Voter Registration Stiltus

tbter Registrrtion Stilistics

Bauot illeasurcs

Print Version {PDF}

. Political SubdivisionsbylgUnty_

. Counties Within Congressional Districls

. Counties Within State Senate Districts

. Couniies lMthin State Assembly_eiElltglg

. Counties Wthin Board of Equali.ation Districts

. Counries Wirhin AppeIelcgslrllglslrlels

. countv tambilEllqns of state Assembly-..1fuggressional, Sffie Senate,,!!garg!-g[Equalization, and AppdlEle
Districts

Home , Electlons and voter tnformaton Ptior Elections ', sttgltldg Election Results statewlde Dtrect pnnrarv Electrolt : :l.'ung g, ?Q:14 .201 4 Catfomn ElectoriEite_ nqii

Section 9: Offices and Subdivisions

Elections Division

Political Subdivisions bV County



Political Subdivisions by County
Board of

Equalization

Mariposa Mariposa
Mendocino Llkiah

Madera
San Rafael

Merced
Alturas
Bridgeport
Salinas
Napa
Nevada City
Santa Ana
Auburn
Quincy
Riverside

Sacramento
Hollister
San Bernardino

5
5
1,3
5
3,4
11,14,15,76
2
5,6
23,37
3
2
56
26
26,32,34,36
32
4
I
36,39,39,41,43-46,
4g-55,57-59,62-64,
66,70
5
l0
5
2
21
I
5
29,30
4
I
55,65,69,69,72-74
1,5,6
1

42,56,60,61,67,
71,75
6-9,11
30
33,36,40-42,47,
52,55
71,75-90
17,lg
9,12,13
35,37
19,22,24
35,37
24,25,27-30
29,30
I
1

I
4,71,74
2,4,10
12,21
J
J
2

Alameda
Alpine
Amador
Butte
Calaveras
Colusa
Contra Costa
Del Norte
El Dorado
Fresno
Glenn
Humboldt
Imperial

,Inyo
Kern
Kings
Lake
Lassen
Los Angeles

Oakland
Markleeville
Jackson
Oroville
San Andreas
Colusa
Martinez
Crescent City
Placerville
Fresno
Willows
Eureka
El Centro
Independence
Bakersfield
Hanford
Lakeport
Susanville
Los Angeles

5,9,1 1,15
2
4
4,16,21,22
1,3
2
5l
8
21,23
2l
3,5
1

23,25-30,32-35,
37-40,43,44,47

4,16
2
4
2
16
I
8
20
5
1,4
38,39,45-49
1,4
I
36,41,42,50

Senate

4
4
2
8,74,16
8
19,2'7
3,6
4

5,1 6,

5
37,38,44,45
4,7
J

8
14,16
14
2
1

18,20-27,29,30,
32-35

8,12
2
8
2
12
I
8
12,77
J
I
29,32,34,36,37
7,4
I
23,29,31

1,3-6,9
t2
76,20,21,23,
25,29
36,38-40
l1
5
17
I 1,13
l9
10,13,15,17
17
I
1

I
J

13,15,
4
4
1

4
J

7,9,1
I
8
4
8
4
3,7,9
2
I
8,12,
4
2
40

I
1

I
I
2
2
2
I
I
2
2
4
I
I
I
2
1

1,3

I
2
1

2
I
I
1

2
2
I
4
I
I
4

I
J
J
J
J
J
1

1

J
5
J
I
4
4
5
5
I
3
2

5
I
5
I
5
J
J
6
I
J
4
J
J
4

3

6
4

4
1

3
2
I
2
6
6
J
J
J
I
I
5
J
J
J
5
5

2
J
J

4

Madera
Marin

Merced
Modoc
Mono
Monterey
Napa
Nevada
Orange
Placer
Plumas
Riverside

Sacramento
San Benito
San Bernardino 8,27,37,35,39

49-53
12-14
9,10
24
14,19
24
t7-20
18,20

3,6,7,9
20

1

2
1,3,4

San Diego
San Francisco
San Joaquin
San Luis Obispo
San Mateo
Santa Barbara
Santa Clara
Santa Cruz
Shasta
Sierra
Siskiyou
Solano
Sonoma
Stanislaus
Sutter
Tehama
Trinity
Tulare
Tuolumne
Ventura
Yolo
Yuba

San Diego
San Francisco
Stockton
San Luis Obispo
Redwood City
Santa Barbara
San Jose
Santa Cruz
Redding
Downieville
Yreka
Fairfield
Santa Rosa
Modesto
Yuba City
RedBluff
Weaverville
Visalia
Sonora
San Buenaventura
Woodland
Marysville

I
I
1

3,5
2,5
l0
J
1

2
21
4

2,3
5,8,12

23,26-23

4
2
I
2
2
2
2
2
I
1

1

2
2
I
I
2
2
1

I
J
2
I

24-26,30
3,6
3

9-l



4t7t2021 lnyo County - California State Association of Counties

m
lnyo County

CALIFORNTA STATE ASSOCTATION Or COUNTIES

POPULATION: 18,584

INCORPORATION DATE:'1866

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

' . District 1 - Dan Totheroh

. District 2 * Je{l Griffiths

. District 3 - Rick Pucci

. District 4 - Jennifer Roeser

. District 5 - Matt Kingsley

FORM OF GOVERNMENT: General Law

INYO' County seat, lndependence. Created March 22, 1866. This county derived its name {rom the lndian name for the
mountains in its area. The meaning of the word inyo is "dwelling place of the great spirit."

https ://www.cou nties. org/cou nty-profi le/inyo-cou nty 1t1



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Information Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Scott Armstrong
 
SUBJECT:  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board modify the amount authorized in the agreement between the County of Inyo and Ultra Link 
Cabling Systems, Inc., of Auburn, CA, increasing the agreement amount not to exceed $220,000, and authorize 
the Public Works Director or the Information Services Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This request is to increase the agreement amount approved by your Board on January 19, 2021, for network 
infrastructure cabling in the Consolidated Office Building to include additional, needed network connections that 
were identified during the construction project.  As inside construction work proceeded, we identified several 
office locations that needed network cabling installed as a result of changes in the use of employee workspaces 
and a few mismatches in plan drawings.  The requested increase will cover the current three Change Orders plus 
an expected Change Order to install additional cabling.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
On January 19, 2021, your Board waived the competitive bidding requirement, then ratified and approved the 
agreement between the County of Inyo and Ultra Link Cabling Systems, Inc., of Auburn, CA, under the California 
Multiple Award Schedule No. 3-18-70-1981D for the provision of network cabling infrastructure installation in an 
amount not to exceed $195,000 for the period of January 20, 2021 through June 30, 2021.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve this request, resulting in several locations in the Consolidated Office 
Building having limited network connectivity, making it difficult for some employees to do their jobs effectively.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
The cost of the additional network cabling infrastructure installation will be paid from the FY2020-2021 Budget 
011809 Consolidated Office Building, Object Code 5700, Construction in Progress.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. County of Inyo New Building Cabling Change Order #1
2. County of Inyo New Building Cabling Change Order #2
3. County of Inyo New Building Cabling Change Order #3
4. Ultralink-Inyo Cabling Project Contract with signatures
5. County of Inyo New Building cabling 
6. Ultra Link California Multiple Award Schedule 3-18-70-1981D
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 4/13/2021
Scott Armstrong Approved - 4/13/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 4/13/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 4/14/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 4/20/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 4/20/2021



875 Nevada Street  Auburn, CA 95603
(530) 887-2370 ∙ (530) 887-2374 fax

www.ultralinkinc.com
CSL# 644630

                                                                                                 

February 23, 2021
                 
                          County of Inyo

1360 Main Street
Bishop Ca 93514

CMAS# 3-18-70-1981D
GSA Sch No. GS-35F-0505U
Project: New County Office location
Project Description: Network cabling Change order #1

 Provide and install (24) new category 6 CMR cabling drops into (6) locations 
for network voice and data connectivity.

 Install 40’ of ladder racking in the server room w/hardware.

 All cables are to run back to the MDF location in room 225.

 All cables are to terminate into modular jacks that insert into patch 
panels.

 All cabling will be supported above the T-Bar ceilings using J-hooks/ bridal 
rings.

 All cable is to be installed in a professional manner utilizing all 
applicable county, state, federal, and manufacture codes and procedures.

 Label, test and certify all installed cables.

Labor/Materials 
5,400 Cat 6 CMR Cable Blue Commscope CS34R 

Blue/TE620R-BL02
1,360.21

4 Chatsworth ladder Racking 11250-712   380.00
1 Horizontal Wire managers Commscope 

1375158-1
   51.32 

1 48 port patch panels Frames Commscope 
CPP-UDDM-SL-2U-48

   92.12

48 1375055-6/USL600 Blue Cat 6 Commscope 
Jacks

  398.40

6 Face Plates Commscope 1-2111011-3 4 port 
white 

    7.74

3 Top plates 10595-712   117.00
3 Wall brackets 11421-712    81.00
2 90 brackets 11302-701    24.00

Total Materials   2,511.79
Tax 7.75%     194.66

Total Labor/Travel/Per diem   4,176.00
Total Quote   6,882.45

 There are no subcontractors for this project.

Dan Martinez

http://www.ultralinkinc.com/


875 Nevada Street  Auburn, CA 95603
(530) 887-2370 ∙ (530) 887-2374 fax

www.ultralinkinc.com
CSL# 644630

                                                                                                 

March 9, 2021
                 
                          County of Inyo

1360 Main Street
Bishop Ca 93514

CMAS# 3-18-70-1981D
GSA Sch No. GS-35F-0505U
Project: New County Office location
Project Description: Network cabling Change order #2

 Provide and install (26) new category 6 CMR cabling drops into (13) 
locations for network voice and data connectivity.

 Provide and install (8) new category 6 CMR cabling drops into (1) location 
in room 156.

 Move cables from room 100 to room 102. (total 4 cables)

 All cables are to terminate into modular jacks that insert into patch 
panels.

 All cabling will be supported above the T-Bar ceilings using J-hooks/ bridal 
rings.

 All cable is to be installed in a professional manner utilizing all 
applicable county, state, federal, and manufacture codes and procedures.

 Label, test and certify all installed cables.

Labor/Materials 
7,650 Cat 6 CMR Cable Blue Commscope CS34R 

Blue/TE620R-BL02
1,926.96

1 Horizontal Wire managers Commscope 
1375158-1

   51.32 

1 48 port patch panels Frames Commscope 
CPP-UDDM-SL-2U-48

   92.12

64 1375055-6/USL600 Blue Cat 6 Commscope 
Jacks

  531.20

14 Face Plates Commscope 1-2111011-3 4 port 
white 

18.06

Total Materials   2,619.66
Tax 7.75%     189.93

Total Labor/Travel/Per diem   4,800.00
Total Quote   7,609.59

 There are no subcontractors for this project.

Dan Martinez

http://www.ultralinkinc.com/


875 Nevada Street  Auburn, CA 95603
(530) 887-2370 ∙ (530) 887-2374 fax

www.ultralinkinc.com
CSL# 644630

                                                                                                 
April 8, 2021

                 
                          County of Inyo

1360 Main Street
Bishop Ca 93514

CMAS# 3-18-70-1981D
GSA Sch No. GS-35F-0505U
Project: New County Office location
Project Description: Network cabling Change order #3

 Provide and install (18) new category 6 CMR cabling drops into (8) locations 
for network voice and data connectivity. (rooms 147,163,122,227 and space 
between 262 & 263)

 All cables are to terminate into modular jacks that insert into patch 
panels.

 All cabling will be supported above the T-Bar ceilings using J-hooks/ bridal 
rings.

 All cable is to be installed in a professional manner utilizing all 
applicable county, state, federal, and manufacture codes and procedures.

 Label, test and certify all installed cables.

Labor/Materials 
3,675 Cat 6 CMR Cable Blue Commscope CS34R 

Blue/TE620R-BL02
  925.70

1 Horizontal Wire managers Commscope 
1375158-1

   51.32 

1 48 port patch panels Frames Commscope 
CPP-UDDM-SL-2U-48

   92.12

36 1375055-6/USL600 Blue Cat 6 Commscope 
Jacks

  298.80

8 Face Plates Commscope 1-2111011-3 4 port 
white 

  103.20

Total Materials   1,471.14
Tax 7.75%     114.01

Total Labor/Travel/Per diem   3,300.00
Total Quote   4,885.15

 There are no subcontractors for this project.

Dan Martinez

http://www.ultralinkinc.com/


 County of Inyo Standard Public Works Contract - No. 148 
 (Independent Contractor – Lump Sum) 
 Page 1 of 9   07/26/2019 

                            
                                        

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND _Ultralink Cabling Systems, Inc._ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF network cabling infrastructure installation SERVICES 
 

 
 INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for the 
network cabling infrastructure installation services of  Ultralink Cabling Systems, Inc. of Auburn, 
California hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, 
terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, those services and work set forth in Attachment A, 
attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.   
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 
 
2. TERM. 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall be from January 20, 2021 to June 30, 2021  unless sooner 
terminated as provided below. 
 
3. CONSIDERATION. 
 

A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor the sum total not to exceed  One hundred 
ninety-five thousand Dollars and zero cents ($195,000) for performance of all of the services and completion 
of all of the work described in Attachment A including any minor unexpected cost adjustments that may be 
required. 
 B. Travel and Per Diem.  Contractor will be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per diem 
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work under this Agreement as set forth in Attachment A.   
 C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, 
wages, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor 
shall not be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance 
benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other 
paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit Upon Amount Payable Under Agreement.  The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for all services and work to be performed under this Agreement shall not exceed One 
hundred ninety-five thousand Dollars and zero cents (($195,000) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). 
 County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for 
services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit. 
 E. Billing and Payment.  Contractor shall submit to the County, upon completion of all services 
and work set forth in Attachment A, an itemized statement of all services and work performed by Contractor 
pursuant to this Agreement.  This statement will identify the date on which the services were performed and 
describe the nature of the services and work which was performed on each day.  Upon receipt of the 
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the 
month. 
 



 County of Inyo Standard Public Works Contract - No. 148 
 (Independent Contractor – Lump Sum) 
 Page 2 of 9   07/26/2019 

                            
                                        

 F. Federal and State Taxes.   
 
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal 
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 
  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or 
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability 
for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
  (4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments 
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the 
California State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to 
the County an  Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 
 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 
 
 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work will require a 
varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to ensure 
that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be performed within the time 
frame set forth by County. 
 
5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 
 
 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal 
governments for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured 
by Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be 
required.  Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, 
and permits in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, 
driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, 
and permits will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor 
will provide County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, 
certificates and permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there 
is a dispute between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to 
perform the services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for 
purposes of this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 
 
 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 
 
 
 

http://www.sam.gov/


 County of Inyo Standard Public Works Contract - No. 148 
 (Independent Contractor – Lump Sum) 
 Page 3 of 9   07/26/2019 

                            
                                        

 
7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 A. Personal Property of  County.  Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective 
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. 
 Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-
visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination 
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the 
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 
8. INSURANCE. 
 

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 
and amount specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment. 
 
9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 
 
 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the County is to be 
considered an employee of Contractor.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement 
shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship 
or a joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 
 
 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 
 
10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  



 County of Inyo Standard Public Works Contract - No. 148 
 (Independent Contractor – Lump Sum) 
 Page 4 of 9   07/26/2019 

                            
                                        

Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion 
of this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. PREVAILING WAGE.   
 
 Pursuant to Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code, Contractor agrees to comply with the 
Department of Industrial Relations regulations, to which this Contract is subject, the prevailing wage per 
diem rates in Inyo County have been determined by the Director of the State Department of Industrial 
Relations. These wage rates appear in the Department publication entitled "General Prevailing Wage 
Rates," in effect at the time the project is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which have been 
predetermined and are on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not 
printed in said publication. Such rates of wages are also on file with the State Department of Industrial 
Relations and the offices of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo and are available to any 
interested party upon request.  Contractor agrees to submit certified payroll to County and comply with 
the Department of Industrial Relations regulations in submitting the certified payroll. 
 
13. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap,  medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its 
agents, officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 
 
14. ASSIGNMENT. 
 
 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of County. 
 
15. DEFAULT. 
 
 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by  
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days 
written notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts 
owing to Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   
 
16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 
 
 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of 
this Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 



 County of Inyo Standard Public Works Contract - No. 148 
 (Independent Contractor – Lump Sum) 
 Page 5 of 9   07/26/2019 

                            
                                        

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  
 
 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  
 
18. CONFLICTS. 
 
 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this 
Agreement. 
 
19.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 
 
 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal 
benefit, gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of 
this  
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 
 
20. SEVERABILITY. 
 
 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 
 
21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 
 
 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources. 
 In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification 
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment). 
 
22. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 



23. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or delelions to this Agreement, including

change of iddress of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be

requiied, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first

class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

of lnyo
Department
Address
City and State

Contractor:

Address
City and State

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements othenrrise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

##

County of lnyo Standard Public Works Contract - No. 148
(lndependent Contractor - Lump Sum)

Page 6 of 9 0712612019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Ultralink Cablinq Svstems. lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF network cablinq infrastructure installation SERVICES

THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
?)z L

CONTRACTORCOUNTY OF INYO

4c-a|,+ l-. 4'*V.t-4
Type or Print Name ,/

Dated Sa.* Z0 )7'02-L

_t?kzl
Type or Print Name

Dated:

APPROVED AND LEGALIry

AS FORM:

Auditor

DAS REOUIREMENTS:

Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

2*,,*/',{-
Courff Risk u^nY*

County of lnyo Standard Public Works Contract - No. 148
(lndependent Contractor - Lump Sum)

Page 7 of 9 0712612A19



 County of Inyo Standard Public Works Contract - No. 148 
 (Independent Contractor – Lump Sum) 
 Page 8 of 9   07/26/2019 

                            
                                        

  
ATTACHMENT A 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND _Ultralink Cabling Systems, Inc._ 
FOR THE PROVISION OF network cabling infrastructure installation SERVICES 

  
 

TERM: 
 
 
         FROM: January 20, 2021    TO: June 30, 2021 
 

 
SCOPE OF WORK:  

 
SEE ATTACHMENT “A-1” 



A- UHRtn LINK
Cabling Systeffis,lnc.

January 5, 202L

Courtty of Inyo
1360 Main Street
Bishop Ca 93514

CMAS# 3-18-70-1981D
egA Sch No. GS-35E-0505U

Project: NEn County Office location
Project Deacription: Natwork cabling

Provide and install (6?2) new category 6 CllR cabling drops into (215)
locations for network voice and data connectivity. (4 drops in 5'7 locations,
3 drops in 128 locations, 2 cirops in 60 localions)

Provide and install (13) new category 6 CMR cabling drops into (1.3)
locati,rns for wireless nelwork access points.

Provide, inslall and leave coiled in the ceiling {40} spare cables in
specified locations Lhrouqhout the building,

a AII cables are to run back to the MDF l.ocation in room 225

Labe.I a1l drops per the customers speciflcations.

Customer will provide all hardware and racks for the MDF cable terminations

Al-l cabl-es are to terminate into modular jacks that j-nsert into patch
panels.

I AII cabling wil-l be supported above the T-Bar ceilings using J-hooks/ bridal
rings ,

Al1 cable is to be installed in a professionai manner utilizing all
applicable counLy, state, federal, and manufaclure codes and procedures

Label, test and cerEify all instail"ed cables. Provide test resul-ts for al-1
cabling clrops j-n electronic format after completion of the project.

ll75 Nevuda Strect Auburn. (-A 9560.1
(5,10) lt87-2170' i5l0) 8fl7-!37.| lilr

rvrvrr. u I tral i nk i ne, ctl m

cSt.# 6446J0

a

a

a

a

a

o

a

a



 County of Inyo Standard Public Works Contract - No. 148 
 (Independent Contractor – Lump Sum) 
 Page 9 of 9   07/26/2019 

                            
                                        

 
ATTACHMENT  B 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND _Ultralink Cabling Systems, Inc._ 
FOR THE PROVISION OF network cabling infrastructure installation SERVICES 

  
 

TERM: 
 
 
         FROM: January 20, 2021    TO: June 30, 2021 
 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
 



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1e 
Nonprofessional Services 

Page  

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or 
employees.  
 
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  
 
Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL 
on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, 
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $2,000,000 per 
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers 
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of 
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or 
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage 
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad 
as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 
forms if later revisions used).  
 
Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any 
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no 
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  
 
Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying that 
contractor has no employees. 
 
If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher 
limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  
 
OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  
 
Primary Coverage  
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it.  
 
Notice of Cancellation  



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1e 
Nonprofessional Services 

Page  

Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except 
with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation  
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer 
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under 
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County 
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions  
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may 
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide, 
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named 
insured or Inyo County.  
 
Acceptability of Insurers  
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a 
current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies  
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the 

beginning of contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five 

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy 

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must 
purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of 
contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage  
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all 
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting 
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the 
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure 
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies 
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at 
any time.  
 
Subcontractors  
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional 
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1e 
Nonprofessional Services 

Page  

Special Risks or Circumstances  
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 

-end- 



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

1/15/2021

InterWest Insurance Services, LLC
5 Sierra Gate Plaza
Roseville CA 95678

Shawnette Dunson
916-784-1008 916-784-8116

License#: 0B01094 Ohio Security Insurance Co 24082
ULTRLIN-01 Insurance Co. of the West 27847

Ultra Link Cabling Systems, Inc.
875 Nevada Street
Auburn CA 95603

1394466497

A X 1,000,000
X 500,000

15,000

1,000,000

2,000,000
X

Y Y BKS56556553 6/1/2020 6/1/2021

2,000,000

A 1,000,000

X

X X

Y Y BAS56556553 6/1/2020 6/1/2021

B XY WSA504842401 5/28/2020 5/28/2021

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Additional Insured status applies to requested entities if required by written contract per the attached policy form/endorsement(s). Waiver of subrogation applies
to requested entities if required by written contract per the attached policy form/endorsement(s). Primary non-contributory applies to requested entities if
required by written contract per the attached policy form/endorsement(s).

Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers

Inyo County
163 May St.
Bishop CA 93514



























46
10

2
of

COMMERCIAL AUTO
AC 85 43 06 18

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CALIFORNIA BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE
ENHANCEMENT ENDORSEMENT

2018 Liberty Mutual Insurance
AC 85 43 06 18 Page 1 of 7Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage afforded by this endorsement, the provisions of the policy apply unless modified
by the endorsement.
If the policy to which this endorsement is attached also contains a Business Auto Coverage Enhancement
Endorsement with a specific state named in the title, this endorsement does not apply to vehicles garaged in
that specified state.

COVERAGE INDEX

SUBJECT PROVISION NUMBER

ACCIDENTAL AIRBAG DEPLOYMENT 12
ADDITIONAL INSURED BY CONTRACT, AGREEMENT OR PERMIT 3
AMENDED DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF ACCIDENT, CLAIM, SUIT OR LOSS 20
AMENDED FELLOW EMPLOYEE EXCLUSION 5
AUDIO, VISUAL AND DATA ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT COVERAGE 14
BODILY INJURY REDEFINED 24
EMPLOYEES AS INSUREDS (Including Employee Hired Auto) 2
EXTRA EXPENSE - BROADENED COVERAGE 10
GLASS REPAIR - WAIVER OF DEDUCTIBLE 16
HIRED AUTO COVERAGE TERRITORY 22
HIRED AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE (Including Employee Hired Auto) 6
LOAN / LEASE GAP (Coverage Not Available In New York) 15
NEWLY FORMED OR ACQUIRED SUBSIDIARIES 1
PARKED AUTO COLLISION COVERAGE (WAIVER OF DEDUCTIBLE) 17
PERSONAL EFFECTS COVERAGE 11
PHYSICAL DAMAGE - ADDITIONAL TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE COVERAGE 8
PHYSICAL DAMAGE DEDUCTIBLE - VEHICLE TRACKING SYSTEM 13
PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY - WRITTEN CONTRACT OR WRITTEN AGREEMENT 23
RENTAL REIMBURSEMENT 9
SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS 4
TOWING AND LABOR 7
TWO OR MORE DEDUCTIBLES 18
UNINTENTIONAL FAILURE TO DISCLOSE HAZARDS 19
WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US 21

SECTION II - LIABILITY COVERAGE is amended as follows:
1. NEWLY FORMED OR ACQUIRED SUBSIDIARIES

SECTION II - LIABILITY COVERAGE, Paragraph A.1. Who Is An Insured is amended to include the
following as an "insured":
d. Any legally incorporated subsidiary of which you own more than 50 percent interest during the

policy period. Coverage is afforded only for 90 days from the date of acquisition or formation.
However, "insured" does not include any organization that:
(1) Is a partnership or joint venture; or
(2) Is an "insured" under any other automobile policy except a policy written specificall y to apply

in excess of this policy; or
(3) Has exhausted its Limit of Insurance or had its policy terminated under any other automobile

policy.



47
10

2
of

56
55

65
53

00
18

85
27

0

2018 Liberty Mutual Insurance
AC 85 43 06 18 Page 2 of 7Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Coverage under this provision d. does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" that
occurred before you acquired or formed the organization.

2. EMPLOYEES AS INSUREDS
SECTION II - LIABILITY COVERAGE, Paragraph A.1. Who Is An Insured is amended to include the
following as an "insured":
e. Any "employee" of yours while using a covered "auto" you do not own, hire or borrow but only for

acts within the scope of their employment by you. Insurance provided by this endorsement is
excess over any other insurance available to any "employee".

f. Any "employee" of yours while operating an "auto" hired or borrowed under a written contract or
agreement in that "employee’s" name, with your permission, while performing duties related to
the conduct of your business and within the scope of their employment. Insurance provided by this
endorsement is excess over any other insurance available to the "employee".

3. ADDITIONAL INSURED BY CONTRACT, AGREEMENT OR PERMIT
SECTION II - LIABILITY COVERAGE, Paragraph A.1. Who Is An Insured is amended to include the
following as an "insured":
g. Any person or organization with respect to the operation, maintenance or use of a covered "auto",

provided that you and such person or organization have agreed in a written contract, written
agreement, or permit issued to you by governmental or public authority, to add such person, or
organization, or governmental or public authority to this policy as an "insured".
However, such person or organization is an "insured":
(1) Only with respect to the operation, maintenance or use of a covered "auto";
(2) Only for "bodily injury" or "property damage" caused by an "accident" which takes place after

you executed the written contract or written agreement, or the permit has been issued to you;
and

(3) Only for the duration of that contract, agreement or permit.
The "insured" is required to submit a claim to any other insurer to which coverage could apply for
defense and indemnity. Unless the "insured" has agreed in writing to primary noncontributory
wording per enhancement number 24, this policy is excess over any other collectible insurance.

4. SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS
SECTION II - LIABILITY COVERAGE, Coverage Extensions, 2.a. Supplementary Payments , Paragraphs
(2) and (4) are replaced by the following:
(2) Up to $3,000 for cost of bail bonds (including bonds for related traffic violations ) required because

of an "accident" we cover. We do not have to furnish these bonds.
(4) All reasonable expenses incurred by the "insured" at our request, including actual loss of earnings

up to $500 a day because of time off from work.
5. AMENDED FELLOW EMPLOYEE EXCLUSION

In those jurisdictions where, by law, fellow "employees" are not entitled to the protection afforded to
the employer by the workers compensation exclusivity rule, or similar protection, the following provi-
sion is added:
SECTION II - LIABILITY , Exclusion B.5. Fellow Employee does not apply if the "bodily injury" results
from the use of a covered "auto" you own or hire if you have workers compensation insurance in force
for all of your "employees" at the time of "loss".
This coverage is excess over any other collectible insurance.

SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE is amended as follows:
6. HIRED AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE

Paragraph A.4. Coverage Extensions of SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, is amended by
adding the following:
If hired "autos" are covered "autos" for Liability Coverage, and if Comprehensive, Specified Causes of
Loss or Collision coverage are provided under the Business Auto Coverage Form for any "auto" you
own, then the Physical Damage coverages provided are extended to "autos":



48
10

2
of

2018 Liberty Mutual Insurance
AC 85 43 06 18 Page 3 of 7Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

a. You hire, rent or borrow; or
b. Your "employee" hires or rents under a written contract or agreement in that "employee’s" name,

but only if the damage occurs while the vehicle is being used in the conduct of your business,
subject to the following limit and deductible:
a. The most we will pay for "loss" in any one "accident" or "loss" is the smallest of:

(1) $50,000; or
(2) The actual cash value of the damaged or stolen property as of the time of the "loss"; or
(3) The cost of repairing or replacing the damaged or stolen property with other property of like

kind and quality, minus a deductible.
b. The deductible will be equal to the largest deductible applicable to any owned "auto" for that

coverage.
c. Subject to the limit, deductible and excess provisions described in this provision, we will provide

coverage equal to the broadest coverage applicable to any covered "auto" you own.
d. Subject to a maximum of $1,000 per "accident", we will also cover the actual loss of use of the

hired "auto" if it results from an "accident", you are legally liable and the lessor incurs an actual
financial loss.

e. This coverage extension does not apply to:
(1) Any "auto" that is hired, rented or borrowed with a driver; or
(2) Any "auto" that is hired, rented or borrowed from your "employee" or any member of your

"employee’s" household.
Coverage provided under this extension is excess over any other collectible insurance available at the
time of "loss".

7. TOWING AND LABOR
SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, Paragraph A.2. Towing , is amended by the addition of
the following:
We will pay towing and labor costs incurred, up to the limits shown below, each time a covered "auto"
classified and rated as a private passenger type, "light truck" or "medium truck" is disabled:
a. For private passenger type vehicles, we will pay up to $75 per disablement.
b. For "light trucks", we will pay up to $75 per disablement. "Light trucks" are trucks that have a gross

vehicle weight (GVW) of 10,000 pounds or less.
c. For "medium trucks", we will pay up to $150 per disablement. "Medium trucks" are trucks that

have a gross vehicle weight (GVW) of 10,001 - 20,000 pounds.
However, the labor must be performed at the place of disablement.

8. PHYSICAL DAMAGE - ADDITIONAL TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE COVERAGE
Paragraph A.4.a. Coverage Extensions, Transportation Expenses of SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE
COVERAGE, is amended to provide a limit of $50 per day and a maximum limit of $1,500.

9. RENTAL REIMBURSEMENT
SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, A. Coverage , is amended by adding the following:
a. We will pay up to $75 per day for rental reimbursement expenses incurred by you for the rental of

an "auto" because of "accident" or "loss", to an "auto" for which we also pay a "loss" under
Comprehensive, Specified Causes of Loss or Collision Coverages. We will pay only for those ex-
penses incurred after the first 24 hours following the "accident" or "loss" to the covered "auto."

b. Rental Reimbursement requires the rental of a comparable or lesser vehicle, which in many cases
may be substantially less than $75 per day, and will only be allowed for the period of time it should
take to repair or replace the vehicle with reasonable speed and similar quality, up to a maximum of
30 days.

c. We will also pay up to $500 for reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by you to remove and
replace your tools and equipment from the covered "auto". This limit is excess over any other
collectible insurance.



49
10

2
of

56
55

65
53

00
18

85
27

0

2018 Liberty Mutual Insurance
AC 85 43 06 18 Page 4 of 7Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

d. This coverage does not apply unless you have a business necessity that other "autos" available for
your use and operation cannot fill.

e. If "loss" results from the total theft of a covered "auto" of the private passenger type, we will pay
under this coverage only that amount of your rental reimbursement expenses which is not already
provided under Paragraph 4. Coverage Extension .

f. No deductible applies to this coverage.
g. The insurance provided under this extension is excess over any other collectible insurance.
If this policy also provides Rental Reimbursement Coverage you purchased, the coverage provided by
this Enhancement Endorsement is in addition to the coverage you purchased.
For the purposes of this endorsement provision, materials and equipment do not include "personal
effects" as defined in provision 11.B.

10. EXTRA EXPENSE - BROADENED COVERAGE
Under SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, A. Coverage , we will pay for the expense of
returning a stolen covered "auto" to you. The maximum amount we will pay is $1,000.

11. PERSONAL EFFECTS COVERAGE
A. SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, A. Coverage , is amended by adding the following:

If you have purchased Comprehensive Coverage on this policy for an "auto" you own and that
"auto" is stolen, we will pay, without application of a deductible, up to $600 for "personal effects"
stolen with the "auto."
The insurance provided under this provision is excess over any other collectible insurance.

B. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS is amended by adding the following:
For the purposes of this provision, "personal effects" mean tangible property that is worn or carried
by an "insured." "Personal effects" does not include tools, equipment, jewelry, money or securi-
ties.

12. ACCIDENTAL AIRBAG DEPLOYMENT
SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, B. Exclusions is amended by adding the following:
If you have purchased Comprehensive or Collision Coverage under this policy, the exclusion for "loss"
relating to mechanical breakdown does not apply to the accidental discharge of an airbag.
Any insurance we provide shall be excess over any other collectible insurance or reimbursement by
manufacturer’s warranty. However, we agree to pay any deductible applicable to the other coverage or
warranty.

13. PHYSICAL DAMAGE DEDUCTIBLE - VEHICLE TRACKING SYSTEM
SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, D. Deductible, is amended by adding the following:
Any Comprehensive Deductible shown in the Declarations will be reduced by 50% for any "loss"
caused by theft if the vehicle is equipped with a vehicle tracking device such as a radio tracking device
or a global position device and that device was the method of recovery of the vehicle.

14. AUDIO, VISUAL AND DATA ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT COVERAGE
SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, B. Exclusions , Paragraph a. of the exception to exclu-
sions 4.c. and 4.d. is deleted and replaced with the following:
Exclusions 4.c. and 4.d. do not apply to:
a. Electronic equipment that receives or transmits audio, visual or data signals, whether or not de-

signed solely for the reproduction of sound, if the equipment is:
(1) Permanently installed in the covered "auto" at the time of the "loss" or removable from a

housing unit that is permanently installed in the covered "auto"; and
(2) Designed to be solely operated by use from the power from the "auto’s" electrical system; and
(3) Physical damage coverages are provided for the covered "auto".
If the "loss" occurs solely to audio, visual or data electronic equipment or accessories used with
this equipment, then our obligation to pay for, repair, return or replace damaged or stolen property
will be reduced by a $100 deductible.



50
10

2
of

2018 Liberty Mutual Insurance
AC 85 43 06 18 Page 5 of 7Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

15. LOAN / LEASE GAP COVERAGE (Not Applicable In New York)
A. Paragraph C. Limit Of Insurance of SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE is amended by

adding the following:
The most we will pay for a "total loss" to a covered "auto" owned by or leased to you in any one
"accident" is the greater of the:
1. Balance due under the terms of the loan or lease to which the damaged covered "auto" is

subject at the time of the "loss" less the amount of:
a. Overdue payments and financial penalties associated with those payments as of the date

of the "loss";
b. Financial penalties imposed under a lease due to high mileage, excessive use or abnormal

wear and tear;
c. Costs for extended warranties, Credit Life Insurance, Health, Accident or Disability Insur-

ance purchased with the loan or lease;
d. Transfer or rollover balances from previous loans or leases;
e. Final payment due under a "Balloon Loan";
f. The dollar amount of any unrepaired damage which occurred prior to the "total loss" of a

covered "auto";
g. Security deposits not refunded by a lessor;
h. All refunds payable or paid to you as a result of the early termination of a lease agreement

or as a result of the early termination of any warranty or extended service agreement on a
covered "auto";

i. Any amount representing taxes;
j. Loan or lease termination fees; or

2. The actual cash value of the damage or stolen property as of the time of the "loss".
An adjustment for depreciation and physical condition will be made in determining the actual
cash value at the time of the "loss". This adjustment is not applicable in Texas.

B. Additional Conditions
This coverage applies only to the original loan for which the covered "auto" that incurred the
"loss" serves as collateral, or lease written on the covered "auto" that incurred the "loss".

C. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS is changed by adding the following:
As used in this endorsement provision, the following definitions apply:
"Total loss" means a "loss" in which the cost of repairs plus the salvage value exceeds the actual
cash value.
A "balloon loan" is one with periodic payments that are insufficient to repay the balance over the
term of the loan, thereby requiring a large final payment.

16. GLASS REPAIR - WAIVER OF DEDUCTIBLE
Paragraph D. Deductible of SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE is amended by the addition
of the following:
No deductible applies to glass damage if the glass is repaired rather than replaced.

17. PARKED AUTO COLLISION COVERAGE (WAIVER OF DEDUCTIBLE)
Paragraph D. Deductible of SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE is amended by the addition
of the following:
The deductible does not apply to "loss" caused by collision to such covered "auto" of the private
passenger type or light weight truck with a gross vehicle weight of 10,000 lbs. or less as defined by the
manufacturer as maximum loaded weight the "auto" is designed to carry while it is:
a. In the charge of an "insured";
b. Legally parked; and
c. Unoccupied.



51
10

2
of

56
55

65
53

00
18

85
27

0

2018 Liberty Mutual Insurance
AC 85 43 06 18 Page 6 of 7Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

The "loss" must be reported to the police authorities within 24 hours of known damage.
The total amount of the damage to the covered "auto" must exceed the deductible shown in the
Declarations.
This provision does not apply to any "loss" if the covered "auto" is in the charge of any person or
organization engaged in the automobile business.

18. TWO OR MORE DEDUCTIBLES
Under SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, if two or more company policies or coverage
forms apply to the same "accident", the following applies to Paragraph D. Deductible :
a. If the applicable Business Auto deductible is the smaller (or smallest) deductible, it will be waived;

or
b. If the applicable Business Auto deductible is not the smaller (or smallest) deductible , it will be

reduced by the amount of the smaller (or smallest) deductible; or
c. If the "loss" involves two or more Business Auto coverage forms or policies, the smaller (or

smallest) deductible will be waived.
For the purpose of this endorsement, company means any company that is part of the Liberty Mutual
Group.

SECTION IV - BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS is amended as follows:
19. UNINTENTIONAL FAILURE TO DISCLOSE HAZARDS

SECTION IV- BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS , Paragraph B.2. is amended by adding the following:
If you unintentionally fail to disclose any hazards, exposures or material facts existing as of the incep-
tion date or renewal date of the Business Auto Coverage Form, the coverage afforded by this policy will
not be prejudiced.
However, you must report the undisclosed hazard of exposure as soon as practicable after its discovery,
and we have the right to collect additional premium for any such hazard or exposure.

20. AMENDED DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF ACCIDENT, CLAIM, SUIT OR LOSS
SECTION IV - BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS , Paragraph A.2.a. is replaced in its entirety by the follow-
ing:
a. In the event of "accident", claim, "suit" or "loss", you must promptly notify us when it is known to:

(1) You, if you are an individual;
(2) A partner, if you are a partnership;
(3) Member, if you are a limited liability company;
(4) An executive officer or the "employee" designated by the Named Insured to give such notice, if

you are a corporation.
To the extent possible, notice to us should include:

(a) How, when and where the "accident" or "loss" took place;
(b) The "insured’s" name and address; and
(c) The names and addresses of any injured persons and witnesses.

21. WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US
SECTION IV - BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS , Paragraph A.5. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against
Others To Us , is amended by the addition of the following:
If the person or organization has in a written agreement waived those rights before an "accident" or
"loss", our rights are waived also.

22. HIRED AUTO COVERAGE TERRITORY
SECTION IV - BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS , Paragraph B.7. Policy Period, Coverage Territory , is
amended by the addition of the following:
f. For "autos" hired 30 days or less, the coverage territory is anywhere in the world, provided that the

"insured’s" responsibility to pay for damages is determined in a "suit", on the merits, in the United
States, the territories and possessions of the United States of America, Puerto Rico or Canada or in
a settlement we agree to.



52
10

2
of

2018 Liberty Mutual Insurance
AC 85 43 06 18 Page 7 of 7Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

This extension of coverage does not apply to an "auto" hired, leased, rented or borrowed with a
driver.

23. PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTING IF REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR WRITTEN AGREE-
MENT
The following is added to SECTION IV - BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS, General Conditions, B.5. Other
Insurance and supersedes any provision to the contrary:
This Coverage Form’s Covered Autos Liability Coverage is primary to and will not seek contribution
from any other insurance available to an "insured" under your policy provided that:
1. Such "insured" is a Named Insured under such other insurance; and
2. You have agreed in a written contract or written agreement that this insurance would be primary

and would not seek contribution from any other insurance available to such "insured".
SECTION V - DEFINITIONS is amended as follows:
24. BODILY INJURY REDEFINED

Under SECTION V - DEFINITIONS , Definition C. is replaced by the following:
"Bodily injury" means physical injury, sickness or disease sustained by a person, including mental
anguish, mental injury, shock, fright or death resulting from any of these at any time.



INSURED 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached and is effective on the date issued unless otherwise stated. 

(The information below is required only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to preparation of the policy.)  

Endorsement Effective  Policy No.  Endorsement No.  

Insured  Premium $  

Insurance Company  

 Countersigned By 

WSA 5048424 01      05/28/2020

INSURANCE COMPANY OF THE WEST                     

ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS INC     INCL.

   

WC 99 06 34 
(Ed. 8-00) 

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY WC 99 06 34 
 
 (Ed. 8-00) 
 
 

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT - BLANKET 

 

 
We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy.  We will not enforce 
our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule.  (This agreement applies only to the extent that 
you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us). 
 

The additional premium for this endorsement shall be  % of the total California Workers’ Compensation premium 
otherwise due. 
 

Schedule 
 
 

 Person or Organization   Job Description  

 

  2

ANY PERSON / ORG    ALL CA OPERATIONS   
WHEN REQUIRED BY    
WRITTEN CONTRACT    

                    
                    

                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        



875 Nevada Street  Auburn, CA 95603
(530) 887-2370 ∙ (530) 887-2374 fax

www.ultralinkinc.com
CSL# 644630

                                                                                                 

January 5, 2021
                 
                          County of Inyo

1360 Main Street
Bishop Ca 93514

CMAS# 3-18-70-1981D
GSA Sch No. GS-35F-0505U

Project: New County Office location
Project Description: Network cabling

 Provide and install (672) new category 6 CMR cabling drops into (215) 
locations for network voice and data connectivity. (4 drops in 57 locations, 
3 drops in 128 locations, 2 drops in 60 locations)

 Provide and install (13) new category 6 CMR cabling drops into (13) 
locations for wireless network access points.

 Provide, install and leave coiled in the ceiling (40) spare cables in 
specified locations throughout the building.

 All cables are to run back to the MDF location in room 225.

 Label all drops per the customers specifications.

 Customer will provide all hardware and racks for the MDF cable terminations.

 All cables are to terminate into modular jacks that insert into patch 
panels.

 All cabling will be supported above the T-Bar ceilings using J-hooks/ bridal 
rings.

 All cable is to be installed in a professional manner utilizing all 
applicable county, state, federal, and manufacture codes and procedures.

 Label, test and certify all installed cables. Provide test results for all 
cabling drops in electronic format after completion of the project.

http://www.ultralinkinc.com/


875 Nevada Street  Auburn, CA 95603
(530) 887-2370 ∙ (530) 887-2374 fax

www.ultralinkinc.com
CSL# 644630

                      Labor/Materials County of Inyo
164,000’ Cat 6 CMR Cable Blue Commscope CS34R 

Blue/TE620R-BL02
41309.96

4 Vertical wire mangers double sided 
Commscope 1375257-1

700

16 Horizontal Wire managers Commscope 
1375158-1

821.16

16 48 port patch panels Frames Commscope 
CPP-UDDM-SL-2U-48

1473.92

1450 1375055-6/USL600 Blue Cat 6 Commscope 
Jacks

12035.00

245 Face Plates Commscope 1-2111011-3 4 port 
white 

316.05

1lot Ceiling support hardware 950.00
1Lot Misc. Consumables, Labels, Velcro etc. 600.00
1lot Conduit sleeves 200.00

Total Materials  58,406.09
Tax 7.75%   4,526.47

Total Labor/Travel/Per diem 128,560.00
Total Quote 191,492.56

 There are no subcontractors for this project.

 Ultra Link Cabling Systems Inc. will provide a 25-year Manufacturer warranty 
on this project starting from the completion date. See Commscope warranty 
PDF for details.

Dan Martinez

.

http://www.ultralinkinc.com/


 

Procurement  Di v is ion  
707 Third Street, 2nd Floor, MS #2-202 
West Sacramento, CA  95605-2811 

 
 

State of California 

MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE 
 

Ultra Link Cabling Systems, Inc. 
 

CMAS NUMBER: 3-19-70-1981E 
SUPPLEMENT NO.: N/A 

CMAS TERM DATES: 4/10/2019 through 7/31/2023 

CMAS CATEGORY: 
Information Technology Goods & 
Services 

APPLICABLE 
TERMS & CONDITIONS: 

March 15, 2018  

MAXIMUM ORDER LIMIT: 
State Agencies: See Purchasing 
Authority Dollar Threshold provision 
Local Government Agencies: Unlimited 

FOR USE BY: State & Local Government Agencies 

BASE GSA SCHEDULE NO.: GS-35F-0505U 

BASE SCHEDULE HOLDER: Vector Resources, Inc. 
 

This CMAS provides for the purchase, warranty and installation of 
hardware.  (See page 2 for the specific brands and restrictions 
applicable to this CMAS.) 

 

 

NOTICE:  Products and/or services on this CMAS may be available on a Mandatory Statewide Contracts.  If this 
is the case, the use of this CMAS is restricted unless the State agency has an approved exemption as explained 
in the Statewide Contract User Instructions.  Information regarding Statewide Contracts can be obtained at the 
website:  www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/pd/contracts/contractindexlisting.pdf. This requirement is not applicable to 
local government entities. 
 
The most current Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions, CMAS Terms and Conditions, and products and/or 
services are included herein.  All purchase orders issued by State agencies under this CMAS shall incorporate 
these Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions and CMAS Terms and Conditions dated March 15, 2018. 
 
Agency non-compliance with the requirements of this CMAS may result in the loss of delegated authority to use 
the CMAS program. 
 
CMAS contractor non-compliance with the requirements of this CMAS may result in termination of the CMAS. 
 
 
 
 

________________Original Signature on File______________ Effective Date:  4/10/2019 

JANNA WELK, Program Analyst, California Multiple Award Schedules Unit 
  

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/-/media/Divisions/PD/Acquisitions/CMAS/IT-CMAS-Terms-and-Conditions.ashx?la=en&hash=B41342080DE511121ECC253A04D62AC90CED6123
https://www.gsaelibrary.gsa.gov/ElibMain/contractorInfo.do?contractNumber=GS-35F-0505U&contractorName=VECTOR+RESOURCES%2C+INC.&executeQuery=YES
http://www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/pd/contracts/contractindexlisting.pdf


CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 2 

 
CMAS PRODUCT & SERVICE CODES  

 
The CMAS Product & Service Codes listed below are for 
marketing purposes only.  Review this CMAS and the 
base contract identified below for the products and/or 
services available on this CMAS. 
 
 Brand-Berk-Tek 
 Brand-Commscope 
 Cable-Telecommunication 
 Data Commun-Fiber Component 
 Data Commun-Network Mgmt 
 LAN/WAN-Wireless Network 
 Wire-Cable (Various) 
 Service-Hardware Installation 
 Service-Telecom Cabling 
 
AVAILABLE PRODUCTS AND/OR SERVICES 

 
Only products from the manufacturer(s) listed below are 
available within the scope of this CMAS: 
 
 Berk-Tek 
 Commscope 
 Corning 
 Panduit 
 
The ordering agency must verify all products and/or 
services are currently available on the base GSA 
schedule at the GSA eLibrary.  Access the GSA eLibrary 
at www.gsaelibrary.gsa.gov.  
 
EXCLUDED PRODUCTS AND/OR SERVICES 

 
Information Technology Professional Services, and 
Order-Level Materials are not available under this CMAS. 
 
CMAS BASE CONTRACT 

 
This CMAS is based on some or all of the products 
and/or services and prices from GSA Schedule No. 
GS-35F-0505U (VECTOR RESOURCES, INC.) with a 
GSA term of 8/1/2013 through 7/31/2023.   

 
Replace “Vector Resources, Inc.” with “Ultra Link 
Cabling Systems, Inc.” where “Vector Resources, 
Inc.” is referenced in the federal GSA multiple award 
Contract Terms and Conditions. 

 
ISSUE PURCHASE ORDER TO 

 
Agency purchase orders must be either mailed or faxed 
to the following: 
 
 Ultra Link Cabling Systems, Inc. 
 875 Nevada Street 
 Auburn, CA  95603 
 Attn:  Dan Martinez 
 
 Fax:  (530) 887-2374 

 

Agencies with questions regarding products and/or 
services may contact the CMAS contractor as follows: 
 
 Contact: Valerie Riley 
 Phone: (530) 887-2370, Ext. 104 
 E-mail: valerie@ultralinkinc.com 

 
CALIFORNIA SELLER’S PERMIT 

 
Ultra Link Cabling Systems, Inc.’s California Seller’s 
Permit No. is 100044700.  Prior to placing an order with 
this company, agencies must verify that this permit is still 
valid at the following website: cdtfa.ca.gov/. 
 
CMAS PRICES 

 
The maximum prices allowed for the products and/or 
services available in this CMAS are those set forth in the 
base contract identified on page 2 of this CMAS. 
 
The ordering agency is encouraged to seek prices lower 
than those on this CMAS. When responding to an 
agency’s Request for Offer (RFO), the CMAS contractor 
can offer lower prices to be competitive. 
 
WARRANTY 

 
For warranties, see the federal GSA schedule and the 
CMAS Terms and Conditions, General Provisions, CMAS 
Warranty. 
 
DELIVERY 

 
30-90 days after receipt of order, or as negotiated 
between agency and CMAS contractor and included in 
the purchase order, or as otherwise stipulated in the 
contract. 
 
SHIPPING INSTRUCTIONS 

 
F.O.B. (Free On Board) Destination.  Seller pays the 
freight charges. 
 
PURCHASING AUTHORITY DOLLAR THRESHOLD 

 
Unless otherwise determined by in individual ordering 
agency purchasing authority, order limits for the purchase 
of goods and/or services is: 
 
Information Technology Goods and Services: 
$500,000 
 
No CMAS order may be executed by a State agency that 
exceeds that agency’s purchasing authority threshold. 
State agencies with approved purchasing authority, along 
with their dollar thresholds can be obtained at: 
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/Resources/Page-
Content/Procurement-Division-Resources-List-
Folder/List-of-State-Departments-with-Approved-
Purchasing-Authority. 
 
 

http://www.gsaelibrary.gsa.gov/
http://cdtfa.ca.gov/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/Resources/Page-Content/Procurement-Division-Resources-List-Folder/List-of-State-Departments-with-Approved-Purchasing-Authority
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/Resources/Page-Content/Procurement-Division-Resources-List-Folder/List-of-State-Departments-with-Approved-Purchasing-Authority
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/Resources/Page-Content/Procurement-Division-Resources-List-Folder/List-of-State-Departments-with-Approved-Purchasing-Authority
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/Resources/Page-Content/Procurement-Division-Resources-List-Folder/List-of-State-Departments-with-Approved-Purchasing-Authority


CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 3 

HOW TO USE CMAS 

 
Agencies must adhere to the detailed requirements in the 
State Contracting Manual (SCM) when using CMAS.  The 
requirements for the following bullets are in the SCM, 
Volume 2, Chapter 6 (for non-IT), the SCM, Volume 3, 
Chapter 6 (for IT), and the SCM, Volume FI$Cal, Chapter 
5 (FI$Cal): 
 

 Develop a Request for Offer, which includes a 
Scope of Work (SOW), and Bidder Declaration 
form.  For information on the Bidder Declaration 
requirements, see the SCM, Volume 2, Section 
3.5.7 and Volume 3, Section 3.4.7. 

 Search for potential CMAS contractors at 
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-
Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-
List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-
Schedules, select “Find a CMAS Contractor.” 

 Solicit offers from a minimum of 3 CMAS 
contractors including one small business and/or 
DVBE, if available, who are authorized to sell the 
products and/or services needed. 

 If soliciting offers from a certified DVBE, include the 
Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Declarations 
form (Std. 843) in the Request for Offer.  This 
declaration must be completed and returned by the 
DVBE prime contractor and/or any DVBE 
subcontractors.  (See the SCM Volumes 2, 3, and 
FI$Cal, Chapter 3). 

 This is not a bid transaction, so the small business 
preference, DVBE incentives, protest language, 
intents to award, evaluation criteria, advertising, 
etc., are not applicable. 

 If less than 3 offers are received, State agencies 
must document their file with the reasons why the 
other suppliers solicited did not respond with an 
offer. 

 Assess the offers received using best value 
methodology, with cost as one of the criteria. 

 Issue a Purchase Order to the selected CMAS 
contractor. 

 For CMAS transactions under $10,000, only one 
offer is required if the State agency can establish 
and document that the price is fair and reasonable. 
The fair and reasonable method can only be used 
for non-customizable purchases. 

 
Local governments set their own order limits, and are not 
bound by the order limits on the cover page of this CMAS. 
 
SPLITTING ORDERS 

 
Splitting orders to avoid any monetary limitations is 
prohibited. 
 
Do not circumvent normal procurement methods by 
splitting purchases into a series of delegated purchase 
orders, per Public Contract Code (PCC) § 10329. 
 

Splitting a project into small projects to avoid either fiscal 
or procedural controls is prohibited, per State 
Administrative Manual (SAM) § 4819.34. 
 
MINIMUM ORDER LIMITATION 

 
There is no minimum dollar value limitation on orders 
placed under this CMAS. 
 
ORDERING PROCEDURES 

 
1. Purchase Orders 

 
All Ordering Agency purchase order documents 
executed under this CMAS must contain the 
applicable CMAS number as show on page 1. 

 
1. State Departments: 

 
Std. 65 Purchase Documents – State 
departments not transacting in FI$Cal must use 
the Purchasing Authority Purchase Order (Std. 
65) for purchase execution. An electronic 
version of the Std. 65 is available at the DGS-
PD website at 
https://www.dgsapps.dgs.ca.gov/osp/Statewide
FormsWeb/Forms.aspx (select Standard STD 
Forms). 

 
FI$Cal Purchase Documents – State 
departments transacting in FI$Cal will follow the 
FI$Cal procurement and contracting 
procedures. 

 
2. Local Governmental Departments: 

 
Local governmental agencies may use their own 
purchase document for purchase execution. 

 
The agency is required to complete and distribute 
the purchase order.  For services, the agency shall 
modify the information contained on the order to 
include the service period (start and end date), and 
the monthly cost (or other intermittent cost), and any 
other information pertinent to the services being 
provided.  The cost for each line item should be 
included in the order, not just system totals. 

 
The contractor must immediately reject purchase 
orders that are not accurate.  Discrepancies are to 
be negotiated and incorporated into the purchase 
order prior to the products and services being 
delivered. 

 
2. Service and Delivery after CMAS Expiration 

 
The purchase order must be issued before the 
CMAS expires.  However, delivery of the products or 
completion of the services may be after the CMAS 
expires (unless otherwise specifically stated in the 
purchase order). 

 

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://www.dgsapps.dgs.ca.gov/osp/StatewideFormsWeb/Forms.aspx
https://www.dgsapps.dgs.ca.gov/osp/StatewideFormsWeb/Forms.aspx


CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 4 

3. Multiple CMAS Agreements on a Single 
Purchase Order 

 
Agencies wishing to include multiple CMAS(s) on a 
single FI$Cal purchase order must adhere to the 
following guidelines: 

 
• All CMAS must be for the same CMAS contractor. 
• The purchase order must go to one contractor 
location. 
• Write the word “CMAS” in the space usually 
reserved for the contract number. On Std. 65’s, this 
is at the top of the form. The word “CMAS” signifies 
that the purchase order contains items from multiple 
CMAS agreements. The purchasing agency may 
only use one bill code. 
• For each individual CMAS (as differentiated by 
alpha suffix), the agency must identify and group 
together the CMAS number with the line items and 
subtotal per CMAS number (do not include tax in the 
subtotal), and sequentially identify each individual 
CMAS as Sub #1, Sub #2, Sub #3, etc. This 
facilitates accurate billing of administrative fees by 
the Procurement Division. 
• The total of all items on the purchase order must 
not exceed the purchase order limit identified in the 
CMAS. 
• Do not combine items from both non-IT and 
Information Technology CMAS(s). A non-IT CMAS 
begin with the number “4” and an Information 
Technology CMAS begins with the number “3.”  The 
purchase order limits are different for these two 
types of CMAS agreements. 

 
4. Amendments to Agency's Purchase Orders 

 
Agency purchase orders cannot be amended if the 
CMAS has expired. 

 
The SCM, Volumes 2 & 3, Chapter 6.A5.0 and SCM, 
Volume FI$Cal, Chapter 5.A4.0 provides the 
following direction regarding amendments to all 
types of CMAS purchase orders: 

 
Original orders, which include options for changes 
(e.g., quantity or time), that were evaluated and 
considered in the selection for award during the 
RFO process, may be amended consistent with 
the terms of the original order, provided that the 
original order allowed for amendments.  If the 
original order did not evaluate options, then 
amendments are not allowed unless an NCB is 
approved for those amendments. 

 
Amendments unique to non-IT services are covered 
in the SCM, Volume 2, Chapter 6.B2.9 and SCM, 
Volume FI$Cal, Chapter 5.A4.1 as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 

If the original contract permitted amendments, but 
did not specify the changes (e.g., quantity or 
time), it may be amended, per Public Contract 
Code (PCC) § 10335 (d)(1).  This only applies to 
the first amendment.  The time shall not exceed 
one year, or add not more than 30% of the original 
order value and may not exceed $250,000.  If the 
original contract did not have language permitting 
amendments, the NCB process must be followed. 

 
Also, see the SCM, Volumes 2 & 3, Chapter 8, Topic 
6, for more information on amending purchase 
orders. 

 
CMAS CONTRACTOR OWNERSHIP INFORMATION 

 
Ultra Link Cabling Systems, Inc. is a certified small 
business enterprise.  Their Office of Small Business and 
DVBE Services (OSDS) certification #34448 expires on 
3/31/2021. 
 
If this certification has expired, the current expiration date 
for this company’s certification should be verified at:  
caleprocure.ca.gov/pages/index.aspx or by contacting 
the Office of Small Business and DVBE Services at (916) 
375-4940.  Note that some companies have been 
assigned a new certification number, so use the company 
name and/or certification number when checking status 
on-line. 
 
SMALL BUSINESS MUST BE CONSIDERED 

 
Prior to placing orders under the CMAS program, State 
agencies shall whenever practicable first consider offers 
from small businesses that have established CMAS 
[Government Code (GC) § 14846(b)].  NOTE:  The 
Department of General Services auditors will request 
substantiation of compliance with this requirement when 
agency files are reviewed. 
 
The following website lists CMAS small business and 
Disabled Veteran Partners: 
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-
Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-
Multiple-Award-Schedules then select “Find a CMAS 
Contractor”. 
 
In response to our commitment to increase participation 
by small businesses, the Department of General Services 
waives the administrative fee (a fee currently charged 
to customer agencies to support the CMAS program) 
for orders to certified small business enterprises. 

See the current fees in the DGS Price Book at: 
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OFS/Price-Book. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://caleprocure.ca.gov/pages/index.aspx
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OFS/Price-Book


CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 5 

SMALL BUSINESS/DVBE - TRACKING 

 
State agencies are able to claim subcontracting dollars 
towards their small business or DVBE goals whenever 
the CMAS contractor subcontracts a commercially useful 
function to a certified small business or DVBE.  The 
CMAS contractor will provide the ordering agency with 
the name of the small business or DVBE used and the 
dollar amount the ordering agency can apply towards its 
small business or DVBE goal. 
 
SMALL BUSINESS/DVBE - SUBCONTRACTING 

 
1. The amount an ordering agency can claim towards 

achieving its small business or DVBE goals is the 
dollar amount of the subcontract award made by the 
CMAS contractor to each small business or DVBE. 

 
2. The CMAS contractor will provide an ordering 

agency with the following information at the time the 
order is quoted: 

 
a. The CMAS contractor will state that, as the prime 

contractor, it shall be responsible for the overall 
execution of the fulfillment of the order. 

 
b. The CMAS contractor will indicate to the ordering 

agency how the order meets the small business 
or DVBE goal, as follows: 

 

 List the name of each company that is certified by 
the Office of Small Business and DVBE Services 
that it intends to subcontract a commercially 
useful function to; and 

 Include the small business or DVBE certification 
number of each company listed, and attach a 
copy of each certification; and 

 Indicate the dollar amount of each subcontract 
with a small business or DVBE that may be 
claimed by the ordering agency towards the small 
business or DVBE goal; and  

 Indicate what commercially useful function the 
small business or DVBE subcontractor will be 
providing towards fulfillment of the order. 

 
3. The ordering agency’s purchase order must be 

addressed to the prime Contractor, and the purchase 
order must reference the information provided by the 
prime Contractor as outlined above. 

 
NEW EQUIPMENT REQUIRED 

 
The State will procure new equipment.  All equipment 
must be new (or warranted as newly manufactured) and 
the latest model in current production.  Used, shopworn, 
demonstrator, prototype, or discontinued models are not 
acceptable.   
 
Where Federal Energy Management Program (FEMP) 
standards are available, all State agencies shall 
purchase only those products that meet the 
recommended standards.  All products displaying the 
Energy Star label meet the FEMP standards. 

SPECIAL MANUFACTURED GOODS 

 
Any CMAS for goods to be manufactured by the CMAS 
contractor specifically for the State and not suitable for 
sale to others may require progress payments. 
 
PRODUCT INSTALLATION 

 
The CMAS contractor is fully responsible for all 
installation services performed under the CMAS.  Product 
installations must be performed by manufacturer 
authorized personnel and meet manufacturer 
documented specifications. 
 
The prime contractor, as well as any subcontractors, 
must hold any certifications and/or licenses required for 
the project. 
 
TRADE-IN EQUIPMENT 

 
Trade-ins at open market price may be considered.  The 
product description and trade-in allowance must be 
identified on the purchase order. 
 
Agencies are required to adhere to State Administrative 
Manual (SAM) § 3520 through 3520.6, Disposal of 
Personal Property and Surplus Personal Property, as 
applicable, when trade-ins are considered.  A Property 
Survey Report, Std. 152, must be submitted for approval 
prior to disposition of any State-owned personal property, 
including general office furniture regardless of the 
acquisition value, or if the property was recorded or 
capitalized for accounting purposes. 
 
ELECTRONIC WASTE RECYCLING 

 
State agencies are required to recycle state owned 
surplus electronic equipment that has no useful life 
remaining (E-Waste), to the maximum extent possible. 
State agencies shall dispose of E-Waste using the 
services of the California Prison Industry Authority 
(CALPIA), unless the agency meets the pickup quantity 
and location exemption criteria detailed in State 
Administrative Manual (SAM) § 3520.10. Electronic 
equipment that is usable and still retains value is not 
considered E-Waste and must be reutilized through the 
DGS, Office of Fleet and Asset Management (OFAM) 
Surplus Personal Property Warehouse. State agencies 
shall determine which equipment meets the definition of 
E-Waste or reusable Electronic Equipment, per the 
definitions provided in the State Administrative Manual 
Management Memo MM 17-06. OFAM will validate that 
equipment meets the appropriate definition when 
reviewing the submitted Property Survey Report (STD. 
152). 
 
Please see State Administrative Manual (SAM) § 
3520.10 for more information on this policy. 
 
Information for submitting a STD 152 can be found on the 
DGS OFAM surplus property website: 



CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 6 

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/RESD/Resources/Page-
Content/Real-Estate-Services-Division-Resources-List-
Folder/DGS-Surplus-Property-Homepage 
 
Information on the CALPIA E-Waste Program can be 
found at: 
www.calpia.ca.gov/products-services/e-waste-recycling-
computer-refurbishing 
 
The E-Waste Exemption Request Form EWR-F029 can 
be found at: 
www.calpia.ca.gov/calpia/assets/File/ewaste/E-
Waste%20Exemption_EWR-F029.pdf 
 
The electronic waste recycling fee must be shown as a 
line item on the agency purchase order before the CMAS 
contractor can include it on their invoice. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS (INSTALLATION SERVICES ONLY) 

 
A public works contract is defined as an agreement for 
“the erection, construction, alteration, repair, or 
improvement of any public structure, building, road, or 
other public improvement of any kind” in accordance with 
the Public Contract Code (PCC) § 1101.  State agencies 
planning these types of projects need to review the SCM, 
Volume 1, Chapters 10 and 11 for applicable guidelines 
and regulations.  Also, the Department of General 
Services (DGS), Real Estate Services Division (RESD) 
can be contacted at (916) 376-1748, if you have 
questions about these types of transactions. 
 
Agency CMAS purchase orders may allow for public 
works installation only when it is incidental to the total 
purchase order amount.  The total dollar value of all 
public works services included in the purchase order 
must not exceed the dollar value of the products. 

 
Agencies are to ensure that the applicable laws and 
codes pertaining to the contractor and sub-contractor 
licensing, prevailing wage rates, bonding, labor code 
requirements, etc., are adhered to by the prime 
contractor as well as any sub-contractor during 
performance under the CMAS purchase order. 
 
The bond amount for public works is not less than one 
hundred percent (100%) of the purchase order price. 
 
NOTE:  In accordance with Labor Code (LC) § 1773.2, 

the ordering agency is responsible for determining the 
appropriate craft, classification or type of worker needed 
for any contract for public works.  Also, the agency is to 
specify the applicable prevailing wage rates as 
determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR).  In lieu of specifying the prevailing wage 
rates, the agency may include a statement on the order 
that the prevailing wage rates are on file at the agency’s 
office, and will be made available upon request.  The 
prevailing wage rates are available from the DIR at 
www.dir.ca.gov (select Statistics & Research) or (415) 
703-4774. 
 

Bonds:  For guidelines, see CMAS, General Terms and 

Conditions, Public Works Requirements. 
 
State Contractor’s License:  Public works services can 

be obtained through CMAS only if incidental to the overall 
purchase order.  If incidental public works services are 
included in the purchase order, prior to issuing the order 
agencies should contact the State Contractor’s License 
Board at 1-800-321-2752 or at www.cslb.ca.gov to verify 
that the Contractor’s License shown below is still active 
and in good standing. 
 
Ultra Link Cabling Systems, Inc.'s California Contractor's 
License number is 644630.  This is a Class C-7 license 
that is valid through 11/30/2020. 
 
Cable and Wire:  Cable and wire products that are 

purchased under this CMAS must be for information 
technology projects only (computers, 
telecommunications, and security systems) and cannot 
be used for general purpose installations. 
 
Purchase orders for cable and wire installation services 
only are prohibited. 
 
Agency questions regarding the purchase and/or 
installation of cable and wire for computers and/or 
telecommunications may be directed to the California 
Department of Technology, Statewide 
Telecommunications and Network Division. 
 
Cable and wire installations under this CMAS must be 
installed and tested to EIA/TIA Standards. 
 
PRODUCTIVE USE REQUIREMENTS 

 
The customer in-use requirement applies to all 
procurements of information technology equipment and 
software, per the SCM, Volume 3, Chapter 2, Section 
2.B6.2 and SCM, Volume FI$Cal, Chapter 2, Section 
2.E3.2. 
 
Each equipment or software component must be in 
current operation for a paying customer and the paying 
customer must be external to the contractor’s 
organization (not owned by the contractor and not owning 
the contractor). 
 
To substantiate compliance with the Productive Use 
Requirements, the CMAS contractor must provide upon 
request the name and address of a customer installation 
and the name and telephone number of a contact person. 
 
The elapsed time such equipment or software must have 
been in operation is based upon the importance of the 
equipment or software for system operation and its cost.  
The following designates product categories and the 
required period of time for equipment or software 
operation prior to approval of the replacement item on 
CMAS. 
 
 

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/RESD/Resources/Page-Content/Real-Estate-Services-Division-Resources-List-Folder/DGS-Surplus-Property-Homepage
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/RESD/Resources/Page-Content/Real-Estate-Services-Division-Resources-List-Folder/DGS-Surplus-Property-Homepage
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/RESD/Resources/Page-Content/Real-Estate-Services-Division-Resources-List-Folder/DGS-Surplus-Property-Homepage
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/RESD/Resources/Page-Content/Real-Estate-Services-Division-Resources-List-Folder/DGS-Surplus-Property-Homepage
http://www.calpia.ca.gov/products-services/e-waste-recycling-computer-refurbishing
http://www.calpia.ca.gov/products-services/e-waste-recycling-computer-refurbishing
https://www.calpia.ca.gov/calpia/assets/File/ewaste/E-Waste%20Exemption_EWR-F029.pdf
https://www.calpia.ca.gov/calpia/assets/File/ewaste/E-Waste%20Exemption_EWR-F029.pdf
http://www.cslb.ca.gov/


CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 7 

Category 1 - Critical Software:  Critical software is 

software that is required to control the overall operation 
of a computer system or peripheral equipment.  Included 
in this category are operating systems, data base 
management systems, language interpreters, 
assemblers and compilers, communications software, 
and other essential system software. 
 

Cost Installation 
Final Bid 

Submission 

More than 
$100,000 

8 months 
6 months 

$10,000 up to 
$100,000 

4 months 
3 months 

Less than 
$10,000 

1 month 
1 month 

 
Category 2 - All Information Technology Equipment 
and Non-Critical Software:  Information technology 

equipment is defined in State Administrative Manual 
(SAM) § 4819.2. 
 

Cost Installation 
Final Bid 

Submission 

More than 
$100,000 

6 months 
4 months 

$10,000 up to 
$100,000 

4 months 
3 months 

Less than 
$10,000 

1 month 
1 month 

 
OPEN MARKET/INCIDENTAL, NON-SCHEDULE 
ITEMS 

 
The only time that open market/incidental, non-schedule 
items may be included in a CMAS order is when they fall 
under the parameters of the Not Specifically Priced 
(NSP) Items provision.  If the NSP provision is not 
included in the CMAS, or the products and/or services 
required do not qualify under the parameters of the NSP 
provision, the products and/or services must be procured 
separate from CMAS. 
 
NOT SPECIFICALLY PRICED (NSP) ITEMS 

 
CMAS contractors must be authorized providers of the 
hardware, software and/or services they offer under the 
Not Specifically Priced (NSP) Items provision. 
 
Agency and CMAS contractor use of the NSP provision 
is subject to the following requirements: 
 
1. Purchase orders containing only NSP items are 

prohibited. 
 
2. A purchase order containing NSP items may be 

issued only if it results in the lowest overall 
alternative to the State. 

 
3. NSP items shall be clearly identified in the order.  

Any product or service already specifically priced 
and included in the base contract may not be 
identified as an NSP item. 

4. NSP Installation Services:  The CMAS contractor is 
fully responsible for all installation services 
performed under the CMAS.  Product installations 
must be performed by manufacturer authorized 
personnel and meet manufacturer documented 
specifications.  The prime contractor, as well as any 
subcontractors, must hold any certifications and/or 
licenses required for the project.  The total dollar 
value of all installation services included in the 
purchase order cannot exceed the dollar value of the 
products included in the purchase order, nor can 
they exceed the NSP Maximum Order Limitation. 

 
5. Maximum Order Limitation:  For orders $250,000, or 

less, the total dollar value of all NSP items included 
in a purchase order shall not exceed $5,000.  For 
orders exceeding $250,000, and at the option of the 
contractor, the total dollar value of all NSP items in a 
purchase order shall not exceed 5% of the total cost 
of the order, or $25,000 whichever is lower. 

 
6. An NSP item included in an order issued against a 

CMAS is subject to all of the terms and conditions 
set forth in the contract. 

 
7. Trade-ins, upgrades, involving the swapping of 

boards, are permissible, where the contract makes 
specific provisions for this action.  In those instances 
where it is permitted, the purchase order must 
include the replacement item and a notation that the 
purchase involves the swapping of a board. 

 
The following NSP items ARE SPECIFICALLY 
EXCLUDED from any order issued under this CMAS: 
 
1. Items not intended for use in directly supporting the 

priced items included in the same order.  An NSP 
item must be subordinate to the specifically priced 
item that it is supporting.  For example, a cable, 
which is not otherwise specifically priced in the base 
contract, is subordinate to a specifically priced 
printer or facsimile machine, and is eligible to be an 
NSP item subject to that cable meeting the 
remaining NSP requirements.  However, a printer or 
facsimile machine, which is not otherwise specifically 
priced in the base contract, is not subordinate to a 
specifically priced cable, and is not eligible to be an 
NSP item. 

 
2. Supply type items, except for the minimum amount 

necessary to provide initial support to the priced 
items included in the same order. 

 
3. Items that do not meet the Productive Use 

Requirements for information technology products, 
per the SCM, Volume 3, Chapter 2, Section 2.B6.2 
and SCM, Volume FI$Cal, Chapter 2, Section 
2.E3.2. 

 
4. Any other item or class of items specifically excluded 

from the scope of this CMAS. 
 



CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 8 

5. Public Works components NOT incidental to the total 
purchase order amount. 

 
6. Products or services the CMAS contractor is NOT 

factory authorized or otherwise certified or trained to 
provide. 

 
7. Follow-on consultant services that were previously 

recommended or suggested by the same CMAS 
contractor. 

 
The CMAS contractor is required to reject purchase 
orders containing NSP items that do not conform to the 
above requirements.  The CMAS contractor will promptly 
notify the agency issuing the non-conforming order of its 
non-acceptance and the reasons for its non-acceptance. 
 
STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS CAN USE 
CMAS 

 
State and local government agency use of CMAS is 
optional.  A local government is any city, county, city and 
county, district, or other local governmental body or 
corporation, including UC, CSU, K-12 schools and 
community colleges empowered to expend public funds.  
While the State makes this CMAS available, each local 
government agency should make its own determination 
whether the CMAS program is consistent with their 
procurement policies and regulations. 
 
UPDATES AND/OR CHANGES 

 
A CMAS amendment is not required for updates and/or 
changes once the update and/or change becomes 
effective for the federal GSA schedule, except as follows: 
 

 A CMAS amendment is required when the CMAS is 
based on specific products and/or services from 
another contractor’s multiple award contract and the 
contractor wants to add a new manufacturer’s 
products and/or services. 

 A CMAS amendment is required for new federal 
contract terms and conditions that constitute a 
material difference from existing contract terms and 
conditions.  A material change has a potentially 
significant effect on the delivery, quantity or quality 
of items provided, the amount paid to the contractor 
or on the cost to the State. 

 
A CMAS amendment is required to update and/or change 
terms and conditions and/or products and services based 
on a non-federal GSA multiple award contract. 
 
SELF-DELETING FEDERAL GSA TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS 

 
Instructions, or terms and conditions that appear in the 
Special Items or other provisions of the federal GSA and 
apply to the purchase, license, or rental (as applicable) of 
products or services by the U.S. Government in the 
United States, and/or to any overseas location shall be 
self-deleting.  (Example: "Examinations of Records" 
provision). 

Federal regulations and standards, such as Federal 
Acquisition Regulation (FAR), Federal Information 
Resources Management Regulation (FIRMR), Federal 
Information Processing Standards (FIPS), General 
Services Administration Regulation (GSAR), or Federal 
Installment Payment Agreement (FIPA) shall be self-
deleting.  Federal blanket orders and small order 
procedures are not applicable. 
 
ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

 
The CMAS Terms and Conditions takes precedence if 
there is a conflict between the terms and conditions of the 
contractor's federal GSA, (or other multiple award 
contract), packaging, invoices, catalogs, brochures, 
technical data sheets or other documents (see CMAS 
Terms and Conditions, CONFLICT OF TERMS). 
 
APPLICABLE CODES, POLICIES AND GUIDELINES 

 
All California codes, policies, and guidelines are 
applicable.  THE USE OF CMAS DOES NOT REDUCE 
OR RELIEVE STATE AGENCIES OF THEIR 
RESPONSIBILITY TO MEET STATEWIDE 
REQUIREMENTS REGARDING CONTRACTING OR 
THE PROCUREMENT OF GOODS OR SERVICES.  
Most procurement and contract codes, policies, and 
guidelines are incorporated into CMAS agreements.  
Nonetheless, there is no guarantee that every possible 
requirement that pertains to all the different and unique 
State processes has been included. 
 
PAYMENTS AND INVOICES 

 
1. Payment Terms 

 
Payment terms for this CMAS are net 45 days. 

 
Payment will be made in accordance with the 
provisions of the California Prompt Payment Act, 
Government Code (GC) § 927 et. seq.  Unless 
expressly exempted by statute, the Act requires 
State agencies to pay properly submitted, 
undisputed invoices not more than 45 days after (i) 
the date of acceptance of goods or performance of 
services; or (ii) receipt of an undisputed invoice, 
whichever is later. 

 
2. Payee Data Record (Std. 204) 

 
State Agencies not transacting in FI$Cal, must 
obtain a copy of the Payee Data Record (Std. 204) 
in order to process payments. State Ordering 
Agencies forward a copy of the Std. 204 to their 
accounting office(s). Without the Std. 204, payment 
may be unnecessarily delayed. State Agencies 
should contact the CMAS contractor for copies of the 
Payee Data Record. 

 
 
 
 
 



CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 9 

3. DGS Administrative and Incentive Fees 

 
Orders from State Agencies: 

 
The Department of General Services (DGS) will bill 
each State agency directly an administrative fee for 
use of CMAS.  The administrative fee should NOT 
be included in the order total, nor remitted before an 
invoice is received from DGS.  This administrative 
fee is waived for CMAS purchase orders issued to 
California certified small businesses. 

 
See the current administrative fees in the DGS Price 
Book at: https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OFS/Price-Book. 

 
Orders from Local Government Agencies: 

 
CMAS contractors, who are not California certified 
small businesses, are required to remit to the DGS 
an incentive fee equal to 1% of the total of all local 
government agency orders (excluding sales tax and 
freight) placed against their CMAS.  This incentive 
fee is in lieu of local government agencies being 
billed the above referenced DGS administrative fee. 

 
This incentive fee is waived for CMAS purchase 
orders issued to California certified small 
businesses. 

 
The check covering this fee shall be made payable 
to the Department of General Services, CMAS Unit, 
and mailed to the CMAS Unit along with the 
applicable Quarterly Report.  See the provision in 
this CMAS entitled “Contractor Quarterly Report 
Process” for information on when and where to send 
these checks and reports. 

 
4. Contractor Invoices 

 
Unless otherwise stipulated, the CMAS contractor 
must send their invoices to the agency address set 
forth in the purchase order.  Invoices shall be 
submitted in triplicate and shall include the following: 

 

 CMAS number 

 Agency purchase order number 

 Agency Bill Code (State Only) 

 Line item number 

 Unit price 

 Extended line item price 

 Invoice total 
 

State sales tax and/or use tax shall be itemized 
separately and added to each invoice as applicable. 

 
The company name on the CMAS, purchase order 
and invoice must match or the State Controller’s 
Office will not approve payment. 

 
 
 
 

5. Advance Payments 

 
Advance payment is allowed for services only under 
limited, narrowly defined circumstances, e.g., 
between specific departments and certain types of 
non-profit organizations, or when paying another 
government agency (Government Code (GC) § 
11256 – 11263 and 11019). 

 
It is NOT acceptable to pay in advance, except 
software maintenance and license fees, which are 
considered a subscription and may be paid in 
advance if a provision addressing payment in 
advance is included in the purchase order. 

 
Software warranty upgrades and extensions may 
also be paid for in advance, one time. 

 
6. Credit Card 

 
Ultra Link Cabling Systems, Inc. does not accept the 
State of California credit card (CAL-Card). 

 
7. Lease/Purchase Analysis 

 
State agencies must complete a Lease/Purchase 
Analysis (LPA) to determine best value when 
contemplating a lease/rental, and retain a copy for 
future audit purposes (State Administrative Manual 
(SAM) § 3710). 

 
For short-term rental equipment, the lease/purchase 
analysis must be approved by the Department of 
General Services, Office of legal Services. 

 
The lease/purchase analysis for all other purchases 
must be approved by the Department of General 
Services, GS $Mart State Financial Marketplace. 
Buyers may contact the GS $Mart™ Administrator, 
Patrick Mullen by phone at (916) 375-4617 or via e-
mail at patrick.mullen@dgs.ca.gov for further 
information. 

 
8. Leasing 

 
The State reserves the right to select the form of 
payment for all procurements, be it either an outright 
purchase with payment rendered directly by the 
State, or a financing/lease-purchase or operating 
lease via the State Financial Marketplace (GS $Mart 
and/or Lease $Mart).  If payment is via the financial 
marketplace, the Supplier will invoice the State and 
the State will approve the invoice and the selected 
Lender/Lessor for all product listed on the State’s 
procurement document will pay the supplier on 
behalf of the State. 

 
Buyers may contact the GS $Mart™ Administrator, 
Patrick Mullen by phone at (916) 375-4617 or via e-
mail at patrick.mullen@dgs.ca.gov for further 
information. 

 
 

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OFS/Price-Book
mailto:patrick.mullen@dgs.ca.gov
mailto:patrick.mullen@dgs.ca.gov


CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 10 

CONTRACTOR QUARTERLY REPORT PROCESS 

 
CMAS contractors are required to submit a detailed 
CMAS Business Activity Report on a quarterly basis to 
the CMAS Unit.  See Attachment B for a copy of this form 
and instructions. 
 
This report shall be mailed to: 
 
 Department of General Services 
 Procurement Division – CMAS Unit 
 Attention:  Quarterly Report Processing 
 PO Box 989052, MS #2-202 
 West Sacramento, CA  95798-9052 
 
Reports that include checks for incentive fees must be 
mailed and shall not be e-mailed.  All other reports may 
be e-mailed to the attention of Quarterly Report 
Processing as follows: 
 
  CMAS Unit E-Mail:  cmas@dgs.ca.gov 
 
For the full instructions on completing and submitting 
CMAS Quarterly Business Activity Reports, and a soft 
copy of a blank quarterly report form, go to 
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-
Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-
Multiple-Award-Schedules, and then select “File a CMAS 
Quarterly Report”. 
 
Important things to remember regarding CMAS Quarterly 
Business Activity Reports (referred to as “reports” below): 
 

 A report is required for each CMAS, each quarter, 
even when no new purchase orders are received in 
the quarter. 

 A separate report is required for each CMAS. 

 Each purchase order must be reported only 
once in the quarter identified by the purchase 
order date, regardless of when the services 
were performed, the products were delivered, 
the invoice was sent, or the payment was 
received. 

 Purchase orders from State and local government 
agencies must be separated on the report, as 
shown in the instructions. 

 CMAS contractors must report the sales activity for 
all resellers listed on their CMAS. 

 Any report that does not follow the required format 
or excludes required information will be deemed 
incomplete and returned to the CMAS contractor for 
corrections. 

 Taxes and freight must not be included in the report. 

 CMAS contractors who are not California certified 
small businesses must attach to their quarterly 
report a check covering the required incentive fee 
for all CMAS sales to local government agencies 
(see more information below). 

 New CMAS agreements, renewals, extensions, and 
modifications will be approved only if the CMAS 
contractor has submitted all required quarterly 
reports and incentive fees. 

CMAS Quarterly Business Activity Reports are due in the 
CMAS Unit within two weeks after the end of each quarter 
as shown below: 
 

Quarter 1 Jan 1 to Mar 31 Due Apr 15 
Quarter 2 Apr 1 to Jun 30 Due Jul 15 
Quarter 3 Jul 1 to Sep 30 Due Oct 15 
Quarter 4 Oct 1 to Dec 31 Due Jan 15 

 
CONTRACTOR QUARTERLY INCENTIVE FEES 

 
CMAS contractors who are not California certified small 
businesses must remit to DGS an incentive fee equal to 
1% of the total of all local government agency orders 
(excluding sales tax and freight) placed against their 
CMAS agreement(s).  This incentive fee is in lieu of local 
government agencies being billed the above referenced 
DGS administrative fee. 
 
CMAS contractors cannot charge local government 
agencies an additional 1% charge on a separate line item 
to cover the incentive fee.  The CMAS contractor must 
include the 1% incentive fee in the price of the products 
or services offered, and the line item prices must not 
exceed the applicable base contract prices. 
 
A local government agency is any city, county, district, or 
other local governmental body, including the California 
State University (CSU) and University of California (UC) 
systems, K-12 public schools and community colleges 
empowered to expend public funds. 
 
This incentive fee is waived for CMAS purchase orders 
issued to California certified small businesses. 
 
The check covering this fee shall be made payable to the 
Department of General Services, CMAS Unit, and mailed 
to the CMAS Unit along with the applicable Quarterly 
Report.  See the provision in this CMAS entitled 
“Contractor Quarterly Report Process” for information on 
when and where to send these checks and reports. 
 
OBTAINING COPY OF ORIGINAL CMAS AND 
SUPPLEMENTS 

 
A copy of a CMAS and supplements, if any, can be 
obtained at caleprocure.ca.gov. A complete CMAS 
consists of the following: 
 

 CMAS cover pages (which includes the signature 
page, ordering instructions and special provisions, 
and any attachments or exhibits as prepared by the 
CMAS Unit) 

 CMAS Terms and Conditions. 

 Federal GSA (or Non-GSA) terms and conditions  

 Product/service listing and prices 

 Supplements, if applicable. 
 
 
 
 

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/About/Page-Content/PD-Branch-Intro-Accordion-List/Acquisitions/California-Multiple-Award-Schedules
https://caleprocure.ca.gov/


CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 11 

It is important for the agency to confirm that the required 
products, services, and prices are included in the CMAS 
and are at or below base contract rates.  To streamline 
substantiation that the needed items are in the base 
contract, the agencies should ask the CMAS contractor 
to identify the specific pages from the base contract that 
include the required products, services, and prices.  
Agencies should save these pages for their file 
documentation. 
 
CONTRACTORS ACTING AS FISCAL AGENTS ARE 
PROHIBITED 

 
When a subcontractor ultimately provides all of the 
products or performs all of the services that a CMAS 
contractor has agreed to provide, and the prime 
contractor only handles the invoicing of expenditures, 
then the prime contractor's role becomes that of a fiscal 
agent because it is merely administrative in nature, and 
does not provide a Commercially Useful Function (CUF).  
It is unacceptable to use fiscal agents in this manner 
because the agency is paying unnecessary 
administrative costs. 
 
AGENCY RESPONSIBILITY 

 
Each agency is responsible for its own contracting 
program and purchasing decisions, including use of the 
CMAS program and associated outcomes. 
 
This responsibility includes, but is not necessarily limited 
to, ensuring the necessity of the services, securing 
appropriate funding, complying with laws and policies, 
preparing the purchase order in a manner that 
safeguards the State’s interests, obtaining required 
approvals, and documenting compliance with 
Government Code (GC) § 19130.b (3) for outsourcing 
services. 
 
It is the responsibility of each agency to consult as 
applicable with their legal staff and contracting offices for 
advice depending upon the scope or complexity of the 
purchase order. 
 
If you do not have legal services available to you within 
your agency, the DGS Office of Legal Services is 
available to provide services on a contractual basis.  
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
Agencies must evaluate the proposed purchase order to 
determine if there are any potential conflict of interest 
issues.  See the CMAS Terms and Conditions, Conflict of 
Interest, for more information. 
 
FEDERAL DEBARMENT 

 
When federal funds are being expended, the agency is 
required to obtain (retain in file) a signed “Federal 
Debarment” certification from the CMAS contractor 
before the purchase order is issued. 
 

This certification is required by the regulations 
implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and 
Suspension, 29 CFR Part 98, Section 98.510, 
Participants; responsibilities.  The regulations were 
published as Part VII of the May 26, 1988 Federal 
Register (pages 19160-19211). 
 
CONTRACTOR TRAVEL 
 

The Travel provision is not applicable to this CMAS. 
 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES FOR LATE DELIVERY  

 
The value of the liquidated damages cannot be a penalty, 
must be mutually agreed upon by agency and contractor 
and included in the purchase order to be applicable. 
 
ACCEPTANCE TESTING CRITERIA  

 
If the agency wants to include acceptance testing for all 
newly installed technology systems, and individual 
equipment, and machines which are added or field 
modified (modification of a machine from one model to 
another) after a successful performance period, the test 
criteria must be included in the purchase order to be 
applicable. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITY ACT (ADA) 

 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as 
amended; Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
as amended; Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 USC 
12101; California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Title 22; 
California Government Code, Sections 11135, et seq.; 
and other federal and State laws, and Executive Orders 
prohibit discrimination.  All programs, activities, 
employment opportunities, and services must be made 
available to all persons, including persons with 
disabilities.  See Attachment A for Procurement Division’s 
ADA Compliance Policy of Nondiscrimination on the 
Basis of Disability. 
 
Individual government agencies are responsible for self-
compliance with ADA regulations. 
 
Contractor sponsored events must provide reasonable 
accommodations for persons with disabilities. 
 
DGS PROCUREMENT DIVISION CONTACT AND 
PHONE NUMBER 

 
 Department of General Services 
 Procurement Division, CMAS Unit 
 707 Third Street, 2nd Floor, MS 2-202 
 West Sacramento, CA  95605-2811 
 

Phone # (916) 375-4365 
 
 
 
 

  



CALIFORNIA MULTIPLE AWARD SCHEDULE (CMAS) 
ULTRA LINK CABLING SYSTEMS, INC. 

CMAS NO. 3-19-70-1981E 
 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 12 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

ADA NOTICE 
 

Procurement Division (State Department of General Services)  
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) COMPLIANCE 

POLICY OF NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
 

To meet and carry out compliance with the nondiscrimination requirements of 
the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), it is the policy of the Procurement 
Division (within the State Department of General Services) to make every effort 
to ensure that its programs, activities, and services are available to all persons, 
including persons with disabilities. 
 

For persons with a disability needing a reasonable accommodation to 
participate in the Procurement process, or for persons having questions 
regarding reasonable accommodations for the Procurement process, please 
contact the Procurement Division at (916) 375-4400 (main office); the 
Procurement Division TTY/TDD (telephone device for the deaf) or California 
Relay Service numbers which are listed below.  You may also contact directly 
the Procurement Division contact person who is handling this procurement. 
 

IMPORTANT:  TO ENSURE THAT WE CAN MEET YOUR NEED, IT IS BEST 
THAT WE RECEIVE YOUR REQUEST AT LEAST 10 WORKING DAYS 
BEFORE THE SCHEDULED EVENT (i.e., MEETING, CONFERENCE, 
WORKSHOP, etc.) OR DEADLINE DUE-DATE FOR PROCUREMENT 
DOCUMENTS. 
 

The Procurement Division TTY telephone numbers are: 
 

Sacramento Office: 916-376-5127 (CALNET 480-5127) 
 

The California Relay Service Telephone Numbers are: 
 

Voice 1-800-735-2922, or 7-1-1 
Speech to Speech Service: 1-800-854-7784 

 
 



ATTACHMENT B 

CMAS QUARTERLY BUSINESS ACTIVITY REPORT 

 

Updated 12/2017 13 

 

Company Name:                

CMAS Number:                

For Questions Regarding This Report Contact: 

Name:                    

Phone Number:                

E-mail:                   

 

Reporting Calendar Year:           Revision   

Reporting Quarter:  Q1  (Jan-Mar)    

Q2  (Apr-Jun)   

Q3  (Jul-Sep)   

Q4  (Oct-Dec)   

Check Here if No New Orders for This Quarter  
 

STATE AGENCY PURCHASES 

State Agency Name 
Purchase Order 

Number 
Purchase Order 

Date 
Total Dollars Per 
Purchase Order 

Agency Contact Agency Address Phone Number 

       

       

       

Total State Agency Dollars Reported for Quarter:  $         

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY PURCHASES 

Local Government Agency Name 
Purchase Order 

Number 
Purchase Order 

Date 
Total Dollars Per 
Purchase Order 

Agency Contact Agency Address Phone Number 

       

       

       

Total Local Government Agency Dollars for Quarter: $        1% Remitted to DGS (does not apply to CA certified S/Bs): $         

Total of State and Local Government Agency Dollars Reported for this Quarter: $        



ATTACHMENT B 

CMAS QUARTERLY BUSINESS ACTIVITY REPORT 

 

Ordering Instructions and Special Provisions 14 

 

Instructions for completing the CMAS Quarterly Business Activity Report 
 
 

1. Complete the top of the form with the appropriate information for your company. 

2. Agency Name - Identify the State agency or Local Government agency that issued the order. 

3. Purchase Order Number - Identify the purchase order number (and amendment number if applicable) 
on the order form.  This is not your invoice number.  This is the number the State agency or Local 
Government agency assigns to the order. 

4. Purchase Order Date - Identify the date the purchase order was issued, as shown on the order.  This 
is not the date you received, accepted, or invoiced the order. 

5. Total Dollars Per PO - Identify the total dollars of the order excluding tax and freight.  Tax must NOT 
be included in the quarterly report, even if the agency includes tax on the purchase order.  The total 
dollars per order should indicate the entire purchase order amount (less tax and freight) regardless of 
when you invoice order, perform services, deliver product, or receive payment. 

6. Agency Contact - Identify the ordering agency’s contact person on the purchase order. 

7. Agency Address - Identify the ordering agency’s address on the purchase order. 

8. Phone Number - Identify the phone number for the ordering agency’s contact person. 

9. Total State Sales & Total Local Sales - Separately identify the total State dollars and/or Local 
Government agency dollars (pre-tax) for all orders placed in quarter. 

10. 1% Remitted to DGS - Identify 1% of the total Local Government agency dollars reported for the 
quarter.  This is the amount to be remitted to DGS by contractors who are not California certified small 
businesses. 

11. Grand Total - Identify the total of all State and Local Government agency dollars reported for the 
quarter. 

 
Notes: 
 

 A report is required for each CMAS, each quarter, even if there are no new orders for the quarter. 

 Quarterly reports are due two weeks after the end of the quarter. 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Lucy Vincent
 
SUBJECT:  Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT) Opt-Out Resolution
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-28, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Declaring that Inyo County will Opt Out of the Adoption of Assisted Outpatient Treatment 
(Laura's Law) and Certifying that all Mental Health Treatment Programs will Continue and that No Treatment or 
Service will be Reduced without Adoption of Assisted Outpatient Treatment (Laura's Law) by Inyo County," and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The State of California enacted Assembly Bill 1976 (Chapter 140, Statutes of 2020), which requires counties to 
affirmatively opt-out of providing  Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT), otherwise known as Laura’s Law 
services by passing a resolution of the local governing body stating the reasons for opting out and any facts or 
circumstances relied on in making that decision.  The attached Resolution allows Inyo County to opt out of 
providing Laura's Law services.

Inyo County Behavioral Health has determined that it would be in the best interests of the citizens of Inyo County 
for the County to opt out of Laura’s Law for the following reasons:

 Existing voluntary adult mental health services and children’s mental health services would be reduced if 
Inyo County implemented Laura’s Law.

 Inyo County Behavioral Health already has rigorous outreach and engagement strategies to bring 
individuals with behavioral health conditions into voluntary treatment.   Our Mental Health Services Act 
provided services to 206 individuals at our wellness center sites  and our MHSA-funded Full Service 
Partnerships intensively served 32 adults, including 20 unsheltered persons, in FY 19/20.

 There are no unexpended funds to be diverted to AOT. In the most recent Mental Health Services Fund 
Reversion Report dated October 2020, Inyo County had no funds reverted and as such is fully expended.

 The number of persons that would benefit from AOT would be very small and does not justify the 
additional court and related costs to other programs and services.

The Department respectfully requests your Board's approval of this resolution.  
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could decide not to approve this Resolution.  In this case, Laura's Law services would have to be 
implemented along with extensive training costs and required system monitoring. There would be extensive costs 
associated with the implementation of Laura's Law without an additional funding source.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The Courts, including the District Attorney's Office and Public Defenders.
 
FINANCING:
There are no costs associated with adopting this resolution.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. AOT Opt Out Resolution
 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 4/14/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/14/2021
Lucy Vincent Approved - 4/14/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 4/16/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 4/16/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 4/16/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 4/16/2021



RESOLUTION NO. __________

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE 
OF CALIFORNIA, DECLARING THAT INYO COUNTY WILL OPT OUT OF THE 
ADOPTION OF ASSISTED OUTPATIENT TREATMENT (LAURA’S LAW) AND 

CERTIFYING THAT ALL MENTAL HEALTH TREATMENT PROGRAMS WILL 
CONTINUE AND THAT NO TREATMENT OR SERVICE WILL BE REDUCED 

WITHOUT ADOPTION OF ASSISTED OUTPATIENT TREATMENT (LAURA’S LAW) 
BY INYO COUNTY

WHEREAS, The State of California enacted “Laura’s Law” (Assembly Bill 1421 
(2002)), codified in California Welfare and Institutions Code Sections 5345-5349.5. This act 
became effective on January 1, 2003; and 

WHEREAS, “Laura’s Law” is named after Laura Wilcox, the loved and well-respected 
citizen from Nevada County who perished in the tragic 2001 shooting incident at the Nevada 
County mental health facility; and 

WHEREAS, “Laura’s Law,” also known as the “Assisted Outpatient Treatment” (AOT), 
applies to counties that exercise a local option to implement the project; and 

WHEREAS, The State of California enacted Assembly Bill 1976 (Chapter 140, Statutes 
of 2020), which requires counties to affirmatively opt-out of providing Laura’s Law services by 
passing a resolution of the local governing body stating the reasons for opting out and any facts 
or circumstances relied on in making that decision. Counties that implement Laura’s Law may 
not reduce existing voluntary mental health programs serving adults or children’s mental health 
programs as a result of implementation; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Health Care Services, pursuant to Behavioral Health 
Information Notice 20-075, requires counties to submit a resolution to the Department sixty days 
prior to the statewide implementation of AB 1976 on July 1, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, Inyo County Behavioral Health has determined that it would be in the best 
interests of the citizens of Inyo County for the County to opt out of Laura’s Law for the 
following reasons:

 Existing voluntary adult mental health services and children’s mental health 
services would be reduced if Inyo County implemented Laura’s Law.

 Inyo County Behavioral Health already has rigorous outreach and engagement 
strategies to bring individuals with behavioral health conditions into voluntary 
treatment. Our Mental Health Services Act provided services to 206 individuals 
at our wellness center sites and our MHSA-funded Full Service Partnerships 
intensively served 32 adults, including 20 unsheltered persons, in FY 19/20.

 There are no unexpended funds to be diverted to AOT. In the most recent Mental 
Health Services Fund Reversion Report dated October 2020, Inyo County had no 
funds reverted and as such is fully expended.



 The number of persons that would benefit from AOT would be very small and 
does not justify the additional court and related costs to other programs and 
services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo 
hereby opts out of the implementation of Laura’s Law in Inyo County.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of _______, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES: _______
NOES: _______
ABSTAIN: _______
ABSENT: _______

________________________________
Jeff Griffiths
Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By: _____________________________
Darcy Ellis, Assistant
Assistant Clerk of the Board





County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Jenna Rhoads
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment A02 to the Contract between County of Inyo and the California Department of Public 
Health for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. A02 to the contract between the County of Inyo Department of Health 
and Human Services and the California Department of Public Health for the California Women, Infants, and 
Children Contract, increasing the contract by $30,190, not to exceed $1,150,112, for the period of October 1, 
2019 through September 30, 2022, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
HHS Director to sign Standard Agreement No. 19-10153 Amendment A02.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This program provides administrative management and program implementation of WIC services for Inyo 
County. This is a federally funded program administered by the California Department of Public Health, designed 
to provide supplemental nutritious foods to mothers during pregnancy and infants and young children during early 
growth and development. This program is part of a coordinated effort to protect the health of mothers and 
children through planned programs of nutrition education, periodic examinations and preventive services.

The contract is a four-year contract with the California Department of Public Health, although the funding is 
federal dollars passed through the State from the United States, Department of Agriculture (USDA).

The amendment reflects a shifting in funds in fiscal years 2 and 3 in order to accommodate anticipated expenses 
for the H.R. 6201 - Families First Coronavirus Response Act.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the amendment which would mean that the county would not be able to 
claim the additional $30,190.00. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The program works cooperatively with other Health and Human Services Programs such as Public Health, First 
Five, as well as Toiyabe Indian Health Project and other Community organizations.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
This program is 100% federally funded through the State of California. The funds are recognized in the WIC 
budgets in object code Federal Other (4552). There are no county general funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Amendment A02 to Agreement 19-10153
2. Agreement 19-10153 A02 Revision Exhibits
 
APPROVALS:
Jenna Rhoads Created/Initiated - 4/13/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/14/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 4/14/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 4/16/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 4/16/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 4/16/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 4/16/2021



Please wait... 
  
If this message is not eventually replaced by the proper contents of the document, your PDF 
viewer may not be able to display this type of document. 
  
You can upgrade to the latest version of Adobe Reader for Windows®, Mac, or Linux® by 
visiting  http://www.adobe.com/go/reader_download. 
  
For more assistance with Adobe Reader visit  http://www.adobe.com/go/acrreader. 
  
Windows is either a registered trademark or a trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Mac is a trademark 
of Apple Inc., registered in the United States and other countries. Linux is the registered trademark of Linus Torvalds in the U.S. and other 
countries.



County of Inyo 
19-10153 A02 

STD 213A, Page 2 
 

II. Certain changes made in this amendment are displayed as follows:  Text additions are 
displayed in bold and underline.  Text deletions are displayed with a strike through the text 
(i.e., Strike).   
 

III. Revised Exhibit A, Scope of Work, Provision 4. as follows: 

4. Project Representatives 
 
A. The project representatives during the term of this agreement will be: 
 

California Department of Public Health County of Inyo 

Pia Boling, Contract Manager 
Telephone: (916) 928-8543 
Fax: (916) 263-3314 
E-mail: Pia.Boling@cdph.ca.gov  

Marilyn Mann 
Telephone: (760) 873-3305 
Fax: (760) 873-6505 
E-mail: mmann@inyocounty.us 

 
B. Direct all inquiries to: 
 

California Department of Public Health County of Inyo 

CDPH/WIC Division 
Attention: Pia Boling, Contract Manager 
Local Services Branch 
3901 Lennane Drive 
Sacramento, CA 95834 
 
Telephone: (916) 928-8543 
Fax: (916) 263-3314 
E-mail: Pia.Boling@cdph.ca.gov  

Attention: April Eagan 
568 West Line St. 1360 North Main Street 
Bishop, Ca 93514 
 
 
 
Telephone: (760) 872-1887 
Fax: (760) 872-1623 
E-mail: aeagan@inyocounty.us 

 
C. All payments from CDPH to the Contractor; shall be sent to the following address:  

 
Remittance Address 

Federal ID#: 95-6005445 
FI$CAL ID #:  
Contractor: County of Inyo 
Attention: “Cashier” 
Address: PO Drawer H   
Independence, CA 93526 
Contract Number: 19-10153 A02 
Email: ascott@inyocounty.us 
mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 

 
D. Either party may make changes to the information above by giving written notice to 

the other party.  Said changes shall not require an amendment to this agreement. 
 
IV. Revised Exhibit B, Budget Detail and Payment Provisions, Provision 1.E. as follows: 

 
E. Amounts Payable  

 
The amounts payable under this agreement shall not exceed: $1,119,922.00 $1,150,112.00. 



WIC Position Title

Office Tech III 12,13,14,15        48,276        48,276        58,740        58,740 0.05 2,937                  0.05 0.05 2,594                  2,594                  0.05 0.05 2,594                  130                     2,724                  8,125               130                  8,255               

Registered Dietician 1,3,6,7 1,2,3,4,5        62,676        62,676        76,200        76,200 0.50 37,535                0.50 0.50 37,535                37,535                0.50 0.50 37,535                565                     38,100                112,605            565                  113,170            

WIC Nutrition Assistant ① ② 1 1,2,3,4,5        41,988        41,988        51,012        51,012 1.00 51,012                1.00 1.00 50,042                50,042                1.00 1.00 50,042                2,502                  52,544                151,096            2,502               153,598            

WIC Manager ② 16,17        87,816        87,816      106,704      106,704 0.05 5,362                  0.05 0.05 5,362                  5,362                  0.05 0.05 5,362                  268                     5,630                  16,086              268                  16,354              

WIC Nutrition Assistant ①  1 1,2,3,4,5        45,096        45,096        54,768        54,768 1.00 54,768                1.00 -0.40 0.60 53,370                (24,312)               29,058                1.00 -0.40 0.60 53,370                (22,859)               30,511                161,508            (47,171)            114,337            

WIC Director
1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,
11,12,13,14,15,18 1,2,3,4,5,6        62,676        68,892        76,200        83,712 0.50 38,100                0.50 0.50 37,535                37,535                0.50 0.50 37,535                1,877                  39,412                113,170            1,877               115,047            

HHS Specialist  ① 1 1,2,3,4,5        41,988        51,012 0.00 -                          0.10 0.10 4,423                  4,423                  0.10 0.10 4,644                  4,644                  -                       9,067               9,067               

Administrative Analyst 3 1,2,3,4,5        57,036        72,600 0.00 -                          0.03 0.03 1,711                  1,711                  0.03 0.03 1,711                  1,711                  -                       3,422               3,422               

0.00 -                          0.00 -                          0.00 -                          -                       -                       -                       

Overtime ③ -                          -                          -                          -                       -                       -                       

Salaries and Wages 189,714              186,438              (18,178)               168,260              186,438              (11,162)               175,276              562,590            (29,340)            533,250            

3.10 3.10 (0.27) 2.83 3.10 (0.27) 2.83

Amended 
Percent

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount Percent

Amended 
Percent

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount Percent

Amended 
Percent

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount Total

Total 
Budget Adj.

Amended 
Total

63.1069% 119,722              63.1069% 68.2688% 117,655              (2,786)                 114,869              63.1069% 65.0179% 117,655              (3,695)                 113,960              355,032            (6,481)              348,551            

Total Personnel 309,436              304,093              283,129              304,093              289,236              917,622            (35,821)            881,801            

Operating Expenses

Exhibit A
SOW 7.A.

Exhibit A
Attach I

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount Total

Total 
Budget Adj.

Amended 
Total

General Expenses ⑤ 6, 17,18,19 1-9 9,324                  6,761                  5,586                  12,347                6,761                  2,892                  9,653                  22,846              8,478               31,324              

Travel ⑥ 8 1-9 5,010                  5,010                  (5,010)                 -                          5,010                  5,010                  15,030              (5,010)              10,020              

Training 4, 5, 7, 17 1-9 1,000                  1,000                  5,010                  6,010                  1,000                  1,000                  3,000               5,010               8,010               

Outreach/Media/Promotion 17 1-9 7,100                  5,600                  5,958                  11,558                5,600                  5,600                  18,300              5,958               24,258              

Facility Costs (See Exhibit B, Attach II for breakdown)  ⑦ 11 1-9 13,704                13,704                6,696                  20,400                13,704                6,696                  20,400                41,112              13,392              54,504              

Total Operating Expenses 36,138                32,075                18,240                50,315                32,075                9,588                  41,663                100,288            27,828              128,116            

Major Equipment ⑧ (Unit Cost of $5,000 or More)

Exhibit A
SOW 7.A.

Exhibit A
Attach I

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount Total

Total 
Budget Adj.

Amended 
Total

Equipment ⑨ 6,17,18, 20, 21 1-9 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                       -                       -                       

Vehicles ⑩ 8, 17,18,19 1-9 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                       -                       -                       

Total Major Equipment -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                       -                       -                       

Subcontracts ⑪ Exhibit A
SOW 7.A.

Exhibit A
Attach I

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount Total

Total 
Budget Adj.

Amended 
Total

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                       -                       -                       

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                       -                       -                       

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                       -                       -                       

Total Subcontracts -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                       -                       -                       

Indirect Costs 
Amended 
Percent

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount Percent

Amended 
Percent

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount Percent

Amended 
Percent

Budgeted 
Amount

Budget
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount Total

Total 
Budget Adj.

Amended 
Total

Total Personnel Costs 11.1170% 34,400                11.1170% 20.0000% 33,806                22,819                56,625                11.1170% 17.0000% 33,806                15,364                49,170                102,012            38,183              140,195            

Total Indirect Costs 34,400                33,806                22,819                56,625                33,806                15,364                49,170                102,012            38,183              140,195            

Total Budget 379,974$            369,974$            20,095$              390,069$            369,974$            10,095$              380,069$            1,119,922$       30,190$            1,150,112$       

 Year 1 Contract Amount 379,974$             Year 2 Contract Amount 390,069$             Year 3 Contract Amount 380,069$            

Year 1 Funding Changes -$                        Year 2 Funding Changes 20,095$              Year 3 Funding Changes 10,095$              

Year 1 Checks/Balances -$                        Year 2 Checks/Balances -$                        Year 3 Checks/Balances -$                        

*All costs will be reviewed by CDPH for approval① Bilingual - Positions that receive Bilingual pay will show a higher budgeted amount.  Justification and back-up documentation will be kept on file. ② Additional Pay (Longevity, Retention, Differential and COLA) - Positions that receive these compensations will show a higher budgeted amount.  Justification and back-up documentation will be kept on file. ③ Overtime - Requires justification if amount does not seem reasonable.  Justification will be kept on file.④ Fringe Benefits - Justification and back-up documentation will be kept on file for any fringe benefit rate that exceeds 50%.⑤ General Expenses - Includes items such as: Minor equipment (i.e., office furniture, IT equipment, anthropometric items, etc.), professional certifications, audit costs, vehicle maintenance, IT maintenance, program materials, office expenses (i.e., telephone services, printing, postage, supplies, etc.), etc.⑥ Travel - All costs reimbursed shall be in accordance with CalHR rates.⑦ Facility Costs - Includes Rent, Utilities, Janitorial, Security, and Maintenance.⑧ Major Equipment - Unit cost must be $5,000 or more.  Refer to Exhibit D, Provision 1 for procurement rules.⑨ Equipment - Includes items such as: Telephone systems, information technology equipment, photocopy machines, etc. ⑩ Vehicles - Will be used for Facility Site Visits, Conferences, Trainings, and Outreach.

Total 
Budget Adj.

Amended 
TotalTotal

Budgeted 
Amount

Year 2 Year 3
10/1/2019 - 9/30/2020 10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021 10/1/2021 - 9/30/2022

FTE
Adj.

FTE
Adj.

⑪ Subcontractors - List the subcontractor's name and short list of services provided.

County of Inyo
19-10153 A02

Fringe Benefits ④
Total FTE

Personnel 

FTE
Amended 

FTE

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount FTE

Amended 
FTE

Exhibit B, Attachment I

Budget 
Adj.

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount

Year 1

October 1, 2019 - September 30, 2022
Budget Detail Worksheet

Exhibit A
SOW 7.A.

Exhibit A
Attach I

 Current
Base 

Annual 
Salary 

Minimum 

Amended 
Budgeted
Amount

Budgeted 
Amount

 Amended 
Current

Base 
Annual 
Salary 

Minimum 

 Current
Base 

Annual 
Salary 

Maximum 

 Amended 
Current

Base 
Annual 
Salary 

Maximum 
Amended 

FTE
Budget 

Adj.

Page 1 of 1



Total Facility Costs:
Year 1 

Amended 
Total

 Year 2 
Total

Year 2 
Amended 

Total

 Year 3 
Total

Year 3 
Amended 

Total

 $                                                                            54,504 13,704$         13,704$       20,400$         13,704$       20,400$         

Site Street Address, City, State & Zip Code

Type of Space
(i.e., Clinic Site, 
Admin, Training 

Center,
Warehouse,

Storage Area, Satellite 
site)

Total
Square 
Footage

Amended 
Total Cost of 

Site Per 
Month

Amended Total 
Site Costs
Per Year

Total Cost of 
Site Per 
Month

Total Cost of 
Site Per 

Month Adj.

Amended 
Total Cost of 

Site Per 
Month

Total Site 
Cost

Per Year

Amended Total 
Site Costs
Per Year

Total Cost of 
Site Per 
Month

Total Cost of 
Site Per 

Month Adj.

Amended 
Total Cost of 

Site Per 
Month

Total Site 
Cost

Per Year

Amended Total 
Site Costs
Per Year

568 West Line Street, Bishop, CA 93514 Clinic Site 2000             1,142               13,704             1,142                558             1,700             13,704               20,400             1,142                558             1,700             13,704               20,400 

138 Jackson Street, Lone Pine, CA 93545 Satellite site 6698                     -                         -                     -                     -                     -                       -                         -                     -                     -                     -                       -                         - 

207A West South Street, Bishop, CA 93514 Administrative Site 2500                     -                         -                     -                     -                     -                       -                         -                     -                     -                     -                       -                         - 

155 East Market, Independence, CA 93526 Fiscal and Satellite Site 4285                     -                         -                     -                     -                     -                       -                         -                     -                     -                     -                       -                         - 

405 Hot Springs Road, Tecopa CA 92369 Satellite site 1140                     -                         -                     -                     -                     -                       -                         -                     -                     -                     -                       -                         - 

County of Inyo

19-10153 A02

Exhibit B, Attachment II
Facility Cost Worksheet

OCTOBER 1, 2019 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Page 1 of 1



County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Aaron Steinwand
 
SUBJECT:  2021-22 LADWP Annual Operations Plan
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board review and possibly provide direction concerning the LADWP draft 2021-2022 Pumping Plan.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Regarding LADWP’s Annual Operations Plan, the Inyo/Los Angeles Long-Term Water Agreement (LTWA) 
provides that:

By April 20th of each year, the Department shall prepare and submit to the Inyo County Technical Group a 
proposed operations plan and pumping program for the twelve (12) month period beginning on April 1st.  … The 
County through its Technical Group representatives shall review the Department’s proposed plan of operations 
and provide comments to the Department within ten (10) days of receipt of the plan.

As of the time of the preparation of this agenda request, we have not received the proposed Annual Operations 
Plan from LADWP.  The Water Department will distribute the proposed Annual Operations Plan to the Board, 
Water Commission, interested public, and post on the Water Department website when we receive it.  We have 
received LADWP’s preliminary April 1 runoff forecast, which forecasts 55% of normal Owens Valley runoff from 
April, 2021 through March, 2022.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
LADWP
 
FINANCING:
N/A



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Aaron Steinwand Created/Initiated - 4/19/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/20/2021
Aaron Steinwand Approved - 4/20/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 4/22/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 4/22/2021



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY OF INYO 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

 

April 30, 2021 

 

Mr. Adam Perez, Aqueduct Manager 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 

300 Mandich Street 

Bishop, California 93514 

 
(760) 878-0001 

FAX: (760) 878-2552 

 

EMAIL: mail@inyowater.org 
WEB: http://www.inyowater.org 

 

P.O. Box 337 

135 South Jackson Street 

Independence, CA 93526 

 

 

Subject: Inyo County comments on LADWP’s proposed Annual Operations Plan for 

Runoff Year 2021-2022 
 

 
 

Dear Mr. Perez, 

 
In accordance with Section V.D. of the Inyo/Los Angeles Long Term Water Agreement, this 

letter transmits the Inyo County Water Department’s (ICWD) comments on LADWP’s Draft 

Owens Valley Operations Plan for Runoff Year 2021-2022 (Draft Plan).  The Draft Plan 

indicates that the City intends to pump between 64,600 and 78,980 acre-feet (ac-ft) of 

groundwater during the 2021-2022 runoff year, and that runoff is forecast to be 55% of normal.  

Approximately 10,000 ac-ft of the potential high range of pumping is planned for the October-

March period, presumably for aqueduct supply.  The lower range of proposed pumping is less 

than long-term average pumping under the Water Agreement (73,645 ac-ft, 1991-2020) but 

significantly greater than necessary for sole source uses (e.g. in-valley agriculture or mitigation).  

The expected low runoff this year and low precipitation of this past winter will present 

challenges to meeting Water Agreement goals.  These conditions stress native vegetation, and 

our analysis suggests water levels are expected to decline in most wellfields even at minimum 

pumping for uses in the valley.  ICWD’s recommended pumping amount, 59,377 ac-ft is a more 

prudent plan for the upcoming drought year which allows the multiple goals of the Water 

Agreement to be met with a more sustainable approach: a significant amount of groundwater 

would be pumped for use in Owens Valley and export to Los Angeles, while stabilizing shallow 

water level conditions that are compatible with groundwater dependent vegetation protected by 

the Water Agreement. 

mailto:mail@inyowater.org
http://www.inyowater.org/


2 

 

 

Background  

Relatively low runoff and approximately 73,000 ac-ft of pumping in 2020-2021 caused the water 

table to decline in most areas of the Owens Valley (Table 1).  Operations and conditions in 2020 

were unusual in that pumping in Big Pine was curtailed due to closure of the Fish Springs 

hatchery.  Big Pine was the only wellfield in which water levels in multiple indicator wells rose 

in 2020-21. April 2021 water levels in two thirds of the indicator wells are now below those 

measured in the mid-1980s when the baseline vegetation mapping was completed, primarily in 

Laws, Taboose-Aberdeen, Independence-Oak, and Symmes-Shepherd wellfields.  Water levels 

in Independence-Oak and Symmes-Shepherd have not recovered from the pumping early in the 

2012-2016 drought despite favorable runoff during in 2016-2019 (Table 1). 

 
As in previous years, Inyo County does not think it is justified to pump groundwater for 

aqueduct supply to Los Angeles near vegetation that is measurably and chronically below 

baseline levels. Adjusting pumping to maintain a shallow water table in some areas of 

groundwater-dependent vegetation in 2021-22 is necessary to stabilize declines since the onset of 

the present drought and to potentially avoid impacts should the drought resemble recent lengthy 

droughts like those experienced often during the past 35 years.  Shallow groundwater levels are 

particularly important to maintain perennial grasses which have seen larger and more persistent 

declines than total cover and in a larger number of parcels. 

 
General Comments 

The Draft Plan includes testing of 386W near the Five-Bridges mitigation site.  Mitigation 

measure 10-12 was adopted by LADWP in the 1991 FEIR to mitigate the impacts caused by 

the operation of wells W385 and W386 in the late 1980’s (p. 10-58 of the 1990 DEIR, Sept. 

1990).  The adopted mitigation measure included discontinuation of pumping from the two 

wells. In 2018 Inyo and Los Angeles settled litigation regarding test pumping W385. That 

settlement required the Technical Group to temporarily amend the 1999 Revegetation Plan to 

allow pumping from W385 and to adopt a Mitigation and Monitoring plan for the test. The 

settlement also prescribes several actions that must occur before testing of W386 can proceed 

including: 1) Technical Group agreement that testing W385 did not cause adverse effects, 2) 

Technical Group approval of monitoring and mitigation plan for a W386 test, and 3) Technical 

Group agreement to again temporarily suspend the 1999 Revegetation Plan provision that 

W385 and W386 remain “permanently shut down” to allow the test to be conducted. In addition 

to the requirements necessary to comply with the 2018 settlement, we are aware that hydrologists 

from California Department of Fish and Wildlife are in the process of evaluating and reporting on 

the results of the 385W test.  The Technical Group should review that report before proceeding 

with a test of 386W.  Also, the monitoring and mitigation plan for the 385W test included a 

provision that hydrological conditions should be favorable before commencing pumping.  

Favorable hydrologic conditions were present at the beginning of the W385 test, and the Water 

Department would insist that similar conditions exist before the start of any test of W386 to 

protect sensitive resources and to clearly discriminate the effects of pumping from drought.  It does 

not appear that condition will be met given the extremely low runoff forecast.  The County is 



3 

 

 

concerned that the 1980’s vegetation impact at Five-Bridges has not been fully mitigated, in 

particular the diminished perennial cover, conversion of shrub willow areas, and weed 

infestation.   

 
Miscellaneous comments 

Neither the Draft Operations Plan nor Table 2.7 in the Draft Annual Report Chapter 2 – 

Conditions in the Owens Valley specify the amount of water used for Owens Lake dust 

mitigation separate from other uses. To assist Inyo County’s participation in the Owens Lake 

Groundwater Work Group, please include these data in the Draft Plan or elsewhere in the 

Annual Report.   

 
We are pleased to note that despite the lower than normal expected runoff, attempts will be 

made to meet Type E irrigation and other in-valley use obligations. We recognize that the 

planned irrigation and stockwater values are less than 1981-82 amounts but understand these 

reduced amounts are due to anticipated low creek flows in late summer due to the drought.  

Additional information regarding area runoff should be provided to inform the County how 

these final in-valley use values were estimated.  We remain concerned, however, over the 

persistent reduced delivery of stockwater compared with 1981-82 and the potential for adverse 

effects on lease operations and Type E vegetation and lessee operations. 

 
Although the Water Agreement’s process for Annual Operations Plans is based on planning for 

individual years, the Water Department recommends that the Technical Group consider multi- 

year planning to manage water table fluctuations within ranges compatible with vegetation 

baseline conditions.  Staff worked cooperatively on such proposals to revise the Green Book for 

several years, but while progress was made final methods were never agreed upon. 

 
Evaluation of 2020 Operations Plan – methods 

ICWD’s analysis of the Draft Plan and pumping recommendations are based on the goals and 

principles of the Water Agreement, the status of individual pumping wells according to Green 

Book soilwater triggers, groundwater dependent vegetation conditions monitored by the 

Technical Group, water table conditions in each well field, and groundwater uses within each 

wellfield. 

Multiple linear regression models at 46 indicator wells are used to predict water table elevation 

in April 2022 as a function of wellfield pumping, 2021 water table elevation, and forecasted 

Owens Valley runoff. The Laws indicator well models rely on the sum of diversions into the 

Upper and Lower McNally canals at the Owens River as the variable related to recharge instead 

of Owens Valley runoff. Water spreading is not planned for Laws in 2021-22 (Table 2.5 of the 

Draft Plan). The set of indicator well models used by ICWD differs from the original set of 

indicator wells used by LADWP, but the ranges of predicted changes generally agree with the 

predictions in Table 1.7.  The Technical Group in 2021should update and evaluate the models 

and agree on a common set of the best models to use for future pumping plans and analyses. 

 
Four pumping scenarios were evaluated and are presented in this letter; minimum pumping for 



4 

 

 

uses in the valley, LADWP’s proposed lower limit (minimum) and upper limit (maximum) for 

pumping in the Draft Plan, and reduced pumping (Tables 2 and 3).  The upper limit of the 

pumping proposed in the Draft Plan represents the maximum impact on the water table, and 

LADWP has historically pumped near the maximum proposed amount except for unusual 

circumstances (like in 2020 in Big Pine).  The analysis of water levels with minimum pumping 

for specific uses in the Owens Valley is included as a basis for comparison with the higher 

levels of pumping in the Draft Plan and the amount of pumping that ICWD analysis suggests is 

compatible with the goals of the Water Agreement.  In below normal runoff years, ICWD 

estimates minimum pumping for in-valley uses to be approximately 54,445 AF.  We recognize 

the actual pumped amount deviates from this estimate depending on forecasted and actual 

runoff differences which affect the amount of surface water available to supply irrigation or 

mitigation projects instead of groundwater. 

 
LADWP’s proposed operations plan includes pumping for export from all wellfields except 

Bishop, Lone Pine, and at the lower range of proposed pumping only, Thibaut-Sawmill and 

Symmes-Shepherd wellfields. ICWD’s reduced pumping corresponds with the lower range of 

the pumping in Draft Plan in those wellfields. ICWD has concerns about pumping and water 

levels persisting below baseline in three wellfields following the 2012-16 drought: 

Independence-Oak, Symmes-Shepherd, and southern Thibaut-Sawmill (Table 1).  Thibaut-

Sawmill and Independence-Oak were pumped for aqueduct supply in 2020 causing water 

levels to decline.  In 2020-21, the goal for these areas/wellfields should be to limit pumping to 

maintain water levels compatible with achieving the groundwater-dependent vegetation 

protections of the Water Agreement. 

 
Wellfield-specific conditions  

The following sections present a summary of conditions in each wellfield including: the 

predicted effects of the proposed pumping, ICWD’s comments on LADWP’s proposed 

operations, and ICWD’s recommended pumping. In the sections below, baseline water levels 

refer to the average of April water levels for 1985, 1986, and 1987, and baseline vegetation 

conditions refer to the conditions documented in the baseline maps attached to the Water 

Agreement as Exhibit A. Observed water level changes since April 2020 and deviations from 

baseline water levels based on ICWD field measurements are given in Table 1. Wellfield 

pumping proposed by LADWP in the Draft Plan and pumping recommended by ICWD are 

given in Table 2. Predicted water table changes are presented in Table 3. 

 

Laws. The Draft Plan proposes between 8,900 and 9,400 ac-ft of pumping in the Laws 

wellfield to supply town water systems, irrigation, enhancement/mitigation (E/M) projects, and 

export. Last year, the water table declined between 0.9 and 7.4 feet in indicator wells. The 

greatest declines were in the vicinity of the McNally Ponds project.  Water levels currently range 

from 4.0 feet below to 3.8 feet above baseline. Vegetation parcels LAW035, LAW043, 

LAW052, LAW062, LAW070, LAW072 and LAW085 are all in the same general vicinity and 

have chronically below-baseline grass cover, and perennial cover that only infrequently recover 



5 

 

 

to baseline conditions. 

 
Water levels in Laws respond substantially to irrigation and water spreading that is diverted from 

the Owens River into the McNally canals. LADWP’s Draft Plan suggests no diversion from the 

river is planned. The proposed upper pumping amount in Laws would cause water levels to 

decline several feet (Table 3).  Water levels are predicted to decline even at pumping for in-

valley uses in Laws.  Given the chronically poor vegetation conditions in the parcels listed above 

despite water table recovery in 2019-20, pumping should be limited to uses in Laws.  Pumping at 

this amount will maintain water levels in indicator wells (434T, 436T, 490T, V001g, and 574T) 

located near the relatively high cover meadow parcels in the southern and eastern portion within 

2.6 ft of baseline.  Following the 2012-16 drought, some perennial vegetation and grass recovery 

was observed, likely in response to shallower water levels caused by water spreading in 2017-19.  

Minimizing water level declines and water levels greater than 6 ft below ground surface (the 

nominal grass rooting zone) should continue to allow for maintenance of perennial vegetation 

and grass conditions.  

 
Despite repeated recovery of water levels to near or above baseline since 2000, the degraded 

conditions in parcels noted above persist. It is important that the Technical Group evaluate in 

2021-22 whether a significant impact exists (Green Book Sec. I.C.) in these vegetation parcels in 

Laws. 

 
Bishop. LADWP proposes to pump 12,000 ac-ft from the Bishop wellfield. It appears 

that the proposed pumping will be within the limits of the Hillside Decree. ICWD recommends 

pumping not exceed 12,000 ac-ft providing that it complies with the Hillside Decree and that 

uses/losses downstream of the wells exceed pumping. 

 
Big Pine. LADWP proposes to pump between 20,500 and 23,000 ac-ft from the Big Pine 

wellfield.  The upper amount includes hatchery and town supply as well as several months of 

operation of exempt well(s) for export.  One large vegetation parcel in the wellfield, BGP162, 

has had vegetation cover chronically below baseline.  Two other parcels, BP154 and FSP006 

have suffered a measurable grass decline.  Last year, perennial vegetation cover in BGP162 was 

significantly below baseline again. The water table changes varied between +0.45 ft to -2.94 ft at 

indicator wells and monitoring sites in the wellfield.  Water levels vary between 4 ft above to 0.8 

ft below baseline at indicator wells but, due to the reduction in hatchery pumping, the average 

water level in the shallow-aquifer indicator wells remained above baseline (0.9 ft) for the second 

consecutive year.   

 
The Draft Plan states that LADWP intends to decommission W341 and replace its pumping with 

adjacent W415 for the town water system needs.  In 2020 the Inyo/Los Angeles Technical 

Group approved test procedures for the initial period of operation of W415 pumping above the 

exemption for town supply (W415 test) consistent with GreenBook Section VI. The test has not 

commenced but the monitoring program is in place.  Staff should continue the water level and 

vegetation monitoring in 2021.  We also recognize that the Water Agreement, as amended in 



6 

 

 

2002, committed LADWP to provide surface and groundwater for the Big Pine Irrigation and 

Improvement Association (BPIIA) ditch system from Big Pine Creek.  In an exchange of letters 

in 2020, Inyo and Los Angeles concurred that water exiting the Big Pine Community Service 

District into Big Pine Creek would be considered pumped make-up water for the BPIIA. That 

accounting practice should continue.    

 
If the proposed pump test of W415 is conducted in 2020, the overall pumping from Big Pine 

should not exceed the amount for the W415 test, town supply, BP Northeast Regreening Project, 

and the hatchery (approximately 19,225 ac-ft, approximate required use). Wells W218 and 

W219 should not be operated to prevent confounding the 415W test results and to safeguard 

water level increases and tenuous vegetation improvements in recent years. 

 

In late 2020, conversations with California Department of Fish and Wildlife, staff mentioned 

that the Fish Springs hatchery may not require the full capacity of W330 and W332 at certain 

times of the year.  Over the past several months, CDFW staff have analyzed their operations and 

water requirements.  The flow required by the hatchery operations in any month cannot be 

supplied with a single well, but there are certain months in the fall or winter where pumping 

capacity of both wells is not necessary to meet present hatchery fish production goals.  Those 

wells are exempt for hatchery use, and the Technical Group should revisit the exemptions and 

cooperate with CDFW to design water delivery infrastructure or pumps with varying capacity 

and potentially reduce the constant pumping stress on the Big Pine Wellfield.  

 
Taboose-Aberdeen. LADWP proposes to pump between 5,300 and 8,880 ac-ft in the 

Taboose-Aberdeen wellfield. Alkali meadow parcels TIN050, TIN053, TIN064, and TIN068 all 

have chronically lower grass cover than baseline despite water level recovery to baseline 

suggesting a Type C to B conversion may have occurred and the water table regime may be 

insufficient to recover vegetation to baseline. Last year, water table declined in all indicator 

wells in this wellfield from 1.2-5.2 ft and now are below baseline.  All indicator wells declined 

in 2020-21 at the lower and upper limits of proposed pumping. Decreasing pumping to 4,000 ac-

ft would stabilize water levels during the upcoming year on average. Pumping from W118 and 

W349 should be limited to avoid lowering water levels under the parcels in the northern portion 

of the wellfield exhibiting grass declines.   

 
The Technical Group should evaluate in 2021-22 whether a significant change in Type C parcels 

exists in vegetation parcels with chronically depressed grass cover. 

 
Thibaut-Sawmill. LADWP proposes to pump 8,000 to 11,000 in the Thibaut-Sawmill 

wellfield. Two parcels, IND026 and IND029 in the southern portion of this wellfield have 

chronically depressed water levels and grass cover. Pumping should be managed to promote water 

table recovery under these parcels by not pumping W382. Cover in BLK094 is not fully recovered in 

terms of perennial or grass cover.  Last year, the water table declined 0.8-3.0 ft, but water levels 

remained at baseline or several feet above baseline (Table 1), largely due to reductions in pumping at 

the Blackrock hatchery in 2014. Water levels will remain above baseline at LADWP’s proposed 



7 

 

 

maximum pumping amount; however, ICWD recommends pumping not exceed 8,432 ac-ft for the 

hatchery and possible late summer irrigation pumping from W155 if creek flow is insufficient.  

Pumping should be managed to maintain water levels under the parcels mentioned above. 

 
The Technical Group should evaluate in 2021-22 whether a significant impact exists in 

vegetation parcels IND026 and 029. 

 
Independence-Oak. LADWP proposes to pump between 7,000 and 8,800 ac-ft in the 

wellfield. Last year, water levels decreased at all monitoring sites and indicator wells, and were  

2-6 ft below baseline. This wellfield was pumped for export again in 2020 and water levels in 

the southern portion remain below baseline and have not recovered since 2018.  Pumping should 

be limited to sole source uses at 6,420 ac- ft. Water levels in some wells decline even at that 

amount, and restricting pumping to irrigation and E/M projects would result in approximately 

0.54 ft. decline in water levels on average (Table 3). 

 
Symmes-Shepherd. LADWP proposes to pump 1,200-2,900 ac-ft from the Symmes-

Shepherd wellfield for sole source irrigation supply and export. One parcel, IND139, exhibits 

chronically depressed grass cover. Last year, the water table changes varied between +0.4--0.7 

ft;, but despite the gradual water table recovery and conservative pumping in recent years, the 

water table level remains below baseline. ICWD recommends that pumping be limited to 

approximately 1,800 ac-ft to stabilize water levels. 

 
Bairs-Georges. LADWP proposes to pump 2,100 to 2,820 ac-ft in the Bairs-Georges 

wellfield. Perennial and grass cover in the largest monitored parcel in the wellfield MAN037 

have been not statistically below baseline in three out of the previous four years but has yet to 

attain or exceed baseline.  The increased vegetation cover has corresponded with water levels 

recovery to baseline.  Cover in an adjacent parcel, MAN038, which has only infrequently been 

sampled, was also below baseline in 2020.  Last year, water levels declined 0.8 to 3.4 ft. in 

indicator and vegetation monitoring site wells and two remain at or above baseline. Under 

LADWP’s maximum proposed pumping, water levels would decline 1.5 to 2.5 ft and would be 

below baseline in all wells.  ICWD acknowledges the possible need to supplement 

irrigation/stockwater flows from Georges Creek with pumped water in this low-runoff year, 

and 600 ac-ft of pumping can accomplish this need and maintain water levels in 2022.   

 
Lone Pine. LADWP proposes to pump 980 ac-ft from the Lone Pine wellfield for town and 

E/M project supply. Concerning operation of well W416, the Draft Plan notes that LADWP 

plans to equip and test this well and has requested that the Technical Group designate a 

monitoring site to manage this well. The management requirements of this well differ from those 

of many of LADWP’s aqueduct supply wells in that effects on non-LADWP wells are a much 

more substantial concern here than in other wellfields. The Water Department does not think the 

modifications to the well alleviate concerns that it may affect private wells. Before W416 can be 

operated, the Technical Group should adopt procedures to test the well under conditions that 

prevent impacts to vegetation and private wells. ICWD recommends pumping not exceed 980 



8 

 

 

ac-ft for the uses specified in the Draft Plan. 

 
We look forward to addressing these comments at a Technical Group meeting. If you wish to 

discuss these comments prior to the Technical Group meeting, feel free to contact me. 

 

 
Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Aaron Steinwand, Water Director 

 
cc: Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

Inyo County Water Commission 

Clint Quilter, County CAO 

Marshall Rudolph, County Counsel 

Greg James, Special Counsel 



9 

 

 

Table 1. Depth to Water (DTW) at indicator wells, April 2020. All data are in feet. Negative 

values denote a decline in water level. Depths are from reference point on the test well. Baseline 

elevation at monitoring sites was predicted from monitoring site/indicator wells regression 

models unless the test well was present 1985-87. 
 

Station ID, Monitoring site 
DTW Change from 

April 2020 

Deviation from 

Baseline in 2021 April 2021 

Laws       

107T 27.37 -3.87 -3.10 

434T 6.98 -0.91 0.62 

436T 8.09 -2.11 0.01 

438T 13.63 -6.43 -4.03 

490T 13.75 -4.88 -0.68 

492T 29.02 -4.95 3.78 

795T, LW1 15.56 -7.41 -2.27 

V001G, LW2 18.48 -4.54 1.14 

574T, LW3† 14.45 -3.72 -1.37 

Big Pine 
   

425T 13.57 0.33 1.33 

426T 11.90 -0.36 -0.33 

469T 22.09 -0.90 -0.42 

572T 7.78 0.45 4.12 

798T, BP1 14.64 -2.94 1.41 

799T, BP2 19.31 -0.87 -0.80 

567T, BP3 13.06 -0.74 0.90 

800T, BP4 12.49 0.49 1.10 

Taboose Aberdeen 
   

417T 28.61 -5.15 -1.64 

418T 8.69 -1.23 -0.46 

419T, TA1 7.01 -2.90 -0.38 

421T 36.84 -3.58 -2.49 

502T 11.34 -2.29 -3.85 

504T 11.02 -2.79 -0.25 

505T 20.41 -5.21 -1.81 

586T, TA4 8.39 -1.99 -0.07 

801T, TA5 16.11 -1.45 -2.59 

803T, TA6 9.86 -4.87 -1.16 



10 

 

 

Station ID, Monitoring site 
DTW 

April 2021 

Change from 

April 2020 

Deviation from 

Baseline in 2021 

Thibaut Sawmill 
   

415T 12.35 -3.00 6.15 

507T 4.62 -0.75 0.05 

806T, TS2 10.39 -0.87 2.79 

Independence Oak 
   

406T 4.03 -0.47 -2.46 

407T 12.05 -0.36 -4.75 

408T 5.60 -1.60 -2.47 

409T 7.38 -0.83 -5.78 

546T 6.27 -1.52 -2.84 

809T, IO1 10.99 -1.64 -4.42 

Symmes Shepherd 
   

402T 10.80 -0.69 -2.77 

403T 7.11 -0.05 -1.78 

404T 6.39 -0.51 -2.82 

447T 35.42 -0.08 -13.55 

510T 7.62 -0.54 -2.62 

511T 7.89 -0.34 -3.26 

V009G, SS1 17.49 0.46 -10.66 

Bairs George 
   

398T 5.98 -2.02 0.37 

400T 6.38 -0.81 -0.08 

812T, BG2 16.16 -3.44 -2.70 

 
  



11 

 

 

Table 2. Pumping totals by wellfield evaluated using the regression models. Regression modeling is not 

completed for Bishop because pumping in that wellfield must comply with the Hillside decree and for 

Lone Pine because the proposed pumping is for mitigation and town supply only. 

 

Wellfield LADWP Min 

(64,600 AF) 

LADWP Max 

(78,980 AF) 

In-Valley Min 

(54,445 AF) 

ICWD Reduced 

(59,377 AF) 

 Ac-ft/year Ac-ft/year Ac-ft/year Ac-ft/year 

Laws 8,900 9,400 6,000 6,000 

Bishop 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 

Big Pine 20,500 23,000 19,225 19,225 

Taboose-Aberdeen 5,300 8,880 300 4,000 

Thibaut-Sawmill 8,000 11,000 8,000 8,432 

Independence-Oak 7,000 8,800 6,420 6,420 

Symmes-Shepherd 1,200 2,900 1,200 1,800 

Bairs-George 800 2,100 400 600 

Lone Pine 900 900 900 900 



12 

 

 

Table 3. Predicted water level changes at indicator wells and monitoring sites for LADWP's proposed 
annual operations plan for 2020. Negative DTW values denote a decline. 

Station ID, Monitoring 

site 

LADWP Low 

64,600 ac-ft 

2022 vs 2021 

LADWP Low 

64,600 ac-ft  

2022 vs Baseline 

In Valley MIN 

54,445 ac-ft 

2022 vs 2021 

In Valley MIN 

54,445 ac-ft 

2022 vs Baseline 

 (DTW change ft) (DTW change ft) (DTW change ft) (DTW change ft) 

Laws     

107T -3.55 -6.65 -2.59 -5.69 

434T -1.12 -0.50 -0.70 -0.08 

436T -2.33 -2.32 -1.91 -1.90 

438T -1.15 -5.18 -0.80 -4.83 

490T -1.40 -2.08 -1.21 -1.90 

492T -4.87 -1.09 -3.32 0.46 

795T -7.21 -9.48 -5.83 -8.10 

V001g -4.35 -3.21 -3.55 -2.41 

574T -1.64 -3.00 -1.20 -2.57 
Big Pine     

425T -1.74 -0.41 -1.52 -0.19 

426T -1.03 -1.36 -0.90 -1.24 

469T -0.85 -1.27 -0.73 -1.15 

572T -3.70 0.42 -3.46 0.66 

798T, BP1 -1.03 0.37 -0.82 0.58 

799T, BP2 -0.42 -1.22 -0.30 -1.10 

567T, BP3 -2.12 -1.22 -1.93 -1.02 

800T, BP4 -1.18 -0.08 -0.92 0.19 

Taboose Aberdeen     

417T -0.50 -2.15 0.80 -0.84 

418T -0.14 -0.60 0.43 -0.03 

419T, TA1 -0.47 -0.85 0.88 0.50 

421T -0.51 -3.00 0.85 -1.63 

502T -0.07 -3.92 0.55 -3.29 

504T -0.52 -0.77 1.16 0.90 

505T -0.42 -2.23 0.92 -0.89 

586T, TA4 -0.13 -0.20 0.98 0.92 

801T, TA5 -0.66 -1.93 0.96 -1.62 

803T, TA6 -0.87 -2.03 0.37 -0.79 
Thibaut Sawmill     

415T 0.41 6.56 0.41 6.56 

507T 0.55 0.59 0.55 0.59 

806T, TS2 -0.18 2.61 -0.18 2.61 
Independence- Oak     

406T -0.43 -2.89 -0.39 -2.85 

407T 0.14 -4.61 0.34 -4.41 

408T 0.19 -2.27 0.33 -2.14 

409T -1.24 -7.02 -0.84 -6.62 

546T -1.63 -4.47 -1.55 -4.38 

809T, IO1 -1.32 -5.74 -1.11 -5.54 
Symmes Shepherd     

402T 0.03 -2.74 0.03 -2.74 

403T 0.28 -1.50 0.28 -1.50 

404T 0.53 -2.29 0.53 -2.29 

447T -0.44 -14.00 -0.44 -14.00 

510T 0.54 -2.08 0.54 -2.08 

511T 0.45 -2.81 0.45 -2.81 

V009G, SS1 -0.05 -10.71 -0.05 -10.71 
Bairs George     

398T 0.28 0.65 0.83 1.20 

400T 0.05 -0.03 0.15 0.07 

812T -0.96 -3.65 -0.48 -3.18 



13 

 

 

Table 3. [continued] 
Station ID, 

Monitoring site 

LADWP High 

78,980 ac-ft 
2022 vs 2021 

LADWP High 

78,980 ac-ft 
2022 vs Baseline 

ICWD Recommended 

59,377 ac-ft 
2022 vs 2021 

ICWD Recommended 

59,377 ac-ft 
2022 vs Baseline 

 (DTW change ft) (DTW change ft) (DTW change ft) (DTW change ft) 

Laws     

107T -3.72 -6.82 -2.59 -5.69 

434T -1.19 -0.57 -0.70 -0.08 

436T -2.40 -2.39 -1.91 -1.90 

438T -1.21 -5.24 -0.80 -4.83 

490T -1.43 -2.11 -1.21 -1.90 

492T -5.14 -1.36 -3.32 0.46 

795T -7.44 -9.72 -5.83 -8.10 

V001g -4.49 -3.35 -3.55 -2.41 

574T -1.71 -3.08 -1.20 -2.57 
Big Pine     

425T -2.16 -0.83 -1.52 -0.19 

426T -1.27 -1.60 -0.90 -1.24 

469T -1.08 -1.50 -0.73 -1.15 

572T -4.16 -0.04 -3.46 0.66 

798T, BP1 -1.44 -0.03 -0.82 0.58 

799T, BP2 -0.64 -1.44 -0.30 -1.10 

567T, BP3 -2.51 -1.60 -1.93 -1.02 

800T, BP4 -1.69 -0.59 -0.92 0.19 
Taboose Aberdeen     

417T -1.44 -3.09 -0.16 -1.81 

418T -0.54 -1.00 0.01 -0.45 

419T, TA1 -1.44 -1.81 -0.12 -0.50 

421T -1.49 -3.98 -0.16 -2.64 

502T -0.52 -4.37 0.09 -3.76 

504T -1.71 -1.97 -0.08 -0.33 

505T -1.38 -3.19 -0.07 -1.88 

586T, TA4 -0.93 -1.00 0.16 0.09 

801T, TA5 0.43 -2.15 0.74 -1.85 

803T, TA6 -1.76 -2.92 -0.55 -1.71 
Thibaut Sawmill     

415T -1.91 4.24 0.07 6.22 

507T 0.05 0.10 0.48 0.52 

806T, TS2 -0.77 2.02 -0.27 2.53 
Independence- Oak     

406T -0.56 -3.02 -0.39 -2.85 

407T -0.47 -5.22 0.34 -4.41 

408T -0.21 -2.68 0.33 -2.14 

409T -2.50 -8.28 -0.84 -6.62 

546T -1.90 -4.74 -1.55 -4.38 

809T, IO1 -1.94 -6.36 -1.11 -5.54 
Symmes Shep.     

402T -0.16 -2.94 -0.04 -2.81 

403T -0.25 -2.03 0.09 -1.69 

404T 0.34 -2.49 0.46 -2.36 

447T -1.68 -15.23 -0.88 -14.43 

510T 0.35 -2.27 0.47 -2.15 

511T 0.25 -3.01 0.38 -2.88 

V009G, SS1 -0.15 -11.81 -0.44 -11.10 
Bairs George     

398T -1.48 -1.11 0.55 0.92 

400T -0.28 -0.36 0.10 0.02 

812T -2.49 -5.16 -0.72 -3.42 

 



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Risk Management
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Aaron Holmberg
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed update to Chapter 1.28 of the Inyo County Code
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board introduce, read title, and waive further reading of the proposed ordinance amending Chapter 1.28 
of the Inyo County Code pertaining to claims, and schedule enactment for Tuesday, May 4, 2021, in the Board of 
Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative Center, Independence.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Chapter 1.28 of the Inyo County Code addresses the delegation of authority to investigate and settle claims 
against the County within certain specified limits and parameters. Adding and amending certain sections of 
Chapter 1.28 could improve administrative efficiency by clarifying and delegating similar authority for claims that 
the County may have against other parties.  This would, for example, help Risk Management to handle small 
property claims locally, in-house, and quickly instead of bringing small dollar issues regarding particular residents 
(for example) to your Board as scheduling allows, and instead of deferring to the County's property insurance 
program to address such losses at an additional cost per claim and longer term by premium allocation.   
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
Chapter 1.28 of the Inyo County Code was enacted in 1998. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could decide not to introduce this ordinance. This would allow an identified administrative inefficiency 
to continue.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Risk Management worked with Counsel Counsel to develop this ordinance update.
 
FINANCING:
This ordinance update is expected to help control the rising cost of insurance in this very difficult insurance 
market. There is other expected negative financial impact.
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. Proposed Ordinance Re: Claims
 
APPROVALS:
Aaron Holmberg Created/Initiated - 3/30/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/30/2021
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 3/30/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 3/31/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 4/7/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 4/7/2021
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 4/21/2021



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,  

ADDING AND AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS 

 OF CHAPTER 1.28 OF THE INYO COUNTY CODE 

PERTAINING TO CLAIMS 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 1.28 of the Inyo County Code currently addresses claims against the 

County and, among other things, delegates authority to certain individuals (viz., the county risk 

manager, county counsel, and county administrator) to investigate and settle such claims within 

specified limits and parameters; and 

 

WHEREAS, to enhance administrative efficiency, the Board wishes to add and amend certain 

sections of Chapter 1.28 in order to include claims that the County itself may have against other 

parties and to delegate similar authority to investigate and settle such claims. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of Inyo County ORDAINS as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE. 

 

The title of Chapter 1.28 is hereby amended to read: “Claims.”   

 

SECTION TWO. 

 

Section 1.28.010 of the Inyo County Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

“1.28.010  Application. 

 

A. Except where otherwise specifically provided, the provisions of this chapter apply to all 

claims against the county: 

1.   For money or damages which are governed by Chapter 1 (Section 900 et seq.) and Chapter 2 

(Section 910 et seq.) of Part 3, Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the California Government Code 

(hereinafter referred to as the State Tort Claims Act); 

2.   For money or damages which are governed by the Inyo County Administrative Claims Act 

(see Section 1.28.020 below); and 

3.   For benefits authorized by Division 4 (Section 3201 et seq.) of the California Labor Code 

(hereinafter referred to as the State Workers’ Compensation Act.) 

B. To the extent provided by Section 1.28.045 below, certain provisions of this chapter also 

apply to claims the county may have against other parties.” 

 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

 



2 

 

SECTION THREE. 

 

Section 1.28.045 is hereby added to the Inyo County Code, to read as follows: 

 

“1.28.045  Delegation of authority to investigate and settle claims against other parties. 

  

  The provisions of Sections 1.28.030 and 1.28.040 above, which respectively delegate 

authority to investigate and settle claims against the County, shall also apply and extend 

to any claims that the County itself may have against other parties.  In other words, 

similar authority is hereby delegated to the individuals named in Sections 1.28.030 and 

1.28.040 to investigate and settle claims that the County may have against other parties, 

subject to the same limitations and parameters specified by those sections.” 

 

SECTION FOUR.  SEVERABILITY. 

 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to 

be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The Board hereby 

declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each and every section, subsection, 

sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any 

portion of this Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

SECTION FIVE.  CEQA COMPLIANCE. 

 

This ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 

CEQA Guidelines Section 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or reasonably 

foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and Section 15060(c)(3) (the activity is 

not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines, because it has no potential for 

resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.)  

 

SECTION SIX.  EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. 

Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this ordinance shall be 

published as required by Government Code Section 25124. The Clerk of the Board is hereby 

instructed and ordered to so publish this ordinance together with the names of the Board 

members voting for or against the same. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of April, 2021, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  _______ 

NOES:  _______ 

ABSTAIN: _______ 

ABSENT: _______ 

________________________________ 

JEFF GRIFFITHS, Chairperson 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors 



3 

 

 

 

ATTEST: Clint Quilter 

  Clerk of the Board 

 

 

By: _____________________________ 

 Darcy Ellis, Assistant 

  Assistant Clerk of the Board 

 



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of April 20, 2021.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created - 
Darcy Ellis
Darcy Ellis
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Sue Dishion



County of Inyo

Water Department
 

TIMED ITEMS - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Aaron Steinwand
 
SUBJECT:  Workshop with the Inyo County Water Commission on conditions in Owens Valley and LADWP draft 
2021-2022 Pumping Plan -- 11 A.M.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board hold workshop with the Inyo County Water Commission on conditions in the Owens Valley and 
the LADWP draft 2021-2022 Pumping Plan.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo County Water Commission was created to assist in the implementation of the County Policy on 
Extraction and Use of Water, Agreement, FEIR, MOU and Ordinance No. 1004 (Resolution 99-43).  The roles 
and responsibilities of the Commission are summarized in the memo included in the packet.  One responsibility 
included in Resolution 99-43 is that at least every six months, the commission shall submit written 
recommendations, advice and reports to the Board, and/or present such recommendations, advice and reports to 
the Board at a workshop.  At the January 21 and March 31 meetings, the Water Commission requested a 
workshop with the Board of Supervisors to discuss water issues and in particular, the conditions in the Owens 
Valley and the draft 2021-2022 proposed Annual Operations Plan from the City of Los Angeles Department and 
Water and Power.  

The workshop will include a Water Department staff presentation describing vegetation and water table 
conditions and LADWP’s proposed operations plan.  The Operations Plan and Water Department analysis of the 
plan were not available at the time this agenda request was prepared, but will be provided to the Board when 
available.  The Water Commission will hold a meeting the evening before the workshop on April 26th and may 
approve recommendations to the Board to be discussed during the workshop.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
LADWP



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Roles and Responsibilities of the Water Commission
 
APPROVALS:
Aaron Steinwand Created/Initiated - 4/19/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/20/2021
Aaron Steinwand Approved - 4/21/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 4/21/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 4/21/2021



 

INYO COUNTY WATER DEPARTMENT 
 

January 19, 2021 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Members of the Inyo County Water Commission 
 
From: Aaron Steinwand, Water Director 
 
Subject:  Roles and Responsibilities of the Water Commission, January 21, 2021 meeting   
 
At its November 16, 2020 meeting, the Water Commission requested an item to discuss the roles and 
responsibilities of the Water Commission be placed on the agenda for the January 21 meeting.  This 
memo briefly reviewing the history and the duties of the Commission prepared to assist the discussion.  
 
In 1980, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors drafted and the voters of Inyo County passed an ordinance 
to regulate groundwater pumping through a groundwater management plan utilizing a permit procedure.  
The 1980 ordinance formed the Water Commission and identified numerous duties for review and 
approval of pumping permits.  The City of Los Angeles commenced litigation challenging the ordinance, 
and in 1983 the Inyo County Superior Court found the ordinance unconstitutional.  Subsequently, Inyo 
County and Los Angeles began negotiations and studies that would ultimately result in the 1991 
Inyo/Los Angeles Long-Term Water Agreement (LTWA) to settle the CEQA litigation over the water 
supply for the second LA aqueduct.  As a consequence of the legal challenges and approval of the LTWA, 
duties originally assigned to the Water Commission by the 1980 ordinance were extinguished.  This has 
left the Water Commission primarily fulfilling an advisory role to the Board or Planning Commission, or 
as a forum for the public to express their views on water issues.  With respect to the 1980 ordinance 
and the disposition of Los Angeles’ litigation, the Water Agreement provides that (Section XXVIII): 
 

…the County, its agents, servants, officers and employees, and all other persons acting in concert 
with the County, are enjoined from applying, implementing, or enforcing in any manner 
whatsoever, the County of Inyo Owens Valley Groundwater Management Ordinance … provided 
however, that the Inyo County Water Department and Inyo County Water Commission may 
remain in existence to carry out the provisions of [the Water Agreement]. 

 
Within the Water Agreement, two Commissioners serve on the Inyo/Los Angeles Standing Committee 
(Section II) which is the decision-making body overseeing many of the LTWA activities and projects.  
Each agency has one vote, usually cast by the member serving as Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 
unless delegated to another.  Even though the role of the Water Commission is largely advisory, that 



responsibility should not be underestimated.  During the development of the LTWA, the Water 
Commission served an important role as a forum for the public to voice concerns and comments on 
water-related issues which continues to the present.  
 
In 1999, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 99-43, which set forth the purpose and duties of 
the Water Commission (the portion of 99-43 pertaining to the Water Commission is attached).   In 
addition to the role of advisors to the Board, Resolution 99-43 provides that the Water Commission 
evaluate the hydrogeological and related environmental impacts of any proposed transfer or transport of 
water regulated by Ordinance 1004 (the groundwater ordinance), and based upon the evaluation, develop 
recommended mitigation measures, project conditions, and groundwater monitoring , management, and/or 
reporting program.  The Water Commission proposes findings and submit these recommendations to the 
County Planning Commission.   Resolution 99-43 and Inyo County Code Section 15.12.040 also provide that 
the Water Commission serve as environmental review board and lead environmental agency for the purpose 
of the California Environmental Quality Act on all projects permitted, carried out, approved, funded or 
processed by the Water Department.  Such projects include, but are not limited to, the Lower Owens River 
Project, enhancement/mitigation projects undertaken pursuant to the Long Term Agreement, mitigation 
projects adopted in the FEIR, groundwater pumping by the City of Los Angeles under the LTWA, and salt 
cedar control or other invasive plant control undertaken pursuant to the LTWA.  As the LTWA mitigation 
projects progressed from planning and permitting to implementation and monitoring, the need for the 
Water Commission’s role as environmental review board and lead agency diminished.  The role of the 
Commission could still apply, however, when additional CEQA compliance necessary to revise the LTWA 
projects or if the Water Department undertakes other new projects .   
 
Resolution 99-43 provides that the Water Department serves as staff to the Water Commission to 
coordinate Water Commission meetings, record minutes at meetings, develop meeting agendas, and 
perform other administrative support functions for the Water Commission; however, this provision 
does not grant the Water Commission the authority to direct Water Department work or personnel.   
 
In 2020, Inyo County Board of Supervisors conducted a first reading of a proposed ordinance to replace 
1004.  The Board placed final decision on the revised ordinance on hold temporarily, but may consider 
the ordinance again in the future.  In the proposed ordinance, the role of the Water Commission was 
greatly expanded.  Rather than submitting recommendations to the Planning Commission 
consideration, the Water Commission would administer the ordinance which includes receiving,  
hearing, and deciding every application for a water transfer or transport permit.  Additional roles could 
include setting monitoring and reporting requirements as part of the permit conditions and hearing 
appeals of any Water Department decisions regarding permits.  The Water Commission would serve as 
the environmental review board and lead environmental agency for CEQA review of projects receiving 
permits.  



Resolution 99-43, Part II, Section III. Inyo County Water Commission 
 
A. Purpose 
  The purpose of the Inyo County Water Commission is to assist in the implementation of 
the County Policy on Extraction and Use of Water, Agreement, FEIR, MOU and Ordinance No. 1004 as set 
forth below. 
 
 1. Remain informed and educated about issues relating to water resources. 
 

2. Conduct meetings to inform and educate the public about, and to solicit public opinion on, 
all issues, decisions, projects, programs and activities arising out of, or associated with, the 
Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU, and the transfer and transport of water regulated by 
Ordinance No. 1004. 

 
3. Continuously review implementation of the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU, and any 

transfer or transport of water regulated by Ordinance No. 1004 and submit periodic 
written recommendations or advice to this Board, together with reports on the views of 
the public, concerning issues, decisions, projects, programs and activities arising out of, or 
associated with, the implementation of the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU, and any 
transfer or transport of water regulated by Ordinance No. 1004.  At least every six 
months, the commission shall submit written recommendations, advice and reports to the 
Board, and/or present such recommendations, advice and reports to the Board at a 
workshop.  

 
4. Evaluate, the hydrogeological and related environmental impacts of any proposed  

transfer or transport of water regulated by Ordinance 1004, and based upon the 
evaluation, identify and develop recommended mitigation measures, project conditions, a 
monitoring, groundwater management and/or reporting program, and proposed findings, 
and submit these recommendations to the County Planning Commission. 

 
 5. Serve, as required by Section 15.12.040 of the Inyo County Code, as the environmental 

review board and lead environmental agency for the purpose of the California 
Environmental Quality Act on all projects permitted, carried out, approved, funded or 
processed by the Water Department.  Such projects include, but are not limited to, the 
Lower Owens River Project, enhancement/mitigation projects undertaken pursuant to the 
Long Term Agreement, mitigation projects adopted in the FEIR, groundwater pumping by 
the City of Los Angeles under the Long Term Agreement, and salt cedar control, other 
invasive plant control, and weed control undertaken pursuant to the Long Term 
Agreement. The environmental responsibilities of the Commission do not include serving 
as the environmental review board or lead agency in regard to the issuance of a 
conditional use permit pursuant to Ordinance 1004, the release of any land pursuant to 
the Long Term Agreement, the rehabilitation and development of parks pursuant to the 
Long Term Agreement, or the transfer of town water systems under the Long Term 
Agreement. 

  
 6. Conduct meetings, as may be requested by this Board, inform and educate the  
  public about, and to solicit public opinion on, water resource issues and decisions  
   which arise outside of the Agreement, the FEIR, and the MOU;  



 
  7. Submit, as may be requested by this Board, recommendations or advice, together  

with reports on the views of the public, concerning water resource issues and decisions 
which arise outside of the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU and Ordinance 1004; 
 

 8. Designate two members of the commission to serve on the Standing Committee. 
 
 
 9. The  responsibilities of the Water Commission do not extend to the implementation of the 

provisions of the Agreement for the Transfer of the Town Water Systems (Section XI) the 
Release of City Owned Lands (Section XV), nor to the implementation of provisions of the 
Agreement for Park Rehabilitation, Development, and Maintenance (Section XIV. B).  
These responsibilities are delegated to other commissions and departments of the County 
as set forth below. For informational purposes, the Water Commission is to receive copies 
of any status reports concerning these activities that may be presented to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

 
 



County of Inyo

Board of Supervisors
 

TIMED ITEMS - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Chairperson Jeff Griffiths
 
SUBJECT:  IFNF Grant Program Presentation -- 1 P.M.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board receive a presentation on the Innovative Finance for National Forests (IFNF) grant program and 
opportunities related to Inyo National Forest campgrounds.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Representatives for Quantified Ventures, an outcomes-based capital firm, are requesting the opportunity to 
present to the Board information on the Innovative Finance for National Forests (IFNF) grand programs and 
opportunities related to Inyo National Forest campgrounds. The discussion will also touch on ways the Eastern 
Sierra can efficiently leverage public and private capital now and in the future. This same presentation was 
recently made to the Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership and the Eastern Sierra Council of 
Governments.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
Quantified Ventures describes itself as an outcomes-based capital firm that drives transformative health, social, 
and environmental impact. Leveraging deep content expertise and extensive capital relationships, the firm plans, 
finances, and develops transformative projects and programs that create health, social, and environmental 
impacts for a growing array of public and private organizations.

The Innovative Finance for National Forests (IFNF) grant program supports the development and implementation 
of innovative finance models that leverage private capital to support the resilience of the National Forest System 
and surrounding lands. IFNF supports local communities and stakeholders looking for new ways to support 
healthy forests, project developers working to connect investment capital to forested landscapes, and Forest 
Service managers and collaborators exploring new ways to support unfunded projects.

The IFNF program supports the development, refining, and scaling of tools, templates, and approaches that 
direct private investment capital to improve the health of the National Forest System through projects that deliver 
environmental, social, and financial outcomes. Project activities may take place on the National Forest System, 
on adjacent state, private or tribal lands, or across boundaries provided outcomes of project activities contribute 
to the health of Forest Service ownership.

The IFNF grant program is funded by and administered by the USDA Forest Service (USFS) National 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Partnership Office (NPO), National Forest Foundation (NFF), and U.S. Endowment for Forestry and Communities 
(Endowment).
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. IFNF Presentation
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 4/22/2021
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 4/22/2021



Inyo National Forest 
Campgrounds Project

ESCOG Update | April 9, 2021

Innovative Finance for National Forest Program



How can the Eastern Sierra efficiently 
leverage public and private capital now and 
in the future? 





“The Innovative Finance for National Forests (IFNF) 
grant program supports the development and 

implementation of innovative finance models that 
leverage private capital to support the resilience of the 

National Forest System and surrounding lands.” 

Specific Opportunity: IFNF and Inyo NF Campgrounds



5

Campground Improvements 
on Inyo National Forest

 We identified geographic areas with 
high potential and a high-level concept 
of a project for each area. 

 In a later design phase, landscape 
architects would further scope these 
concepts. The Inyo NF has already 
requested GAOA funding to do this 
design work. 

 While design will determine the true 
cost, for financing purposes we 
anticipate that this work will cost 
between $7M and $26M, based on 
similar projects in different Western 
regions

Lee Vining Canyon

Mammoth Lakes / 
Lakes Basin

Big Pine Canyon

Independence

Whitney Portal

Horseshoe



Disconnect on Recreation between Land Managers and Local Stakeholders
- Due to rising pressures, including funding

Land Managers
 Lack maintenance & strategic investment 

funding, affects community

Local Stakeholders
 Share trans-boundary interests and concerns

Relevant for Any Type of Project:
Outdoor Recreation, Wildfire Mitigation, 

Habitat Restoration, etc.

Status Quo: Disconnect on recreation limits opportunities



Disconnect on Recreation between Land Managers and Local Stakeholders
- Due to rising pressures, including funding

Joint financing can bridge the gap – but other pieces are needed too
- Land Managers and Local Stakeholders align on projects to work together 
- Extend shared stewardship into implementation & operations

Land Managers
 Lack maintenance & strategic investment 

funding, affects community

Local Stakeholders
 Share trans-boundary interests and concerns

Relevant for Any Type of Project:
Outdoor Recreation, Wildfire Mitigation, 

Habitat Restoration, etc.

Opportunity: Joint financing can help bridge gap



Joint financing, however, requires more than just the 
money. 

It’s about aligning on stakeholder and community 
needs for sustainable management. 

It’s about operationalizing Shared Stewardship.



Public-Private 
Capital

Governance

Community 
Infrastructure & 
Capacity Building

Sustainable Operations 
& Stewardship

Recreation 
Asset

Holistic 
Activation

Stakeholder 
Alignment Financing does not 

exist in a vacuum

The IFNF program 
(and QV’s work) is 

focused on financing, 
but each tool can 

contribute to the ability 
to finance the overall 

project

Alignment of framework elements unlocks capital



Framework to Operationalize 
Shared Stewardship

Pieces of the framework are the 
inputs for enacting principles of 
shared stewardship

How do we put the framework into practice?



Framework to Operationalize 
Shared Stewardship

Pieces of the framework are the 
inputs for enacting principles of 
shared stewardship

How do we put the framework into practice?

Architecture

Pieces of the framework will dictate 
the structure, processes, and 
authorities necessary for each 
project or region



Federal
Funding

Private 
Sector

Investment

State
Funding

Building Jobs 
and Local 

Wealth 

Regional 
Asset

Local 
Collaboration

Intentional 
Development

Public & Private 
Investment

Local 
Government
6 local political 
subdivisions

Wayne National Forest

Advisory 
Board

19 members 
public, nonprofit, 

private sector

Lack of coordination prevents stakeholders from accessing 
public and private capital.



Federal
Funding

Private 
Sector

Investment

State
Funding

Regional 
Asset

Local 
Collaboration

Intentional 
Development

Public & Private 
Investment

Local 
Government
6 local political 
subdivisions Outdoor 

Recreation 
Council of 
Appalachia

Athens-Wayne 
Outdoor Asset 
Development 
Corporation

(501(c)3)

Wayne National Forest

Advisory 
Board

19 members 
public, nonprofit, 

private sector

Building Jobs 
and Local 

Wealth 

Creating a Council of Governments and nonprofit filled this 
gap.

Athens-
Wayne

Outdoor
Asset

Development
Corporation

(501(c)3)



Local 
Government
4 local political 
subdivisions

Eastern 
Sierra 

Sustainable 
Recreation 
Partnership 

(ESSRP)

Eastern Sierra 
Council of 

Governments 
(ESCOG)

Federal
Funding

Private 
Sector

Investment

State
Funding

Regional 
Asset

Local 
Collaboration

Intentional 
Development

Public & Private 
Investment

Eastern Sierra Building Jobs 
and Local 

Wealth 

The Eastern Sierra region can use its existing 
infrastructure to connect to public and private capital.

Eastern Sierra 
Council of 

Governments 
(ESCOG)



Local 
Government
4 local political 
subdivisions

Eastern 
Sierra 

Sustainable 
Recreation 
Partnership 

(ESSRP)

Eastern Sierra 
Council of 

Governments 
(ESCOG)

Federal
Funding

Private 
Sector

Investment

State
Funding

Regional 
Asset

Local 
Collaboration

Intentional 
Development

Public & Private 
Investment

Tribal Engagement

Private Sector and Advocacy Engagement

Building Jobs 
and Local 

Wealth 

Opportunities for tribal and other stakeholder engagement

Eastern Sierra 
Council of 

Governments 
(ESCOG)



Local 
Government
4 local political 
subdivisions

Eastern 
Sierra 

Sustainable 
Recreation 
Partnership 

(ESSRP)

Eastern Sierra 
Council of 

Governments 
(ESCOG)

Federal
Funding

Private 
Sector

Investment

State
Funding

Regional 
Asset

Local 
Collaboration

Intentional 
Development

Public & Private 
Investment

Tribal Engagement

Private Sector and Advocacy Engagement

American Rescue Plan + American Jobs Plan 

State of California Policy + Funding 
CALREC Vision

Building Jobs 
and Local 

Wealth 

Implementing this architecture can unlock public funding

Eastern Sierra 
Council of 

Governments 
(ESCOG)



What can the ESCOG do to support this approach?

Next Step: 
We request to meet with and solicit feedback from a representative from 
each of your agencies on this overall approach and the specifics around 
campground improvements on Inyo National Forest campgrounds. 



County of Inyo

Board of Supervisors
 

TIMED ITEMS - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  April 27, 2021
 
FROM:  Jeff Griffiths
 
SUBJECT:  Update on the Sustainable Recreation and Tourism Initiative -- 1:30 P.M.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board receive an update on the Sustainable Recreation & Tourism Initiative from representatives of the 
Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Representatives of the Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Project are requesting the opportunity to update 
the Board on the Sustainable Recreation & Tourism Initiative.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
On March 7, 2019, the Sierra Nevada Conservancy (SNC)’s Governing Board authorized $618,750 of 
Proposition 68 funds for the “The Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership: Sustainable Recreation and 
Tourism Initiative” to benefit the SNC’s Eastern sub-region.

Ideas for projects with which to use the Initiative funding were collected from across the Eastern Sierra from June 
to October 2020 through an online submission form. A list has been compiled with projects from June Lake tom 
Lone Pine. The Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership then sought member feedback in order to 
prioritize those projects. Inyo County received a workshop on the initiative on February 9. The following week, 
Assistant CAO Leslie Chapman conducted an Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP) 
Project Selection Workshop where she presented recommended projects for the Board’s consideration. After 
discussion, the Board came to agreement that the projects should be added to the "Sustainable Recreation 
Project Form – Partners” and submitted to the
ESSRP for additional consideration.

The Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership was created in July 2018 as a Non-Funded Challenge 
Cost Share Agreement between Mono County, and the Town of Mammoth Lakes, and the USDA, Forest Service 
Pacific Southwest Region, Inyo National Forest and Intermountain Region, Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest.

Alpine County voted to join the ESSRP on August 20, 2019, the City of Bishop voted to join on September 9, 
2019, and Inyo County voted to join on October 8, 2019.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Choose not to hear the update.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
ESSRP
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership Sustainable Recreation and Tourism Initiative 
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 4/22/2021
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 4/22/2021



Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership 
Sustainable Recreation and Tourism Initiative 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors

April 27, 2021



Public lands in the United States hold the creation stories, burial grounds, and ceremonies
of Indigenous people who were killed or forcibly removed from their ancestral homes

during territorial acquisition.

Many tribes, comprised of different bands, live in the Eastern Sierra region, caring for their
native lands as they coexist with the ongoing impacts of colonization. Past or present tribes
and bands associated with the region that this effort is aware of include, but are not limited
to, the Miwok, Mono Lake Kutzadika’a, Mono/Monache, Nüümü (Paiute), Newe (Shoshone),

Timbi-Sha, Utu Utu Gwaitu Paiute, and Washoe.

Two Nüümü terms describe the region and provide important context to ideas offered in
this presentation. The first is Pamidu Toiyabe (Western Mountains), and the other, more

widely known, place name is Payahuunadü (The Place Where Water Flows).

This acknowledgement is an invitation to all organizations, residents, and visitors to recognize
the way this history has shaped the present as all parties work together in anticipation of a

better future.







• “Sustainable Recreation and Tourism Initiative”
• Grant Awarded March 7, 2019 - $618,750

• Proposition 68 - Sierra Nevada Conservancy

• Awarded to the Town on Behalf of Regional Partners

• Work Initiated July 1, 2019





• Contractors Delivering Services
• HighBar Global Consulting

• “Recreation Stakeholders” – Track #1

• “Projects and Funding” – Track #4

• Placeworks + ICF 

• “Climate Adaptation and Resilience Assessment” – Track #2

• SMG Consulting

• “Visitor Connection Working Group” – Track #3

• Mammoth Lakes Trails and Public Access Foundation (MLTPA)

• Project Management + Progress and Final Grant Reporting

• Staff Support for all Tracks



“Recreation Stakeholders” – Track #1
• Final Tally of Projects: 183
• Completed February 1, 2021

“Climate Adaptation and Resilience Assessment” – Track #2
• “Vulnerability Assessment” +“Natural Capital Assessment” 
• Completion:  April, 2021 / ESSRP Report Out May 

“Visitor Audience” – Track #3
• “Visitor Connection Package”
• Completed February 22, 2022

“Projects and Funding” – Track #4
• Completion:  December 2021



“Recreation Stakeholders” – Track #1
• Final Tally of Projects: 183
• Completed February 1, 2021

“Climate Adaptation and Resilience Assessment” – Track #2
• “Vulnerability Assessment” +“Natural Capital Assessment” 
• Completion:  April, 2021 / ESSRP Report Out May 3

“Visitor Audience” – Track #3
• “Visitor Connection Package”
• Completed February 22, 2021

“Projects and Funding” – Track #4
• Completion:  December 2021



From In Person…



….. To Zoom!



“Recreation Stakeholders” – Track #1
• Final Tally of Projects: 183
• Completed February 1, 2021

“Climate Adaptation and Resilience Assessment” – Track #2
• “Vulnerability Assessment” +“Natural Capital Assessment” 
• Completion:  April, 2021 / ESSRP Report Out May 3  

“Visitor Audience” – Track #3
• “Visitor Connection Package” + 8 Working Group Meetings
• Completed February 22, 2021

“Projects and Funding” – Track #4
• Completion:  December 2021



“Recreation Stakeholders” – Track #1 – 183 Project Ideas



“Recreation Stakeholders” – 183 Project Ideas Scored



“Recreation Stakeholders” – 183 Project Ideas Scored



SRTI Projects and Funding – Dispersed Camping 2021



“Recreation Stakeholders” – Track #1
• Final Tally of Projects: 183
• Completed February 1, 2021

“Climate Adaptation and Resilience Assessment” – Track #2
• “Vulnerability Assessment” +“Natural Capital Assessment” 
• Completion:  April, 2021 / ESSRP Report Out May 3

“Visitor Audience” – Track #3
• “Visitor Connection Package” 
• Completed February 22, 2021

“Projects and Funding” – Track #4
• Completion:  December 2021



Vulnerability Assessment



  Sustainable 
Recreation and 
Tourism Initiative: 
Baseline Natural 
Capital Assessment  
Draft 
November 17, 2020 

Submitted to:  
Mammoth Lakes Trails and Public 
Access Foundation (MLTPA) 

Submitted by:  
ICF Incorporated, L.L.C. 

ICF proprietary and confidential. Do not copy, distribute, or disclose. 

Vulnerability Assessment



  Sustainable 
Recreation and 
Tourism Initiative: 
Baseline Natural 
Capital Assessment  
Draft 
November 17, 2020 

Submitted to:  
Mammoth Lakes Trails and Public 
Access Foundation (MLTPA) 

Submitted by:  
ICF Incorporated, L.L.C. 

ICF proprietary and confidential. Do not copy, distribute, or disclose. 

Vulnerability Assessment



“Recreation Stakeholders” – Track #1
• Final Tally of Projects: 183
• Completed February 1, 2021

“Climate Adaptation and Resilience Assessment” – Track #2
• “Vulnerability Assessment” +“Natural Capital Assessment” 
• Completion:  April, 2021 / ESSRP Report Out May  

“Visitor Audience” – Track #3
• “Visitor Connection Package” + 8 Working Group Meetings
• Completed February 22, 2021

“Projects and Funding” – Track #4
• Completion:  December 2021



“Visitor Audience” – Track #3 - Complete









“Visitor Audience” – Visitor Connection Working Group



“Visitor Audience” – Visitor Connection Working Group



“Recreation Stakeholders” – Track #1
• Final Tally of Projects: 183
• Completed February 1, 2021

“Climate Adaptation and Resilience Assessment” – Track #2
• “Vulnerability Assessment” +“Natural Capital Assessment” 
• Completion:  April, 2021 / ESSRP Report Out May 3  

“Visitor Audience” – Track #3
• “Visitor Connection Package” + 8 Working Group Meetings
• Completed February 22, 2021

“Projects and Funding” – Track #4
• Completion:  December 2021





ideas



filters

ideas



projects

filters

ideas



• All “ESSRP Projects”

• All “Sustainable Recreation Projects”

• All “Project Ideas”



• All “ESSRP Projects”

• All “Sustainable Recreation Projects”

• All “Project Ideas”

• 8 Final Projects - ESSRP Partner Lead

• Portfolio of Projects - ESSRP



• All “ESSRP Projects”

• All “Sustainable Recreation Projects”

• All “Project Ideas”

• 8 Final Projects - ESSRP Partner Lead

• Portfolio of Projects - ESSRP

SRTI Project



• “Sustainable Recreation and Tourism Initiative”
• On Time and On Budget
• Volunteer Hours = $70,000
• Cash donations = $5,000



• “Sustainable Recreation and Tourism Initiative”
• On Time and On Budget
• Volunteer Hours = $70,000
• Cash donations = $5,000

• Roadshow Presentations
• Mammoth Lakes Town Council - March 3, 2021
• Mono County Board of Supervisors – April 6, 2021
• USFS: HT + Inyo NF - April 14, 2021
• City of Bishop – April 12, 2021
• Alpine County – April 20, 2021
• Inyo County – April 27, 2021



ESCOG Joint Powers Authority
• ESCOG Meeting - Friday, April 9 @ 08:30
• “Sustainable Recreation and Ecosystem Management Program”
• CDFW Grant Application Submitted

IFNF Grant Program
• A Business Plan to Leverage Outside Resources
• ESSRP: Opportunities for SRTI April 5

Convergence 2021: ESCOG and IFNF Grant Program



ESCOG Joint Powers Authority
• ESCOG Meeting - Friday, April 9 @ 08:30
• “Sustainable Recreation and Ecosystem Management Program”
• CDFW Grant Application Submitted

IFNF Grant Program
• A Business Plan to Leverage Outside Resources
• ESSRP: Opportunities for SRTI April 5

Convergence 2021: ESCOG and IFNF Grant Program



Implementation Ready 
Projects

Regional Forest & Fire Capacity Program 
Community Wildfire Protection +

Watershed Restoration

SRTI & Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation 
Partnership

C
E
Q
A

N
E
P
A

Regional Prioritized Projects Regional Prioritized Projects

Eastern Sierra 
Council of Governments

Eastern Sierra
Pace & Scale
Accelerator

NGO- Interdisciplinary 
Environmental Planning 

Team

Strategic 
Partner 

Investments

#1 Priority Rec project

Biomass 
Utilization 
Technology

Local Workforce 
Development

Eastern Sierra Climate & 
Communities Resilience 

Project 

Ecosystem       Health Sustainable       Recreation

Grants + Private 
Investments



ESCOG Joint Powers Authority
• ESCOG Meeting - Friday, April 9 @ 08:30
• “Sustainable Recreation and Ecosystem Management Program”
• CDFW Grant Application Submitted

IFNF Grant Program
• A Business Plan to Leverage Outside Resources
• ESSRP: Opportunities for IFNF and SRTI April 5

Convergence 2021: ESCOG and IFNF Grant Program



ESCOG Joint Powers Authority
• ESCOG Meeting - Friday, April 9 @ 08:30
• “Sustainable Recreation and Ecosystem Management Program”
• CDFW Grant Application Submitted

IFNF Grant Program
• A Business Plan to Leverage Outside Resources
• ESSRP: Opportunities for IFNF and SRTI April 5

Convergence 2021: ESCOG and IFNF Grant Program



Status: We have defined 
geographic areas of focus 
for the business plan. 

! We identified geographic areas with 
high potential. 

! We are defining a high-level concept of 
a project for each area to use in our 
business plan. 

! The final business plan will be delivered 
in September 2021.

! In the later design phase, multiple 
campgrounds within this area would be 
examined, delivering a design plans that 
makes sense for the geographic area as 
a whole. 

Lee Vining Canyon

Reds Meadow

Big Pine Canyon

Independence

Whitney Portal

Horseshoe



Local 
Government
4 local political 
subdivisions

Eastern 
Sierra 

Sustainable 
Recreation 
Partnership 

(ESSRP)

Eastern Sierra 
Council of 

Governments 
(ESCOG)

Federal
Funding

Private 
Sector

Investment

State
Funding

Regional 
Asset

Local 
Collaboration

Intentional 
Development

Public & Private 
Investment

Tribal Engagement

Private Sector and Advocacy Engagement

American Rescue Plan + American Jobs Plan 

State of California Policy + Funding 
CALREC Vision

Building Jobs 
and Local 

Wealth 

IFNF + QV: Building Jobs and Local Wealth Through Sustainability



Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



“Following the tour of the Shaver South Fuel Break project, Governor Newsom 
announced that he is expanding and refocusing the Forest Management Task 
Force to deliver on the key commitments in the Wildfire and Forest Resilience 

Action Plan issued in January, including the $1 billion in investments.

“The reconstituted Wildfire and Forest Resilience Task Force will be co-chaired by 
California Natural Resources Secretary Wade Crowfoot and U.S. Forest Service 
Regional Forester Randy Moore. They will be joined by CalEPA Secretary Jared 
Blumenfeld, Governor’s Office of Planning and Research Director Kate Gordon, 

CAL FIRE Director Thom Porter, California State Association of Counties President 
James Gore, Rural County Representatives of California Chair Stacy Corless and 

Don Hankins of the Inter-Tribal Indigenous Stewardship Project.”

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



“Following the tour of the Shaver South Fuel Break project, Governor Newsom 
announced that he is expanding and refocusing the Forest Management Task 
Force to deliver on the key commitments in the Wildfire and Forest Resilience 

Action Plan issued in January, including the $1 billion in investments.

“The reconstituted Wildfire and Forest Resilience Task Force will be co-chaired by 
California Natural Resources Secretary Wade Crowfoot and U.S. Forest Service 
Regional Forester Randy Moore. They will be joined by CalEPA Secretary Jared 
Blumenfeld, Governor’s Office of Planning and Research Director Kate Gordon, 

CAL FIRE Director Thom Porter, California State Association of Counties President 
James Gore, Rural County Representatives of California Chair Stacy Corless and 

Don Hankins of the Inter-Tribal Indigenous Stewardship Project.”

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



“Provide input on meeting the State’s 
commitment to conserve 30 percent of 

California’s lands and coastal waters by 2030 
and accelerate nature-based solutions to 

address climate change.”

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



“Provide input on meeting the State’s 
commitment to conserve 30 percent of 

California’s lands and coastal waters by 2030 
and accelerate nature-based solutions to 

address climate change.”

Sierra Nevada - April 28 4:00 – 6:00 PM

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



2021 State Climate 
Adaptation Strategy 
Building Resilience and Reducing Risks 

EXTREME HEAT | WILDFIRE | DROUGHT | FLOODS | SEA LEVEL RISE

Public Overview

March 26, 2021

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Nesting Existing Efforts

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



The Strategy should drive action toward critical priorities:

Strengthen protections for climate vulnerable communities 

Protect public health and safety in the event of climate disasters 

Reduce climate risks to California’s economy 

Help nature adapt to climate change, and accelerate nature-based solutions   

Make decisions based on best available climate science 

Leverage resources for climate action through partnerships and collaboration  

Priorities

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



The Strategy should drive action toward critical priorities:

Strengthen protections for climate vulnerable communities 

Protect public health and safety in the event of climate disasters 

Reduce climate risks to California’s economy 

Help nature adapt to climate change, and accelerate nature-based solutions   

Make decisions based on best available climate science 

Leverage resources for climate action through partnerships and collaboration  

PrioritiesThe Strategy should drive action toward critical priorities:

Strengthen protections for climate vulnerable communities 

Protect public health and safety in the event of climate disasters 

Reduce climate risks to California’s economy 

Help nature adapt to climate change, and accelerate nature-based solutions   

Make decisions based on best available climate science 

Leverage resources for climate action through partnerships and collaboration  

Priorities

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



“Ten months into a pandemic that has overwhelmed hospitals and 
prompted government shutdowns that left millions of people out of work 
and forced many small businesses to close, California Gov. Gavin Newsom 
on Friday revealed the most expensive budget in state history — a $227 

billion spending plan highlighted by a $15 billion one-time surplus.”
=

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



“Ten months into a pandemic that has overwhelmed hospitals and 
prompted government shutdowns that left millions of people out of work 
and forced many small businesses to close, California Gov. Gavin Newsom 
on Friday revealed the most expensive budget in state history — a $227 

billion spending plan highlighted by a $15 billion one-time surplus.”
=

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Situational Awareness 2021/04: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



In a major victory for America's counties, 
the State and Local Coronavirus Fiscal 
Recovery Funds legislation, part of the 

American Rescue Plan Act, was signed into 
law by President Biden on March 11. The 
bill includes $65.1 billion in direct, flexible 
aid to every county in America, as well as 

other crucial investments in local 
communities, including $1.5 billion over 

two years for public lands counties. 

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



In a major victory for America's counties, 
the State and Local Coronavirus Fiscal 
Recovery Funds legislation, part of the 

American Rescue Plan Act, was signed into 
law by President Biden on March 11. The 
bill includes $65.1 billion in direct, flexible 
aid to every county in America, as well as 

other crucial investments in local 
communities, including $1.5 billion over 

two years for public lands counties. 

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



In a major victory for America's counties, 
the State and Local Coronavirus Fiscal 
Recovery Funds legislation, part of the 

American Rescue Plan Act, was signed into 
law by President Biden on March 11. The 
bill includes $65.1 billion in direct, flexible 
aid to every county in America, as well as 

other crucial investments in local 
communities, including $1.5 billion over 

two years for public lands counties.

Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 



Situational Awareness April 2021: Nature + Jobs and Wealth 









Thank You

Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership 
Sustainable Recreation and Tourism Initiative 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors

April 27, 2021



DEPARTMENT OF' PUBLIC WORKS
P.O. DRAWER Q

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526
PHONE: (760) 878-0201
FAX: (760) 878-2001

SOUTHERN INYO AIRPORT ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MEETING AGENDA

COTINTY
OF

INYOMike Enante, Public Works Director
Chris Cash, Deputy Director of Public Works
Ashley Helms, Deputy Director of Airporls

I.

MEETING DATE: April 28,2021 7:00 A.M. Zoom Meeting
LOCATION: Lone Pine Death Valley Terminal Building

Call to order

Approval of minutes from the January 27,2021Meeting

Business

e Skydive Mt Whitney Proposal
o Other upcoming commercial activities
. Improvement projects and maintenance
o Hangar leases

ry. Report from Public Works

A. BudgetReview: Existingfunds asof 3l31l2l

Lone Pine Death Vallev Airport
Operating $49,631
Significant expenditures excluding payroll:
*Revenue is listed on attached Account Director's Reports*

Board Clerk

Jan. - March}l2l

II.

III

$300 Prefened Septic (Portable Toilet)
$450 Preferred Septic (Pump Septic Tank)
$2,759.33 (Building & Maintenance Billing)
$2,729.81 (Public Works Billing)
$1,024 (AVCOM Annual Inspection & Maintenance of AWOS)
$197.20 Dept. of Agriculture (Device Registration, Weights & Measures)
$808 Ascent Aviation (Fuel Truck Lease)
$154.87 (Credit Card Fees)
$2,870.38 (Utilities: Frontier, MCI & LADWP)



Lone Pine Death V Airnort Fuel Sales:

January 2021:

l00LL: 459.52 Gallons l$2,033.74 in Sales
Jet A: (None) Gallons / $0 in Sales

February 2021:

100LL: l97.ll Gallons l$872.38 in Sales
Jet A: (None) Gallons / $0 in Sales

March 2A2l : (Fast-pay only)

100LL: 631.18 Gallons l$2,793.48
Jet A: (None) Gallons / $0 in Sales

Lone Pine Death Vallev Special Aviation
Special Aviation $20, 1 04
Significant Expenditures excluding payroll:

$3,559.48 (LADWP Tax Billing)

Independence Airport
Operating $11,100
Significant Expenditures excluding payroll:

$289.60 (Building & Maintenance Billing)
$300 Preferred Septic (Portable Toilets)

Independence Airport Special Aviation
Special Aviation $24,384
Significant Expenditures excluding payroll

$27 6.43 (Utilities: LADWP)

B. Report from Steve Loven, Airport Operations Supervisor

Jan. - March2021

Jan. - March2}Zl

Jan. - MarchZ}2l

Jan. - March2021

V. Adjourn Meeting, the next meeting is July 28,2021



SIAAC January 27, 202L Meeting Minutes

Attendees: Lynne Bunn, jeff Montgomery, Paul Lamos, Neil Woodruff, Don Bright, Matt Kingsley, Paul

Wignall, Mike Errante, Ashley Helms

7:17 Lynne Bunn calls meeting to order

Minutes from the October 28 meeting were approved.

Topics discussed:

Grant and ACIP status - 2021grant application for Taxiway Rehabilitation Project (5836,000),

discretionary funding may not be available, and LP/DV has $302,000 in entitlements. Larger

discretionary funding programed for 2024. Other projects in ACIP - Lighting Phase 2, Apron

Reconstruction, Terminal Upgrades

Tunnel Meadows Hangar - lnspected by County Building lnspector, list of structural remediation

needs is long (new foundation, new trusses, etc) and estimated to cost around 5100,000.
County will get cost estimate for replacement building and community development grants to
create a safe and welcoming space for airport and non-airport community events. lf the County

requested entitlement funds for terminal or hangar projects we would likely not be eligible for"

the discretionary funding to complete the long standing airfield upgrades (taxiway pavement,

lighting).

Mercy Air Land Lease - Helicopter air ambulance service is interested in leasing a small portion

of the apron to store a Jet A fuel bowser. lt would not be available for public use. Lease is being

negotiated and will go to Board for approval soon. Revenue from the lease could help fund a Jet

A tank to replace the aged fuel truck.

Terminal/Septic Update - tree roots cleared out of sewer line from terminal, septic tank
pumped. Should resolve plumbing issues in the terminal. County Building and Maintenance

have started repairs to the outdoor bathrooms and will continue in the spring.

Budget review - Committee appreciated summary of monthly fuel sales. Jeff Montgomery
noted the sharp increase in fuel sales in October due to Fly-ln event.

Paul Wignall of Yosemite Skydiving (at the Mariposa-Yosemite Airport) introduced himself to the
Committee, noting his potentialinterest in opening a skydivingoperation out of the Lone Pine

Airport.

a

a

a

8: 30 Meeting adjourned

a

a

a



COUNTY oF INYO verbose lAccount Directors' Report with Encumbrance] OI/OI/202I-A3/3L/202ITHU, ApR L5, 202I, 3:43 pM -_req: cT0353___*leg: cL ____l_oc: pwD_t_____job:2895012 J3jgg____prog: GL508 <1.73>__report id
SORT ORDER: OBJECT within NEW OBJ within BUDUNIT within FUND

Page 3
GLPDE FO 1

SELECT
BUDGET

FUND FUND Title

BUDGET UNrr: 150300, 150400, 150500, 150600
WORKING; OBJECT and Budgets shown

BUDUNIT

LP,/DV AIRPPORT 15 05 OO

OBJECT Trans Desc. Date primary Ref.

OBJECT: 437I-44AI

BUDUNIT Titl_e Account Director
LONE PINE/DEATH VA],IEY AIRPORT
Income Account WORKING Budget Minus Z OfExpense Encumbrances to Date Budget Acci-To-Date Budget Note

0 . 00 0. 00 0.00 300. 00 300. 0n

0. 00* 0. 00* 0. 00* 300. oo* 300.00 *

0.00 0.00 0.00

0. 00* 0.00* 0. 00* *

1505

OBJECT

4311

4 311

4315

4 315

4331

4331

4333

4333

4334

RENTS

RENTS

SPECIAL EVENTS

SPEC]AI EVENTS

AUTO PARKING
cR R#599154-155

AUTO PARKING

HANGER RENT
CR R#601037 F.MEYER
cR R+601047-048
cR P#2021-012, P#202
cR R#599154-155
CR R#599],50 J.PETROP
CR R#599172 C.,fAMES
CR R#599185 G.RITCHT

07/aL/2I Prior
NEW OBJ TOTA],*

07/07/27 Prior
NETI OBJ TOTAL*

0I/0I/2I Prior
02/0r/2I CRr22323

NEW OBJ TOTA],*

Prior
cRL21_824
cR1_22I04
cR1_22I1_6
cRI22323
cRL22445
cRr2264l
CRI229OB

933.00
135,00

1, 068 . 00*

1,057.00
7.00

13.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00 933.00 2,300.00 1,367.00 40.6

46.4

41 .6

'14 .1

oo 1

07/07/2r
0r/o4/27
0r/!9/21
0L/20/21
02/ar/2r
02/08/27
a2/22/27
03/09/2r

12, 600 . 00
420.00

2,94A.00
420 -0a

1, 680.00
780.00
424 .00
420 .0a

1, 068.00*

12 , 600 .00

19,680.00*

1,0s7.00

2,300.00*

26, 47 0 .00

25, 47 0 .00x

1, 200. 00

1, 200. o0*

158. 00

158.00*

1 
'?' 

nn *

13,870.00

5, 790. 00 *

143. 00

HANGAR RENT NEW OBJ TOTAL*

TIE DOWN FEES 07/0I/2I prior
cR R#501748-459 72/7 07/06/21_ CR121910
CR VARIOUS RECEIPTS OI/25/2I CRI22222

19,680.00* 0.00*

0.00

4334

4338

4338

4441

440r

L,0'71 .0A*

158.00

158.00*

0.00

0.00*

21,983.00*

0.00x

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00*

0.00*

1, 077.00*

]s8.00

158.00*

0.00

0.00*

21, 983.00*

TTE DOWN FEES NEW OBJ TOTAL*

RAMP FEES AL/)I/2I prior

CALIFORNIA ATR CHART NEW OBJ TOTAI*

STATE AID FOR AVIATT aI/0I/2I Prior

STATE A]D FOR AV]ATI NEW OBJ TOTA].*

** TOTAL REVENUE **

IPlDV AIRPPORT FUND REVENUE TOTAL*

123.00 * 89.8

0. 00 100. 0

0.00 * 100.0

21, 983.00*

30, 428 .00* A , 445 .A0 * 12.2

21,983.00x 30,428.0A* 8,445.00 * 12.2



COUNTY oF TNYO Verbose lAccount Directorsr Report with Encumbrance] AI/OI/202I-THU, APR 75, 2A2L' 3:43 PM --req: cT0353----l-eg: cL ----1oc: pWD-------job:28960L2 J3799----p;oq: cL50B

SORT ORDER; OB,fECT within NEW OBJ within BUDUNIT within FUND

sELEcr BUDGET uNrr: l-50300,150400,150500,150600 ; oBJEcr z 43L1-440r
BUDGET: WORKING; OB,JECT and Budgets shown

03
<1

/ 3t / 202t
, ?3>--report id

Page 4
GLPDE FO 1

FUND FUND Title BUDUNIT

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIR-SPC ]-50600

OB,IECT Trans Desc. Date primary Ref,

BUDUNIT Title Account Director
LONE P]NE,/DEATH VALLEY AIR-SP
Income Account WoRKING Budget Minus z ofExpense Encumbrances to Date Budget Acct-To-Date Budget Note

0.00 0. 00 0.00 10, 000. o0 10, 000. oo

0.00* 0.00* 0.00* 10,000.00* 10,000.00 *

0.00* 0.00* 0.00* 10, 000, 0o* l-0, ooo.00 *

0.00* 0.00*

1506

OBJECT

4407

440r

STATE AID FOR AVIATI 0t/07/21 pxror

STATE AID FOR AVfATI NEW OBJ TOTAL*

** TOTAI REVENUE **

LONE PINE/DEATH VA].L FUND REVENUE ToTAL* 0.00* 10, 000. 00* 10, 000.00



COUNTY OF INYO Verbose lAccount Directors' Report with Encumbrance] O1-/0L/2A2I-03/3I/2OZI page 1THU, APR 15, 2azL, 3:43 PM --req: cT0353----1eg: GL ----loc: PI,ilD*------job:2896012 J3799-*--prog: GL508 <1.73>--seport id: GLpDEF0I
SORT ORDER: OBJECT within NEW OBJ withi-n BUDUNIT within FUND

SELECT BUDGET uNrr: 150300,150400,150500,150600 ; OBJECT: 43lL-440r
BUDGET: WORKING; OB,IECT and Budgets shown

FUND FUND Titfe BUDUNTT BUDUNTT rit]e Account Director
1503 INDY AIRPORT OPERATING 15O3OO INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT

Income Account WORKING Budget Minus ? OfoB'lEcr oBJEcr rrans Desc. Date Primary Ref. Expense Encumlcrances to Date Budget Acct-To-Date Budget Note
43IL RENTS 0I/OI/27 Priox 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,400.00 14,400.00
4311 RENTS NEW oBJ rorAl,* 0.00* 0.00* 0..00* 14,4oo,oo* 14,400.00 *
4315 SPEC]A], EVENTS OI/OL/2I Prior O, OO O. OO O. OO

4315 SPECIAI EVENTS NEW OBJ TOTAL* O. OO* O. OO* O. OO* *

4331 AUTO PARKING 0L/0I/2L prior 0.00 0.00 0.OO

433I AUTO PARK]NG NEW OBJ TOTAL* O.OO* O.OO* O.OO* *

4333 HANGER RENT 0\/0L/27 Ptior 2,340.0A 0.00 2,340.00 3,I2O.OO 780.00 75.0
4333 HANGAR RENT NEW OBJ TOTAT.* 2,340.A0* 0.00* 2,340,00* 3,120.00* 780,00 * 75.0
4334 TrE Do!{N FEES jI/AI/2! Prior 171.00 0.00 171.00 15O.OO -21.00 114.0 ovER

4334 TrE DOWN FEES NEW OBJ TOTAI,* 171.00* 0.00* 171.00* 15O.OO* -2r.00 * rr4.0 ovER

44OI STATE AID FOR AVIATI AL/A|/2L Prior O.OO O.OO O.OO

44OT STATE AID FOR AVIATI NEW OBJ TOTAL* O.OO* O.OO* Q.OO* *

** TOTAL REVENUE ** 2,511.00* 0.00* 2,517,00* 17,670.00* 15,159.00 * I4.2

INDY AIRPORT OPERATI FUND REVENUE TOTA],* 2,511.00* 0.00* 2,511.00* 17,670.00* 15,159.00 * 14.2



COUNTY OF INYO
THU, APR L5, 202I, 3:43

Verbose lAccount Directors' Report with Encumbrance] OI/AI/2A2\-O3/3I/202I
PM --req: CT0353----leg: GL ----loc: PWD-------job:2896012 J31gg----prog: GL50B <1.73>--report id

SORT ORDER: OBJECT within NEW OBJ within BUDUNIT within FUND

SELECT BUDGET UNIT: 150300,150400,150500,1-50600,' OB,fECT: 4311-4401
BUDGET: I{ORKING; OBJECT and Budgets shown

FUND FUND TitIe BUDUNIT BUDUNIT Tit]-e Account Director

Page 2
GLPDEFO 1

1504

OBJECT

440L

4401)

INDY AIRPORT SPEC]A], AVIATION 15O4OO

OBJECT Trans Desc. Date Primary Ref,

TNDEPENDENCE AIRPORT _ SPECIAI
Income Account
Expense Encumlf,rances to Date

STATE AID FOR AVIATI O1/07/2T PTioT

STATE AID FOR AVIATI NEW OBJ TOTA],*

** TOTAI REVENUE **

INDY AIRPORT SPECIAL FUND REVENUE TOTAL*

0.00

0.00*

0.00*

0.00

0. 00*

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0. 00*

Budget Minus Z Of
Acct-To-Date Budget Nole

10, 000.00

10,000.00 *

10, 000.00 *

WORKING
Budget

10, 000. 00

10, 000.00*

10, 000.00*

0.00* 0. 0c* 0. 00* 10, 000. 00* 10, 000. 00


	 Call to Order
	1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Join meeting via Zoom here)
	2. PUBLIC COMMENT
	3. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	4. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE
	5. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will b

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	6. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt

	 Consent Agenda
	7. Request Board: A) approve the application and all 
	Agenda Request Form
	New Application Checklist
	Item #1 - Surplus Property Program Eligibility Application - DGS OFAM 201
	Item #2 - Resolution with Board Minutes - DGS OFAM 202
	Item #3 - Non-Discrimination Certification - DGS OFAM 203
	Item #4 - Racial Demographic and National Origins of all Persons within Service Area - DGS OFAM 204
	Item #5 - Debarment Form
	Item #6 - Donee Terms and Conditions
	Item #7 - Proof of State Agency - Public Agency Status

	8. Increase Ultralink Agreement Amount to $220,000
	Agenda Request Form
	County of Inyo New Building Cabling Change Order #1
	County of Inyo New Building Cabling Change Order #2
	County of Inyo New Building Cabling Change Order #3
	Ultralink-Inyo Cabling Project Contract with signatures
	County of Inyo New Building cabling 
	Ultra Link California Multiple Award Schedule 3-18-70-1981D

	9. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2021-28, titl
	Agenda Request Form
	AOT Opt Out Resolution

	10. Request Board approve Amendment No. A02 to the con
	Agenda Request Form
	Amendment A02 to Agreement 19-10153 
	Agreement 19-10153 A02 Revision Exhibits


	 Departmental
	11. Request Board review and possibly provide directio
	Agenda Request Form

	12. Request Board introduce, read title, and waive fur
	Agenda Request Form
	Proposed Ordinance Re: Claims

	13. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	14. 11 A.M. - Water Department - Request Board hold wo
	Agenda Request Form
	Roles and Responsibilities of the Water Commission

	15. 1 P.M. - Board of Supervisors - Request Board rece
	Agenda Request Form
	IFNF Presentation

	16. 1:30 P.M. - Board of Supervisors - Request Board r
	Agenda Request Form
	Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership Sustainable Recreation and Tourism Initiative 


	 Comment
	17. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 Correspondence - Informational
	18. Inyo County Public Works: Agenda for the Southern 
	April 28, 2021 SIAAC Agenda





